BERETT IR B HE
Focus on Execution

{5 SR1T B PR
CITIC BANK
INTERNATIONAL




BEET KIS
Focus on Execution

FERITEEERQ A
CITIC Bank International Limited

FERTEBRERAA(FERTERIKIEATNAERHE
EERTHERQAA RV FERESBERERQAATHFEFEE]
NEEMNBAR PERTKROCERIARBRTIHIIRTS
BEFEEPEEENT0%R30%HEEE -

FTHEEBRATERBIEFRHUAIR AIEEE B
EEENERAXERBERANEBREFALEINGFH KT KA
BEAREEBRKIREINEFIERTERT]

RKTHKEHRAPE BRFEN-T N \NBIT BAMIT-
EBATUARRAGERNTEEERT(HE)ARQATH
FEEMEHR)  AEEE(HFBRIBHATEZERES  AFLRR
Yo TR EBRER B ZTERBORBELERRE
BHNRT -BEREL FATIBaa2| WEETR  MEERER
BFF A [BBB+] - AfTR-ZZLFREEEEEXHESHRE
HEEERR SEEMEBELXEE LN SRR o5
REZBZBAFE  FTHCITICist AABMEEEFABEI-ZZ
NEEFXERNEEERBAR] BIIAREFHZRED

CITIC Bank International Limited (“CBI” or the “Bank”), formerly known
as CITIC Ka Wah Bank Limited, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CITIC
International Financial Holdings Limited (“CIFH”), which in turn is
approximately 70%-owned by China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited and
30%-owned by Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria (“BBVA”) of Spain.

By providing value-creating financial solutions to define and exceed both
the wealth management and international business objectives of our Greater
China and overseas customers, the Bank aspires to be the “China Bank of
Choice”, with the best international standards and capabilities.

The Bank’s footprint in Greater China includes 28 branches in Hong
Kong, a branch in Macau, a branch in Shanghai and its PRC-incorporated
wholly-owned subsidiary, CITIC Ka Wah Bank (China) Limited, which is
headquartered in Shenzhen with branches in Shanghai and Beijing. The
Bank also has overseas branches in New York and Los Angeles. The Bank
is rated “Baa2” by Moody’s Investors Service and “BBB+” by FITCH. In
recognition of its outstanding achievement in Quality Management, the Bank
received the Silver Award in the 2007 Hong Kong Management Association
Quality Award. In 2009, the Bank’s private wealth management franchise,
CITICfirst, received the “Capital Weekly Wealth Management Service Award
2009” in testimony to its brand recognition by the market and its customers.
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In May 2010, CITIC Ka Wah Bank Limited adopted a new
name “CITIC Bank International Limited”, symbolising the
consummation of CITIC Group's restructuring strategy

to align its onshore and offshore commercial banking
businesses. The new name signifies our role as China CITIC
Bank's offshore platform for pursuing business expansion
in Hong Kong and internationally, and solidifies our aim in
bringing exceptional, one-stop, comprehensive financial
services to customers to ultimately become their “China
Bank of Choice”.
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CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

== Our Vision

REENPEIRIT
The China Bank of Choice

{Fap Our Mission
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To be the China Financial Solutions Provider of Choice for institutional and
personal customers who aspire to realise the growth potential in Asia.

We focus on value creation for our stakeholders. Core to our offering is our
intimate knowledge of and our network capability in China, coupled with
our customer-centric execution of world-class quality.

Nurturing of talent, team spirit and sharing of ownership and success are a
key competitive advantage of ours.
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Our Core Values
Customer-Centric

Progressive

Execution

Value Creating

Building People, Building Team
Integrity
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Financial Performance

TEENFUBRE 2009 Financial Highlights
2FE(BEB T For the year (HK$ million) 2009 2008 % change
A B A Net interest income 1,937 1,546 +253
FEF B A Non-interest income 1,257 302 +316.2
LT Operating expenses (1,595) (1,325) +203
BERMBHOREEE Impairment losses on loans and advances (559) (383) +46.0
75t Al g A Profit before taxation 1,120 164 +582.9
FiT 15 ¢ Income tax (167) (36) +363.9
A% BR P AG 5 Profit attributable to shareholders 953 128 +644.5
AR 718 EBILARBIEIRE * Including net loss and write-down on

T EMFEERME structured investment vehicles (“SIVs”)

of HK$718 million

REFB(BEE T At year end (HK$ million) 2009 2008 % change
BN ® Loans and advances 73,251 74,231 -13
BERE Total assets 120,123 121,810 -14
7 K48 HE Total deposits 97,935 99,454 -1.5
A% B8 RE 2 Shareholders’ equity 12,231 9,531 +2823
Bt & Financial ratios 2009 2008
BARAFREX Capital adequacy 16.4% 14.7%
EETHRBESH X Average liquidity 48.8% 37.0%
BT % Loans to deposits 74.8% 74.6%
DN PN Cost to income 49.9% 71.7%
FRERITEIRERA A

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED



REREMGER (BBET)

Profit attributable to shareholders (HKS million)

BERE (BBERT)

Total assets (HKS million)

RREDR (BEBT)

Shareholders’ equity (HK$ million)

08 128 08 121,810 08 9,531

07 106 07 110,783 07 9,638

06 918 06 89,672 06 7,282

05 1,047 05 81,777 05 6,920

hFEBBEHR Five Year Financial Summary

2FEHLE(EEHBT)  Fortheyear (HKS million) 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

3 B A Net interest income 1,937 1,546 1,400 1,061 1,101

JEFBUWA(E18)  Non-interestincome/(loss) 1,257 302* (91)* 243 799

& ¥ Operating expenses (1,595) (1,325 (1.179) (1,094) (1,049)
MR TR E Impairment losses (charged for)/

Eﬁ BOCER) /| # written back on loans and advances (559) (383) (72) (54) 83
At A Profit before taxation 1,120 164 106 1,109 1,145
BT 15 1 Income tax (167) (36) 0.04 (191) (102)
% 3R FE 16 i 7 Profit attributable to shareholders 953 128 106 918 047
* EIEAEMMRETA  *  Including net loss and write-down on SIVs

HF 1R R E

(2008 : 7.18 fE&TT) (2008: HK$718 million)

(2007 < 1311 {85 7T) (2007: HK$1,311 million)
REZAB(EEBT) Atyearend (HKS million) 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
EEVET N Loans and advances 73,251 74,231 67,357 51,177 42,952
RERER Impairment allowance 617 485 294 330 409

EERAE Total assets 120,123 121,810 110,783 89,672 81,777
15 FI| B 25 & E 42 B Average interest earnings assets 112,709 103,461 90,589 72,281 69,722
FREsE Total deposits 97,935 99,454 90,881 73,223 62,255
e Shareholders' equity 12,231 9,531 9,638 7,282 6,920
B i b % Financial ratios 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
LN Capital adequacy 16.4% 14.7% 15.8% 6.8% 6.4%
2FE TR E & Lk X Average liquidity 48.8% 37.0% 40.8% 404% 51.1%
Bt = Loans to deposits 74.8% 74.6% 74.1% 69.9% 69.0%
EXHEELBLE Loanstototal assets 61.0% 60.9% 60.8% 57.1% 52.5%
CATmEELX Collective assessment coverage 0.4% 0.3% 0.3% 0.5% 7%
PN PN Cost to income 49.9% 71.7% 90.1% 47.5% 55.2%
& A =R Return on assets 0.8% 0.1% 0.1% 1.1% 3%
[i% 58 % 5 [0 5} K Return on shareholders’ equity 8.7% 13% 13% 2.9% 6.2%

ZETNFFH |oos
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Financial Performance

FR* Deposits*
1. RERNE S By type 2009 2008
G Current 16.3% 8.2%
®E Savings 27.0% 14.0%
7€ 5 Fixed 56.7% 77.8%
& &t Total 100.0% 100.0%
2. REIBMBEE D By maturity 2009 2008
BB {5 2 On demand 43.3% 22.3%
L3 {E A Less than 3 months 41.8% 66.5%
HmEITAETRF Over 3 months but less than 1 year 13.8% 10.5%
HBBAITFEFESTF Over 1 year but less than 5 years 1.1% 0.7%
aF Total 100.0% 100.0%
3. BRE®E D By currency 2009 2008
7 TT HKD 61.2% 53.7%
ETT usD 27.4% 38.9%
H Others 11.4% 7.4%
A5t Total 100.0% 100.0%
4, FRERE®AE Number of deposit accounts 2009 2008
247,546 260,015
* ABPERAER *  Based on customer deposits only
49.9% 36.9%

42.6%

BERD M
Total Deposits
Breakdown

3.7% 3.8%

RERITERERAE
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

W ZERTE
Retail Banking Group

H 7
Certificates of Deposit

W OHf
Others

BEERITER
Wholesale Banking Group

55.8%

Total Loans
Breakdown
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Financial Performance

B & Loan Portfolio*
1. RIT¥8 5 By industry sectors 2009 2008
AREENHER Loans and advances for use in Hong Kong
Tkt i Industrial, commercial and financial:
e g Property development 0.4% 0.2%
MERE Property investment 12.8% 12.4%
% @ R Financial concerns 6.1% 6.1%
REL 4L Stockbrokers 0.0% 0.0%
HELTEES Wholesale and retail trade 5.2% 4.7%
BE R Manufacturing 7.2% 8.8%
ERENERRME Transport and transport equipment 4.0% 4.0%
IR 548 B Recreational activities 0.3% 0.2%
B AR Information technology 0.0% 0.0%
H At Others 3.4% 4.2%
(ENE ‘ Individuals:
BEIEERHERS Loans for the purchase of flats under the Home
(AAZEEREAREREEST Ownership Scheme, Private Sector
ZIR[HEEHREE Participation Scheme and Tenants Purchase
BT ImE® Scheme 0.1% 0.0%
BEEMTEMENER Loans for the purchase of other residential properties  14.8% 14.2%
FEREEE Credit card advances 0.4% 0.5%
H Others 5.0% 43%
BH5BE o Trade finance 4.7% 6.1%
BREBUIIN T ERNZEF  Loans and advances for use outside Hong Kong 35.6% 343%
&3t Total 100.0% 100.0%
2. RiE DM E D By geographical spread 2009 2008
e Hong Kong 70.3% 72.1%
& China 17.2% 16.5%
ES USA 2.4% 2.3%
Hth Others 10.1% 9.1%
53t Total 100.0% 100.0%
3. REHE S By maturity 2009 2008
Bl 2 Repayable on demand 1.8% 2.9%
PLRRF ) Less than 1 year 25.8% 30.5%
BE1FERLNSF Over 1 year but less than 5 years 44.6% 39.8%
HE iS5 F Over 5 years 26.6% 25.2%
EiTHH Undated 1.2% 1.6%
&=t Total 100.0% 100.0%
4, RE¥E D By currency 2009 2008
BT HKD 71.5% 70.1%
ETT usb 24.7% 26.3%
Hth Others 3.8% 3.6%
45t Total 100.0% 100.0%
5. EXRERBEB®E Number of loan accounts 2009 2008
306,562 288,534
* BSBERTIRTZHGERIN *  Excluding trade bills and advances to banks
—ETNEFEFR
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Mrs. Chan Hui Dor Lam Doreen
Chief Executive Officer
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CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report of the Chief Executive Officer
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“Amidst the great challenges faced in 2009,
the team triumphed against all odds by
helping to drive both profit before taxation
and profit attributable to shareholders close

to record highs.”

Operating Environment

The economy of Hong Kong continued to feel the effects of the global
financial crisis and slowdown in 2009. Thanks to unprecedented and
concerted efforts of governments around the world to revive markets
followed by a series of favourable policies by the central government
including the promotion of the economic integration in the Greater Pearl
River Delta Region and Hong Kong's offshore RMB business development,
signs of economic recovery began to emerge since the third quarter of the
year. The local credit market saw a revival in growth with stabilised asset
quality on strong rallies in the property and stock markets. The contraction
in both imports and exports eased, and local corporates resumed staff
recruitment on improved economic outlook, resulting in improved
investment sentiment and increased local consumption.
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Mr. Woody Chan

Executive Vice President & Treasurer

BEESLE 3.
BAEATIRAE, - BREEREER

BB IRIT R 405

Mr. Roy Huang

Alternate Chief Executive Officer,

General Counsel &

Head of International Banking Group

EEREE 7.
PITRIAR RV a8
Mr. Steve Wong

Executive Vice President &
Chief Financial Officer

IX¥LE 6.
PITREERTERITEBRE
Ms. Phoebe Wong

Executive General Manager &

Head of Retail Banking Group

EREE 10. BEERALE 1.

BETRAEE - BUTHECIER
EIBITEREE
Mr. Nick Huang

Alternate Chief Executive Officer,

BEITRARH RIS LR BE

Mr. Archie Tsim

Alternate Chief Executive Officer &
Director of Finance & Corporate Planning
Executive General Manager &

Head of Wholesale Banking Group

Bizt
BT IR R R R s
Ms. Margaret Man

Executive General Manager &

Head of China Banking Group

EFHEERE
PITRIEHFANEREE
Mr. John Lee

Executive Vice President &

Head of Human Resources Group
BFEBAE
WITRlRHFR L E LA AR
Mr. Edmund Poon

Executive Vice President &

Head of Operations & Technology Group

MR{ZEE
BETHARRCESHEE
Mr.CY Ling

Alternate Chief Executive Officer &

Head of Corporate Services Group

BERLE

AR E IR

Mr. Jaime Azcoiti Leyva
Director of Risks

CERF L

SAREEHFREZES
Ms. Anna Li
Senior Vice President & Head of Audit Group
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CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report of the Chief Executive Officer

The pace of recovery in the US and Europe, however, remained relatively
weak and investors became wary of possible slowing down or withdrawal
of stimulus programmes by governments worldwide to avert
hyperinflation. These uncertainties led to continued volatility in the
investment market. The strong influx of hot money into the stock and
property markets of Hong Kong and other areas in the region also
increased the risk of a possible asset bubble. With such circumstances
prevailing, a full recovery has yet to be seen for the global economy.

CITIC Bank International Limited (“CBI" or the “Bank”) (formerly known as
CITIC Ka Wah Bank Limited) coped well with the fast-changing economic
environment. The Bank strengthened its capital adequacy levels and
raised its risk management capabilities to maintain its overall financial and
business stability and capitalised on the economy’s recovery in the second
half of the year to drive business development and enhance profitability.
At the same time, collaboration with China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
("CNCB") continued to deepen in the areas of both business and
operations. Through frequent, in-depth exchanges, the two banks will
seek to jointly build a solid and customer-centric one-stop cross-border
financial services platform — one that will enable CBI and CNCB to unite
their strengths to capture the increased opportunities from the economic
integration in the Greater Pearl River Delta Region, as well as to pave the
way for their regional expansion plan.

Corporate Developments and Important Events

On 8 May 2009, CNCB entered into a Share Purchase Agreement with CITIC
Group of Beijing (“"CITIC Group”) and its wholly-owned subsidiary,
Gloryshare Investments Limited (“GIL"), pursuant to which CNCB agreed to
acquire from GIL its entire 70.32% interest in CBI's holding company, CITIC
International Financial Holdings Limited ("CIFH") (“Share Purchase
Agreement”). The Share Purchase Agreement was approved at CNCB's
annual general meeting held on 29 June 2009 and the transaction was
duly completed on 23 October 2009. The remaining 29.68% share of CIFH
is held by the Bank’s strategic shareholder Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria,
S.A. ("BBVA"). Following completion, CNCB appointed two of its senior
executives to join the Board of the Bank as Non-Executive Directors.

The realignment of interests followed the successful privatisation of CIFH
by CITIC Group in November 2008, and was a critical step in completing
CITIC Group's strategy to restructure its cross-border commercial banking
businesses. The reorganisation enables better alignment of CITIC Group's
onshore and offshore commercial banking businesses which are currently
operated through CNCB and CBI respectively, and facilitates and
maximises synergies from the cooperation among CNCB, CBI and BBVA.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

As the offshore expansion platform for CNCB, the Bank was renamed CITIC
Bank International Limited in May 2010 to fully reflect its role within the
CNCB Group to extend the CITIC commercial banking franchise’s presence
to the ASEAN region and beyond.

On 30 June 2009, CIFH successfully completed a HKS$1.7 billion capital
injection into CBI, significantly boosting the Bank’s capital adequacy ratio.
The capital injection fulfilled the undertaking by GIL and BBVA at the time
of CIFH's privatisation to support the Bank's future development. Upon
maturity in November 2009, the Bank redeemed US$300 million five-year
fixed-rate senior debt. Without issuing new debt, CBI managed to
maintain its average liquidity ratio at a healthy level of 48.8% through a
series of successful deposit acquisition campaigns. (See Asset Quality —
Financial Position for details of the Bank’s capital adequacy ratio and average
liquidity ratio in below section.)

Separately, the sudden collapse of Lehman Brothers in the US in
September 2008 led to demands by a large segment of the investing
public for compensation by banks that had distributed structured notes
involving Lehman Brothers counter-party risk. A large proportion of such
structured investments sold were known as Minibonds. On 22 July 2009,
16 Minibonds distributing banks (including CBI) jointly announced their
voluntary offer of a scheme to repurchase Minibonds from eligible
customers (“Repurchase Scheme”). The distributing banks believed that
the Repurchase Scheme offered Minibonds investors an opportunity to
optimise their ultimate recovery from those investments through a
combination of cash equal to 60% to 70% of the nominal value of the
Minbond investments plus the proceeds of any recovery from the
collateral underlying the Minibonds. The Repurchase Scheme was
endorsed by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority ("HKMA") and the
Securities and Futures Commission. As at the end of March 2010, the
Repurchase Scheme has been accepted by over 97% of CBI's eligible
customers. The aggregate repurchase amount payable together with
Minibonds-related commissions to be applied towards efforts to maximise
the recovery from the underlying collateral was fully provided for and
included in operating expenses in the Bank’s 2009 results.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Business Performance

Earnings

Despite the challenging economic environment and the local challenges
presented by the failure of Lehman Brothers, CBI achieved encouraging
results. During the year, the Bank's net interest income and net fee income
increased by 25.3% and 15.4% respectively. Its operating profit before
impairment rose 206.1% year-on-year to HK$1,599 million due to the
outstanding performance in its businesses.

Notwithstanding signs of credit quality starting to stabilise in the latter half
of the year, the lingering impact of the abrupt turning of the credit cycle
brought on by the financial crisis placed pressure on the Bank's
impairment provisioning level in the latter half of 2009. During the year,
the Bank's net impairment losses increased by 46.0% year-on-year to
HKS$559 million, however, operating profit exceeded HKS1 billion. The
Bank’s operating profit rose significantly by 6.4 times to HK$1,040 million.
Coupled with HK$43 million in net gain on disposal of property and HK$36
million in revaluation gain on investment properties, the Bank's net profit
before tax increased by 5.8 times to HK$1,120 million while profit
attributable to shareholders surged by 6.4 times to HK$953 million as
compared to the previous year. Both net profit before tax and profit
attributable to shareholders were close to the historic high.

Net Interest Income

CBl's net interest income rose 25.3% year-on-year to HK$1,937 million
partly due to the positive effect of the repricing of the corporate loan
portfolio. The interest spread benefited from the Prime Lending Rate
(“Prime”) and Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”") gap at above
4% during the year helped to improve the net interest income of the
Bank's Prime-based loan portfolio. Net interest income was further
improved as the Bank successfully resolved a legacy impaired loan that
occurred several years ago allowing for related interest income to be
booked during the year. All of these favourable factors contributed to
improve the Bank's net interest margin by 20 basis points compared to a
year ago to 1.73%.

Non-Interest Income

In 2009, the Bank's non-interest income grew substantially by 3.2 times to
HKS$1,257 million. The growth was partly due to the impact of the full
write-downs of structured investment vehicles (“SIVs”) in 2008. In addition,
a significant year-on-year growth of 72.9% in the Bank’s corporate loans
related fee income more than offset a 23.9% decline in wealth
management related income on the drop in investment products selling
and a 13.5% decline in trade bills commission income on the contraction
in imports and exports. As a result, overall net fee and commission income
grew by 15.4% year-on-year to HK$858 million which also helped to lift
non-interest income during the year.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Operating Expenses

As mentioned above, the amount payable under the Repurchase Scheme
and related expenses were fully provided for in the Bank’s 2009 results and
reflected in its operating expenses. As a result, operating expenses during
the year rose 20.3% to HK$ 1,595 million. In fact, the Bank continued to
exercise prudent cost discipline. During the year, staff costs rose by a
single-digit rate only and recorded a 2.1% rise as compared to 2008 while
rental of premises only registered a mild 0.8% increase. Free from the
impact of SIV-related write-downs in 2009, the cost to income ratio
improved significantly to 49.9% from last year's 71.7%. Excluding the
amount payable under the Repurchase Scheme and related expenses, the
cost to income ratio would have dropped to 42.2%.

Impairment Allowances

As the adverse impact of the sharp turn in the credit cycle extended to the
second half of 2009, the Bank adopted a defensive impairment
provisioning strategy during the year and registered a net charge in
impairment losses totalling HK$559 million, representing a 45.9% increase
as compared to 2008. The net charge on individually assessed loans
increased by 33.6% year-on-year to HK$545 million, while the net charge
on collectively assessed loans increased by 218.7% year-on-year to HK$99
million. Bad debt recoveries increased 53.3% year-on-year to HK$85
million.

Asset Quality

Asset, Loan, and Deposit Sizes

In the first half of 2009, the Bank adopted a prudent and conservative
approach to lending and capital management as a measure against
challenges from the economic downturn, which has in turn affected loan
and asset growth. As the economic situation stabilised in the second half
of 2009, the Bank with enhanced capital strength resumed its efforts to
secure quality lending. As a result, the Bank's total assets and total loans
were maintained at about the same level as in the previous year,
registering a slight reduction of 1.4% and 1.3% to HK$120.1 billion and
HKS$73.3 billion respectively. Total deposits stood at HK$97.9 billion,
representing a mild contraction of 1.5% compared to the previous year-
end. The Bank registered a marked improvement in its deposit profile,
with core deposits comprising current and savings account balances
accounting for 43.3% of total customer deposits as at 2009 year-end,
significantly higher than the 22.2% at the previous year-end and
contributing to more effective funding cost control by the Bank.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Asset Quality Indicators

Faced with fast-changing economic environment, the Bank continued to
adopt stringent measures to manage its asset quality. During the year, it
has successfully resolved a legacy impaired loan that occurred several
years ago, helping to lower the impaired loans ratio to 1.81% which is not
only below the 2008 year-end level but also showed significant
improvement as compared to the 2.49% as at end-June 2009. CBI also
made improvements in other asset quality indicators during the year. Its
collective assessment coverage and loan loss coverage improved by 11
basis points and 12.3 percentage points to 0.43% and 47.3% respectively.
The Bank's residential mortgage delinquency ratio further improved from
0.03% at the end of 2008 to nil at the end of 2009. This compared
favourably to the industry average of 0.03% as announced by the HKMA.

Financial Position

The Bank’s capital adequacy ratio benefited from the HK$1.7 billion capital
injection by its parent CIFH to reach 16.4% as at the end of December
2009. This represented a significant improvement by 1.7 percentage
points compared to the previous year-end. Its core capital adequacy ratio
improved by 2.3 percentage points to 11.9%. Not only has this
strengthened the Bank’s ability to renew its drive to grow its loan portfolio,
it also gives the Bank the necessary foundation to pursue new business
development in Asia in future. Meanwhile, with improving market liquidity
coupled with the Bank's deposit campaigns and active asset and liability
management programmes, its average liquidity ratio and loans to deposits
ratio stood at the healthy levels of 48.8% and 74.8% respectively as at the
end of December 2009.

hERITE B & Z R X CBI's Key Financial Ratios
—EEhE ZEENEF
+=A=+-8 +=A=+-¢
31 December 31 December
2009 2008
B AT L E Capital adequacy 16.4% 14.7%
ZOE AR B E Core capital adequacy 11.9% 9.6%
FHREE R E Average liquidity 48.8% 37.0%
B X Loans to deposits 74.8% 74.6%
BEREHEEREL X Loans to total assets 61.0% 60.9%
AR R = Impaired loans 1.81% 1.89%
BEXR Coverage* 48.5% 81.2%
f% AEEBEEZX Loan loss coverage 47.3% 35.0%
RABBEEEE X Collective assessment coverage 0.43% 0.32%
ARG R E R X Mainland loans to total customer advances 17.2% 16.5%

* ﬁiﬁﬂ%ﬂ%%ﬂﬁﬂ@ B OB EE R M
Z MR AR B & KA R

RERITERERAE
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

*  Calculated by dividing the sum of individually assessed impairment allowances
and collateral of impaired loans by the gross impaired loans
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Business Development

Retail Banking Group (“RBG")

Notwithstanding the challenges amidst market uncertainties and
increased regulatory requirements, RBG continued its strong revenue
generating capability. With the successful roll-out of various deposit and
mortgage initiatives to meet clients’ needs, both deposits and loans grew
by 7.3% year-on-year to HK$48.8 billion and HK$27.0 billion respectively.
Together with the favourable Prime-HIBOR gap, net interest income
recorded a 20.0% year-on-year growth to HK$759 million, which offset a
23.9% drop in wealth management income. As a result, operating income
edged up 2.0% to HK$1,091 million during the year.

The continuous focus on operating efficiency paid off with a 10% year-on-
year drop in recurring operating expense. However, the aggregate
expense was increased by 34.8% year-on-year to HK$960 million, mainly
due to the amount payable to resolving customer claims relating to
Lehman Brothers-related products. With the prudent lending approach
adopted over the years, credit cost was successfully contained at a
relatively low level of 24 basis points. As a result of higher operating
expenses, net profit before tax fell by 78.2% year-on-year to HK$66 million.

RBG steadily continued its efforts in growing CITICfirst, its private wealth
management franchise, during the year. An upgraded wealth
management process was put in place to enhance customers’
understanding of their own risk appetite and wealth objectives to derive
appropriate wealth management strategy. This successfully attracted new
customers and deepened relationship with existing customers,
complemented by the launch of special offers and financial solutions. Its
total number of customers thus grew by 8.1% since the end of 2008 to
exceed the 14,800 mark. Meanwhile, total customer assets under
management grew by 15.7% compared to last year to reach HK$43 billion.
CITICfirst's solution-based approach will continue to underpin the future
focus for further upgrade of RBG's wealth management platform.

“ERNFER
Annual Report 2009

015



016

ERITE

BAZZEENFTEF 2ERTHERER
HRE BESEITLEEREERNFTEE
BAFR FRFEEZHFENS BEFFF
BWABIENESNTHEEELHNELT 5
EHEEMEREREE REKESH A RH
TEIAZHET FANBRAREAEF S
EZERAERTEtEERA L XHLERAERSF
SH0%ETNE-_FT—BEE BT - MLE
EXHMIESRSEE MalafliEF EAS44%E
AEATRNEEA L EHRBLOERTI
EEBEFBRERLCEZLEFPHRYE  B&
HETTREB A AR AT 8 A M B A 2 & U 22 3 B
EIEEEM K -

FRNLERITBEERNELAERE ST
BEE - FEFHBEAMBERAR-E
ZNFEBMUE—RBATEHEE ST &
RERKEBEBEIFNNESRER  EA# L
ERERTHINEZIEBRAKRT THRenE
ATABEAL EBEEBTEHEENERHM
ERMEFPREBVAGFTEN TR THHE
HEKRALA BHRBEZERATERHD
Al

—EENFEERTBE - THEEHRRL
HEARERITZEAMNAE (FERK T HEZE
B )BMNEPIBRREEAEMTEINE
EBFe UERAPERTEFRERHESEEE
TE UmetfMnEIGHEFTE WTE
ERFHERRKERRR - EATT PERTT
R HINRITHEETE - BRRITH
EBEETRRANER URBIHHEE
TIZRWMUERTPNBEMEHEENS £
WIEAEENEFEAEREE -

RERITERERA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Wholesale Banking Group (“WBG”")

WBG made a strong business turnaround in the second half of 2009. With
the positive effect of loan pricing adjustments, net interest margin
continued to improve throughout the year, resulting in net interest
income reaching a new high of HK$864 million. Thanks to the innovation
and execution capabilities of the Structured Finance and Syndication
team, non-interest income also reached a record HKS557 million. As a
result, operating income rose by 39.7% to HK$1,421 million. With well-
managed operating expenses, net profit before tax increased by 54.4% to
HK$596 million. All these highlighted the success of WBG in strengthening
its core customer services, rigorous risk-based loan pricing, stringent cost
management, and enhanced risk management standards.

WBG continued to focus on enhancing its product capabilities during the
year. Non-lending fee and commission income rose by 29% to HK$164
million. With slower trade activities resulted from the economic downturn,
WBG's bills commission registered an 8% year-on-year decline to HK$56
million. This shortfall was more than offset by increased treasury-related
income attributable to continued investments in product development
and the continuous pursuit of appropriate solutions for customers.

Deepening collaboration with CNCB was another key focus in 2009. (Also
see section on China Banking.) WBG endeavoured to build an integrated
platform between the two banks and provide value-added financial
solutions to better serve CNCB's offshore customers. The efforts generated
encouraging results. For the collaboration among the Bank, CNCB and
BBVA, WBG solidified the working model by increasing the depth and
frequency of discussions among them and establishing joint marketing
plans to develop key strategic customers.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

China Banking

Greater progress was made in the Bank's strategic collaboration with CNCB
in 2009, uninterrupted by the impact of the financial crisis. Their closer
shareholding relationship opened further the opportunities to expand the
width and depth of collaboration. The Bank extended cooperation to
more CNCB branches, spanning across most of CNCB's major geographical
coverage in Mainland China. A series of new business cooperation
initiatives were successfully introduced during the year, including RMB
trade settlement programme, structured financing, pre-Initial Public
Offering financing, offshore account opening, i-banking services and
offshore bill operation and services. In a very positive development, the
Bank successfully delivered RMB-related currency hedging solutions to a
large number of CNCB customers, with both transaction volume and profit
from RMB non-deliverable forward contracts reaching a historic high in
2009.

To fuel collaboration with CITIC Group subsidiaries” downstream and
upstream businesses and explore opportunities with CITIC Group-affiliated
infrastructure, energy and manufacturing firms, a Group Partners Business
Development Office was established in 2009. The new establishment is
set to proceed with its business development plan and related
infrastructure in 2010.

CITIC Ka Wah Bank (China) Limited ("CKWB China") continued to serve as
the onshore collaboration platform with CNCB and BBVA, capitalising on
its status as a foreign bank in Mainland China. It greatly enhanced the
efficiency in the implementation of the collaboration strategy and also
referred a large number of outbound business deals to the Bank’'s Hong
Kong business teams. CKWB China, incorporated in April 2008, managed
to post an encouraging performance in its first full-year operation in 2009
amidst difficult economic conditions, far exceeding its original target.

Treasury and Markets Group (“TMG")

Driven by growth in both its customer-driven revenues and investment
returns, TMG registered HK$318 million in net profit before tax in 2009, in
contrast to its net loss of HK$590 million last year which was due to SIV-
related write-downs.

Leveraging on the rebound of the financial markets from their lows, TMG
expanded its professional talent base to strengthen its product
development and sales capabilities. The launch of a number of new
equity, foreign currency or interest rate-linked products enabled TMG to
deepen its cross-selling efforts with both WBG and RBG, resulting in an
increase in related income by 74.0% year-on-year to HK$83 million.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

In the area of central treasury management, reduced funding cost as a
result of the low interest rate environment helped to lift the performance
of the Bank's available-for-sale (“AFS”) investment securities portfolio.
Meanwhile, TMG took advantage of market conditions to sell part of its
AFS portfolio and captured a profit of HK$55 million. Concurrently, TMG
worked closely with the Risk Management Group to upgrade its risk
management methodologies and implemented new investment
guidelines in November 2009 for its bond portfolio. The initiatives are
designed to ensure that the market risk profiles of the Bank’s investment
portfolios are managed within management defined risk parameters.

Risk Management

Despite improved global market activity and sentiment, economic
recovery in 2009 was slow and sporadic. Amidst this turbulent economic
environment, the Risk Management Group proactively focused efforts in
tightening underwriting standards, implementing rigorous risk reviews,
managing vulnerable portfolios and developing critical risk tools including
the risk-based pricing model and economic capital measurements.

The Bank has been keen to leverage on the world-class risk management
capabilities of its strategic shareholder, BBVA to accelerate development of
its risk management area. In January 2009, the Bank appointed a new
Director of Risks from BBVA to lead the immediate transfer of skill sets and
best practices from BBVA. By the end of the first quarter of 2009, a
comprehensive Risk Management Plan ("RMP") was put in place with the
primary goal of actively integrating the expertise of BBVA to upgrade and
promote ongoing enhancement of the Bank’s risk infrastructure and
management.

The ultimate objective of the RMP is to create a world-class risk
infrastructure to identify, quantify, monitor and mitigate the risks of the
Bank and facilitate value creation whilst preserving financial strength. The
RMP is focused on ensuring that appropriate tools, methodologies and
processes are in place in key risk areas to meet the requirements of the
New Basel Accord (“Basel ") on risk management. Of the numerous
projects, key initiatives include the development of appropriate risk-based
pricing models, economic capital measurements, refinement of the Bank’s
investment strategy in line with the Bank’s defined market risk appetite
and risk review disciplines to name a few. The roll-out of these initiatives
has also led to substantial enhancements, particularly in the credit risk and
market risk management areas.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

In the area of corporate governance, the Credit and Risk Management
Committee is empowered by the Board to oversee and approve the
strategies, risk systems, policies and exposures of the Bank. The prime
responsibility of the Director of Risks is to ensure that an effective risk
control framework and processes are in place to align with the Bank's
strategies.

The Bank's risk policies and procedures are subject to a high degree of
oversight and they provide guidance to ensure that all types of risks are
systematically identified, quantified, monitored and necessary mitigation
plans are put in place. In addition, the internal Audit Group conducts
regular independent reviews of the Bank's risk management practices to
ensure compliance with internal policies as well as regulatory
requirements.

Established comprehensive policies and procedures are in place to identify
and analyse the risks to which the Bank is exposed, set appropriate risk
control limits, monitor risks and limits continually by means of reliable and
up-to-date management and information systems. The Bank continually
modifies and enhances its risk management frameworks and infrastructure
in line with the market, product offering and international best practices.

The Bank's market risk appetite is controlled through a well-defined limit-
setting process. Rigorous risk controls are in place, and market risk limits
are monitored daily. Stress testing is performed regularly and monitored
for rare but plausible events. Front line businesses and the market risk
department interact closely to proactively review limits arising from
strategic changes.

The strategic collaboration among the Bank, CNCB and BBVA is well
underway with substantial focus on achieving synergies in the risk
management area. The ongoing risk knowledge sharing and skills transfer
has contributed significantly to the establishment of a more advanced risk
management model and best practices. This formidable alliance has
enabled the Bank to better capture opportunities from the growing
economic pre-eminence of the Greater China and Asian region.

The Bank has adopted the standardised approach for credit risk and
market risk, and the basic indicator approach for operational risk.
Accordingly, the Bank has overhauled its systems and controls in order to
meet the standards required for these approaches. Based on the Basel Il
framework, the Bank has developed the risk-based pricing model and
economic capital measurement tool for more effective capital
management to cater to the Bank’s strategic decisions and future growth.
The concept of economic capital is a very significant factor in evaluation of
a bank’s risk profile and can provide a more accurate calculation of risk-
weighted return for different areas in a bank.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Risk management remains a fundamental and integral part of the Bank’s
business activities and will continue to be a priority in 2010 and
subsequent years. The Bank will continue to enhance its risk management
practices and capabilities to respond effectively and coherently in different
stressed scenarios, particularly given the persisting climate of economic
uncertainties.

Human Resources Development

In the year 2009, the Bank's competent and motivated workforce played a
key role to enable the Bank to weather the different challenges resulting
from the financial crisis and emerged with such strong business results.

The recruitment and nurturing for the best talents continued in order to
prepare the Bank for its strategic expansion. Among them, the new Head
of Wholesale Banking Group ("WBG"), Mr. Nick Huang joined in November
2009 to take over from Mr. Roger Spyer who retired after a successful
career with the Bank; and, in April 2010, Mr Archie Tsim was appointed
Director of Finance and Corporate Planning.

Dedication and teamwork, two of the strengths of the CBI workforce,
served the Bank well in the handling of the Lehman Brothers Minibond
fall-out. A special taskforce was rapidly established with the staff putting
in extra effort to resolve customer issues with professionalism and
accuracy.

To embed and refresh the Bank’s core values, a new training programme
entitled “IREADY" workshop was developed and rolled out to all staff
members. This innovative and effective programme designed to assist the
Bank and its staff in building a desired organisational culture also won an
industry training award at “The Best Practice Financial Services Award
2009". Overall, an average of five training days per staff member was
attained in 2009. Building people, building team remained a core focus
for the Bank.

A good variety of staff communications forums were held during the
course of the year to enable the Bank to share its strategic direction, plans
and achievements with staff members and to obtain direct feedback from
them. The Bank also organised and hosted “Team Power Olympics”, a
series of sporting events for staff to encourage a competitive yet
collaborative working culture and to promote work-life balance.

With the solid talent base created and nurtured by CITIC Bank
International, it will enable the Bank to seize opportunities as they arise
with timely execution of its business strategies and continue to deliver
excellent results.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Future Outlook

Hong Kong's economy, backed by its sound and solid fundamentals,
emerged from the financial crisis without serious mishap. Bolstered by the
central government’s favourable policies, Hong Kong is embracing
tremendous growth opportunities with its development as an offshore
RMB centre and growing economic integration with the Greater Pearl
River Delta Region.

Following the completion of CNCB's stake acquisition in CIFH, the Bank's
renaming as CITIC Bank International Limited marks the integration of
CITIC Group's commercial banking businesses. As the external business
environment continues to improve and with its profitability back on track
and capital position enhanced following the capital injection by CIFH, the
Bank will aim to realise its role as CNCB's platform to pursue international
expansion. Possible expansion opportunities in the near term include
Singapore, Australia and Taiwan.

Looking ahead, the Bank will pick up the pace of its business development
by growing its high quality loan portfolio and upgrading its RMB product
capabilities to capture the opportunities arising from Hong Kong’s role as
an offshore RMB centre. With an enhanced shareholding relationship, the
collaboration with CNCB will be further deepened to consolidate the
collective advantages which will be complemented by positive synergy
effect from the alliance with their strategic shareholder, BBVA. CITIC Bank
International will continue to strive to deliver the best-in-class services for
customers with its vision to become the “China Bank of Choice”.
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Retail Banking Group
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KF

Operating income managed to surpass 2008 level
despite difficult operating environment

BB-&8NTNEA

CITICfirst EF ABIER81%E
EEEFEEHABEEN =1TEBT  R157%

CITICfirst customers grew by 8.1% to over 14,800 whilst
its total customer assets under management grew by
15.7% to HK$43 billion

2009 was a real test for the retail banking sector in Hong Kong. The
lingering outcry from investors triggered by the collapse of Lehman
Brothers coupled with a deteriorating credit market in the early part of
the year exerted tremendous pressure on the operating environment.
Amidst these unprecedented challenges, CITIC Bank International
Limited's (“CBI" or the “Bank”) Retail Banking Group (“RBG") was steadfast
in its commitment to address customers’ needs and concerns. The
solid foundation CITICfirst, CBI's wealth management franchise, built
over the years and its prudent lending policy helped to weather these
challenges. RBG's revenue regained momentum in the second half of
the year. Healthy growth in retail deposits and loan assets, both at 7.3%,
and the widened Prime-HIBOR gap contributed to a 20.0% increase in net
interest income. This has more than offset the 23.9% decline in wealth
management fee income and drove full year operating income to surpass
the 2008 level.

Even though RBG's revenue generating capability was undiminished, the
aggregate expense was significantly increased, mainly due to the amount
payable to resolving customer claims relating to Lehman Brothers-related
products. In the face of severe business conditions, profit before tax fell by
78.2% to HK$66 million. However, the valuable experiences gained during
this watershed year will strengthen RBG's fundamentals and enhance its
ability to sustain long-term growth.
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Strengthening the Retail Franchise

The effects of the financial tsunami were far-reaching. Yet the event
presented an opportunity for the wealth management sector to upgrade
its platform and RBG proactively embraced the regulatory changes
imposed on the industry. New regulatory compliant procedures and
control mechanisms, with a special focus on helping customers to better
manage their portfolio with a balance in risk, were introduced without
compromising on efficiency. For the wealth management business,
the new standards offer better protection to both customers and the
operating environment.

Forging ahead in search of innovative product solutions to meet
customers’ needs has enabled RBG to grow its franchise even at a time of
extreme market volatility. RBG continued to diversify its product portfolio
with the introduction of seven new products during the year, ranging
from “Flexible Time Deposits”, interest rate-linked structured deposits and
bonds to a suite of new insurance products, most of which offered simple
yield-enhancing solutions.

CITICfirst Captures Growth Opportunities

RBG continued to invest in upgrading the servicing platform for CITICfirst,
its signature private wealth management franchise, aimed at the affluent
segment. The Bank now has 15 CITICfirst Centres across the territory
and sales and service support increased by 31.0% over the year. Total
number of customers grew by 8.1% from 2008 year-end to over 14,800
with the majority of the new customers having been referred by existing
customers. Meanwhile, total customer assets under management grew by
15.7% compared to 2008 year-end to HK$43 billion.

On 31 July 2009, CITICfirst received the “Wealth Management Service
Award” from local finance magazine Capital Weekly in its “Service
Awards 2009". RBG's pool of qualified wealth management talents were
also awarded a total of six Financial Planner Awards in 2009, one Gold,
two Silver, two Merit and the “Best Financial Proposal Award” from the
“Outstanding Financial Management Planner Award”, organised by the
Hong Kong Institute of Bankers. These achievements have enabled
CITICfirst to entrench its market position as “a new standard in private
wealth management” while its on-going success ensures long-term
growth is sustained.

—EZNEER
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Review of Operations

Asset Quality Stabilised, Financial Position Strengthened

During the year, RBG successfully steered towards a balanced growth of
7.3% in both deposits and loans and helped maintain the strength of the
Bank's financial position.

In the extremely low interest rate environment, RBG rolled out a number
of innovative deposit products of different maturity and features offering
more yield-enhancing solutions to customers. Customers responded
well to the “Flexible HKD and RMB Time Deposits” which offered the dual
benefits of high interest rates and the flexibility to make early withdrawal
of deposits. In addition to driving retail deposits up by 7.3% to HK$48.8
billion, the products also helped strengthen the Bank's balance sheet
with longer-term funding. At the same time, these efforts generated
encouraging growth in asset under management for CITICfirst.

Although early signs of economic recovery surfaced during the second half
of the year, RBG continued with its prudent lending policy whilst reaching
out to its target segment with financing needs. Effort was focused on
growing residential mortgage and lending to small- to medium-sized
enterprises (“SMEs") with collaterals and those under the Government’s
Special Loan Guarantee Scheme. This led to an accelerated growth in
retail loan balance from flat growth at mid-year to 7.3% for the full year,
with outstanding balance reaching HKS27 billion as at year-end 2009.
Rigorous risk management disciplines underpinned RBG's loan growth. As
a result, loan impairment losses remained low at 24 basis points during the
year and its residential mortgage delinquency ratio remained lower than
the industry benchmark provided by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority.

RBG's focus on helping SMEs with core banking relationships with the
Bank ride out the challenging economic situation also paid off. As the
market situation stabilised, loan demand from SMEs who survived the
financial tsunami also picked up, which bodes well for RBG's SME lending
business in 2010.

In consumer finance, RBG's strategy was firmly focused on the affluent
segment. A revamped credit card proposition with transparent and direct
cash rebate mechanisms proved well-suited to the needs of top spenders.
The new acquisition strategy together with CITICfirst's customer in-flow
also resulted in the growth of its platinum credit card base. For the mass
customer card base, RBG worked with Risk Management Group at the
start of 2009 to closely monitor its portfolio. Special attention was given
to bankruptcy and delinquency trends in order to keep its credit costs
at a reasonable level. As a result, net charge-off ratio of the Bank's card
business was contained and remained stable throughout the year.
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Retail Banking Group
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2010 Outlook

Looking towards 2010, there is growing consensus that the global
economy and financial markets are on the mend, although the pace of
recovery remains uncertain. As the US economy remains relatively weak,
the low interest rate environment in Hong Kong may prevail for much
of 2010, supporting a favourable Prime-HIBOR condition. The market
landscape continues to change drastically and RBG pledges to stand by
its customers to ensure their needs and goals are met. Underlining the
confidence customers have in CBI, RBG is committed to enhancing its
service model of revenue growth, strict cost discipline and prudent risk
management.

In recent years, the centre of economic power has been shifting towards
China, and the nation’s wealth class is expected to continue to grow
exponentially. Against this backdrop and as an integral part of the China
CITIC Bank (“CNCB") family, CBI is ideally positioned to build on and draw
synergies from an integrated wealth management platform under a
united CITIC brand.

As CBI gears up to become the regional commercial banking platform for
its alliance with CNCB and Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, priority will be
given to building a strong and integrated wealth management platform to
service the affluent segment in Greater China and Asia. Having established
a solid foundation, RBG is confident and well-placed to continue its efforts
in setting new standards for wealth management services in the region.

—EZNEER
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Wholesale Banking Group

BADRRI KIEIEN544% ZREBATAEEET
Profit before tax surged by 54.4% to HK$596 million

FERBEARAKE  RREFERITIBEPHEERNTS
[ - BEWAZTEWER

Strong growth in non-lending fees demonstrated that
Wholesale Banking Group (“WBG”) was on the right
track in diversifying its revenue sources

Through the difficult times in 2009, WBG stayed the course and remained
firmly focused on the needs of its clients. Priority was given to protecting
business fundamentals by tightening its portfolio and risk management
disciplines, along with enhanced product competences and strengthened
collaboration with China CITIC Bank ("CNCB"). These all proved to be
effective in driving a 39.7% year-on-year growth in revenue to HKS$1,421
million. Notwithstanding the modest growth of 3.2% in loan assets, both
net interest income and non-interest income posted record highs of
HK$864 million and HK$557 million respectively. Coupled with disciplined
cost control, WBG's profit before tax surged by 54.4% to HK$596 million in
2000.

Focused Business Development

WBG demonstrated partnership and teamwork in adversity and responded
well to challenges. To capture new business opportunities arising from
an improved business outlook, Hong Kong and Multinational Corporates
and Commercial Banking teams were brought under the management
of a newly created Corporate Banking (Hong Kong) department. This re-
alignment would lay down the foundation for building a stronger and all-
rounded corporate banking business.

The three Centres of Excellence, established over the past three years,
continued to prove to be of great value to CITIC Bank International Limited
("CBI" or the “Bank”). Amid a stagnant syndication market situation, the
Structured Finance and Syndication team has demonstrated its investment
banking capabilities by providing structuring support on a number of
client deals during the year.
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The Commercial Real Estate and Project Finance team provided customers
with expert advice and helped some customers restructure existing
facilities to ride out the financial storm. Non-interest income achieved a
significant growth compared to 2008. The commercial real estate business
was extremely important to the Bank in China. Hence, close collaboration
with CNCB was critical to the development of new client relationships in
China.

19%

The International Banking and Financial Institutions team continued
to solidify the Bank’s corresponding relationships with other financial
institutions, capturing opportunities in short-term trade and risk
participations. In spite of the economic turbulence during the first half of
2009, the team achieved an encouraging upswing in revenue over 2008.

Prudent Risk Practice

In response to the economic challenges, WBG tightened its risk standards,
and its determination to withstand the credit crisis paid off as non-
performing loans were contained within expected levels. Active portfolio
stress tests were conducted throughout the year, with targeted testing to
uncover potential credit issues.

Marketing teams followed through the directives set in 2008 to pursue
quality opportunities in the right sectors and at the right pricing. In April
2009, WBG formally implemented risk-based pricing aimed to achieve a
healthy balance between risk and return in the portfolio. With ongoing
repricing efforts, net loan interest margin improved slightly from 2008.

In the last quarter of 2009, WBG strengthened the underwriting standards
for its target markets in order to provide a clearly defined and articulated
risk appetite and business strategy for each of the marketing teams. These
standards enable relationship managers to be more focused on their
respective market segments.

09 864 1421
+39.7%
08 641 376 1,017
+5.8%
7 636 32> 961 B oERemA
+16.7% / Net Interest Income
i LI
06 543 280 823 Nonl—in\ere)\stlncome
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Strengthened Product Capabilities

WBG continued to focus on enhancing product capability during the year.
The strong growth in non-lending fees and commissions demonstrated
that WBG was on the right track in diversifying its revenue sources. The
strategy to develop a broad range of products would be a key to WBG's
stability in future revenue growth and widening customer base.

With a dedicated treasury sales force focusing on new marketing
initiatives, the success in cross-selling led to continued growth in treasury
income, which more than offset the drop in bills commission resulted
from a decline in international trade flow.

A project task force was established to review WBG's Transaction Banking
capabilities and develop a mid- to long-term strategy. In addition to
product development, another objective of the task force was to improve
the Bank’s delivery platform for future business growth and regional
expansion.

With preparatory work on RMB cross-border trade settlement business in
the first half of 2009, the Bank, in cooperation with CNCB, was one of the
forerunners in driving the completion of a transaction in early July 2009,
immediately after the Hong Kong Monetary Authority’s announcements
to launch the programme. This demonstrated WBG's quick response to
market developments and ongoing commitment to improving its services
to customers with China's onshore and offshore business needs.

CBI-CNCB Connectivity

Solid and sustained business interactions with CNCB drove the
development of the collaboration model to the next level. During the
year, WBG maintained a strong pipeline of cross-referrals and joint deal
participations with CNCB.

Through the established exchange channels, WBG worked closely with
different CNCB branches to explore new business opportunities, and jointly
developed customised, cross-border products for strategic customers.
These products included back-to-back non-deliverable forwards, RMB
cross-border trade settlement and offshore accounts.

Additionally, WBG actively partnered with CNCB on joint marketing
activities and conducted joint due diligence on prospective borrowers.
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2010 Outlook

Global economic outlook for 2010 remains, in general, conservative yet
optimistic. Signs of recovery have emerged albeit at a slow pace and
return to growth is likely to be disparate in different regions and industries.
Two observations from the global credit crisis underscore WBG's strategy
for 2010: firstly, China continues to be the engine for recovery in Asia; and
secondly, fee-based products, specifically trade and cash management,
will be essential to sustain growth at a time of declining business.

In view of the above, the expansion of revenue streams from fee-based
products and the strengthening of regional capabilities will be priorities
for WBG in 2010. Investments will continue to be made to develop more
advanced products and customised solutions to maximise cross-selling
opportunities.

The continued success of WBG depends upon having the right staff to
execute the strategies, and nurturing talents for today and future growth
is vital. Training programmes will be developed to keep sales and product
staff informed of up-to-date market information. Also, regular exchanges
with CNCB and Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria (“BBVA”) will be put in
place to improve communication and facilitate cooperation.

Riding on the success from working with several CNCB branches in
2009, WBG will endeavor to extend the working network to cover more
CNCB branches to bring the collaboration to next level. WBG also sees
the importance of serving the offshore banking needs of CITIC Group
companies and their business partners, and will therefore work closely
with the new Group Partners Business Development Office established in
late 2009 under the Bank’s China Banking Group.

Finally, WBG plays an important role in realising CNCB's vision to
develop its commercial banking network internationally and expand
to international financial centres. Although the financial tsunami has
slowed down the pace of regional expansion, the recent turnaround in
the economy presents an opportune time to resume the groundwork
in full gear. This demonstrates WBG's commitment to be the engine for
regional expansion in Asia. With a strong track record and support from
parents, CNCB and BBVA, WBG is confident that it is well-placed to capture
the considerable opportunities arising from the growing economic pre-
eminence of the Asia region and on track to support the Bank’s vision to
become the “China Bank of Choice” in Asia.

—ERNFER
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Review of Operations

Treasury and Markets Group
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Total operating income reached a record high of
HK$417 million whilst profit before tax registered at
HK$318 million

IREGRRITHREBERTBEMEETEFIXE
& FEHHEBEBALA740%ENT=EESBT
Strengthened cross-selling with Wholesale Banking
Group (“WBG") and Retail Banking Group (“RBG”)
customers resulted in a 74.0% growth in client-driven
revenue to HK$83 million

The unprecedented move in concert by governments and central banks
around the world to take aggressive fiscal and monetary measures
proved to be effective in halting economic downward spiral in 2009 and
rebuilding confidence in financial systems. China emerged as one of the
major economic powerhouses in the world, demonstrating its outstanding
resilience and leading the way out of the financial tsunami by making use
of its considerable fiscal spending power and policy flexibility. Both credit
and equity markets around the world have exhibited a V-shaped rebound
since they bottomed out in March 2009. Coupled with successful cross-
selling efforts with WBG and RBG and strong client referral from CITIC
Group and China CITIC Bank (“CNCB"), Treasury and Markets Group ("TMG")
reported remarkable results in 2009. Total operating income reached a
record high of HK$417 million whilst profit before tax registered at HK$318
million in 2009, in contrast to a loss of HK$590 million in 2008 which was
due to structured investment vehicle (“SIV") related write-downs.
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With a HK$1.7 billion capital injection by CITIC Bank International Limited's
("CBI" or the "Bank”) parent, CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited
("CIFH"), which was completed in June 2009, the consolidated capital
adequacy ratio ("CAR”") of the Bank improved significantly to 16.4% at
the end of 2009. Its core CAR was also increased to 11.9%, from 9.6% at
year-end of 2008. This capital injection was part of the undertaking by
CITIC Group and Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria to support the Bank’s
future development at the time of CIFH’s privatisation in November
2008. A strengthened core capital base allowed the Bank to navigate
the economic and regulatory environment and seize business expansion
opportunities that align with its strategy. To pave the way for economic
capital allocation and equip the Bank with new capital management tools,
risk-based performance measurements were introduced at a preliminary
stage.

Ongoing sound liquidity management remained vital after the financial
crisis. Even though a US$300 million five-year fixed-rate senior debt
matured in November 2009 without replacement, TMG worked diligently
with WBG and RBG to bolster the Bank's customer deposit base via a series
of corporate and retail deposit acquisition campaigns throughout the
year. RBG solicited HK$2.3 billion yield-enhanced long-term deposit and
TMG replenished the matured Certificate of Deposits at a very low cost,
resulting in a funding cost saving of 159 basis points. In 2009, although
the deposit balance remained unchanged as in the previous year, the
maturity tenor was substantially improved and more than half of fixed
deposits have maturity over one month. All these measures not only
safeguarded the Bank’s liquidity position but also successfully improved
the average liquidity ratio from 37.0% in 2008 to 48.8% in 2009.
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Review of Operations

TMG continued to work closely with WBG and RBG in cross-selling treasury
products for both yield enhancement and hedging purposes. A sales
task force for WBG clients was established in the second quarter of 2009,
allowing TMG to realign its marketing strategy and focus marketing efforts
on high potential corporate customers. This contributed to the great
success in driving an 87.7% year-on-year growth in sales revenue from
WBG clients to HK$64 million, a new record since the Treasury Marketing
Team was set up in 2005. Together with strong sales revenue from RBG
customers, total client-driven revenue reached HKS$83 million in 2009,
representing a 74.0% growth over 2008.

Leveraging the strong rebound of the financial markets in 2009,
TMG expanded its professional talent base to strengthen its product
development and sales capabilities. The launch of a number of new equity
or foreign currency-linked products by the structuring team enabled
TMG to capture the strong rallies of both equity and foreign exchange
markets by fulfilling customers’ needs in a timely manner. In a persistent
low-interest rate environment, the successful launch of a variety of yield-
enhancing deposit products to retail customers during the year increased
the Bank’s customer deposit base and improved its loan-to-deposit ratio.

Above all, TMG played a strategic and active role in the development of
new products, markets and business initiatives. Among the eight RMB
bonds issued in Hong Kong for 2009, the Bank acted as a placement bank
and market maker for five issues. During the year, TMG provided a total of
HK$23 billion funding to non-bank financial institution customers under
WBG for Initial Public Offering financing.

Amidst the market uncertainties, most notably in the first half of 2009, TMG
expended tremendous effort in managing the Bank’s surplus liquidity.
With the extremely low interest rate environment throughout 2009, the
Bank was able to capture higher interest margin by purchasing more fixed-
rate bonds in its fixed-income available-for-sale (“AFS”) securities portfolio.
At the same time, in anticipation of rising bond prices in response to
narrowing credit spreads in the stabilising financial markets, TMG took
advantage of market conditions and sold part of its AFS securities portfolio
at a respectable profit. TMG reaped a record high revenue of HK$390
million from managing the Bank’s surplus funds in 2009, of which HK$55
million resulted from disposal gains of part of the AFS securities portfolio.
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Treasury and Markets Group

TMG also worked closely with the Risk Management Group to upgrade
its risk management procedures. The investment guideline, re-drawn in
November 2009 with the objective of ensuring that the market risk profiles
of the Bank’s investment portfolios are within management defined risk
parameters, provided clear and detailed guidelines on approved types of
securities investments, their maturity and ratings requirements.

The quality of the Bank's fixed income portfolio continues to be
maintained at a high standard. As at year-end of 2009, it comprised of
high quality bonds with 84.7% rated A- or above. Fixed-rate and floating-
rate bonds accounted for 74.3% and 25.7% of the portfolio respectively, of
which average tenor for fixed-rate bonds was eight months. In general,
the maturity tenor would not exceed seven years with the exception of
some perpetual bonds.

In the aftermath of the financial tsunami, the global economy has been
caught in a dilemma. An early exit from the monetary and fiscal stimulus
packages by central banks may trigger a relapse; however, to exit too late
may result in hyper-inflation and heightened risk of asset price bubbles. In
any event, 2010 will be another challenging year.

In an uncertain operating environment, TMG will continue to invest in
its system, infrastructure and professional talents and solidify its earning
power. Effort will be placed in dovetailing treasury solutions with WBG
client portfolio and to derive fee income flow from them through
maximising global markets potential. With the excellent potential from
CITIC Group and CNCB's vast client base and the anticipated wave of
activities from China, TMG is committed to enhancing its capabilities and
expanding its client reach by offering “one-stop” financial solutions to
meet their needs. Following a number of successful launches in 2009, the
TMG structuring team will remain focused on expanding its product suite
to better meet the needs of both WBG and RBG clients. Particular focus
will be placed on offering a wide range of RMB-related products to better
equip CBI to becoming the clients’ “China Bank of Choice”. With a sound
strategy and diligent efforts, TMG is cautiously optimistic that 2010 will be
another rewarding year.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

ETEIBRBNTEHEZTHENE

Volunteer service hours reached 9,405

BEEELEREEEMERBHS R BREFRRIER
Awarded the “Caring Company Logo” by the Hong Kong
Council of Social Service for the seventh consecutive year

BEEF_FRHERANERIEDGERSR

Awarded Gold Certificate by the Social Welfare
Department’s Volunteer Movement for the second
consecutive year

CITIC Bank International Limited (“CBI” or the “Bank”) recognises its role as
part of the social fabric of Hong Kong, and actively participates in a broad
range of Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR") initiatives as a means to
give back and contribute to the well-being of the community it serves.

In 2009, the Bank continued to uphold its CSR commitment along three
key themes — nurturing youths to become future leaders and enhancing
the quality of education for underprivileged children, building harmonious
relationship with the environment, and caring for underprivileged
communities.

CBI treats CSR as part of its core business that will help us accomplish
sustainable business success. It thus encourages broad-based staff
participation in all its sustainability and community initiatives. During the
year, a total of 9,405 volunteer service hours were logged for its activities in
Hong Kong alone, representing an average of over six volunteer service
hours per staff. Total donations and spending in CSR projects amounted
to some HK$1.5 million.

Leadership Development and Education

A strong supporter to develop and nurture human capital through
thought-provoking education, CBI remained focus in its efforts on
enhancing the quality of education for children from families below
poverty line as an important means to help relieve inter-generational
penury issues.

Key initiative in this area was the Bank's repeated sponsorship for “CBI
Knowledge Angel Project” for the second consecutive year. Once again,
the Bank received matched funding from the Social Welfare Department’s
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“Partnership Fund for the Disadvantaged”to run the initiative. This HK$1.2
million programme aims to alleviate the pressure of daily homework
supervision for low-educated parents with financial problems through the
provision of free tutorial classes to 240 primary school students in the
2009/10 school year. The programme will also include an English Week
that aims to raise students’interest in learning English and offer
sponsorships to outstanding students to broaden their exposure to extra-
curricular activities during the summer holiday period.

The Bank also contributed to the Community Chest’s “Corporate and
Employee Contribution Programme 2008/09" to benefit the youth
leadership programmes organised by its member agencies.

Environmental Awareness and Sustainability

Climate change is widely recognised as one of the greatest global
challenges. CBIis mindful of its far-reaching implications for the
environment, for people, and for the economy - of which the Bank is a
part. Its green programmes are guided by the four key principles of its
environmental pledge: Energy Efficiency, Resource Efficiency, Ethical Code
of Conduct and Commitment to the Promotion of Green Awareness, with
the objective to promote environmental protection awareness amongst
its staff and the general public of Hong Kong.

CBI strongly believes that education is the single most effective means to
raise green awareness, especially among the younger generation.
Following the successful launch of the green educational programme
entitled "Alleviate Global Warming: 21 Things We Can Do" among local
schools in 2008, the Bank has stepped up its partnership with Green Power
to launch the “Campus Rooftop Garden Programme” and an eco-tour of
Hoi Ha Wan Marine Park in 2009.

The "Campus Rooftop Garden Programme” was the first project in the
territory combining rooftop gardens and trainings to ensure sustainable
development of environmental education in schools. Under this
programme, the Bank has sponsored three schools in Hong Kong Island,
Kowloon and the New Territories respectively to develop rooftop gardens
on their campus in three different themes including butterflies, organic
farming or herbs with the professional assistance and advice from Green
Power. The rooftop gardens will act as a “nature classroom”for students to
learn about ecology and participate in organic farming, herbs gardening
and even breeding butterflies. Construction for the three rooftop gardens
will be completed by phases within 2010. General public awareness will
also be enhanced through the Rooftop Gardens Open Days.

To arouse staff awareness in environmental protection and nature
preservation, CBI sponsored 20 staff members to form five open teams to
participate in the “Tree Planting Challenge 2009” organised by Friends of
the Earth (HK) (“FOE") in April. The CBI participants hiked on the 10-km trail
to plant a total of 250 seedlings along the hillfire-ruined area at Ping Fung
Shan of Pat Sin Leng Country Park.

—ERNFER
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In June, CBI appealed to its staff members to make donations to support
“The Community Chest Green Day”. The event encouraged the general
public to take a low carbon form of transport to appreciate the sceneries
in Hong Kong and, at the same time, raise funds for The Community Chest.

On recycled usage, the Bank organised an internal staff campaign for the
third consecutive year to collect used books and video discs for “CBI
Libraries” which were set up at the two community centres of Christian
Action. In the three-week campaign, a total of 386 books and 226 video
discs were collected to enrich “CBI Libraries”.

To combat the threats of climate change and improve air and light
pollution, CBI participated in the “Dim It Campaign’, “Dim It Charter” and
“Power Smart Campaign”initiated by FOE. In the evening of 21 June 2009
(the Summer Solstice), CBI joined hands with over 3,500 organisations in
Hong Kong, along with Beijing, Japan, South Korea and Taiwan to switch
off outdoor neon lights for two hours. Its branches in Queen’s Road West,
Shamshuipo, Shatin Centre, Tai Po and Jordan signed the “Dim It Charter”
and pledged to turn off their fascia lightboxes after 11pm starting from 21
June 2009. Separately, the Bank has successfully achieved 14.3% savings in
electricity consumption during the three-month "Power Smart Campaign’.

Community Services and Donations

Community services and donations (“CSD”) activities are undertaken as a
genuine reflection of CBI's commitment to give back and benefit the
communities within which it operates. The Bank's CSD Committee
involving representatives from all its business and functional units is
responsible for laying down and implementing the Bank’s CSD policies,
and also approving and coordinating related activities.

During the year, the Bank joined hands with a number of charitable
organisations to organise various meaningful initiatives that engaged
broad-based voluntary staff participation to reach out to underprivileged
or needy groups in Hong Kong. Staff from all levels of the Bank devoted
their time and energy to support 17 purposeful activities. Highlights of
these initiatives include:

January — Chinese New Year tram party for children from deprived
families in Chai Wan. Apart from games and buffet, the children
received Chinese New Year gifts.

To celebrate the second anniversary of “CBI Libraries” at two
community centres of Christian Action in Mongkok and Kowloon Bay,
a story-telling activity was arranged for new immigrant children from
Mainland China.
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March - Participation in Outward Bound Adventure Race 2009 to
support fund-raising for personal development courses for
underprivileged youths.

May — Green mask making workshop for children from the New
Arrivals Service Centre under St. Christopher’s Home to encourage
youth creativity and to spread the green message.

July - An internal food drive to encourage staff donations to support
People’s Food Bank run by St. James' Settlement.

August - Chinese opera performance and luncheon for 54 elderlies
living alone in the Yau Tsim Mong district.

September — Mid-autumn luncheon party and moon-cake making
workshop for 60 elderlies living alone in the Kwai Chung district.

November - Treetop Cottage fun day for children with development
disorders.

December — Christmas parties for needy children and the elderlies.
These initiatives included an in-house toys donation drive for children
from small group homes, and a knitting campaign where 170 Bank
staff along with their friends and families made 330 hand-knitted
neckerchiefs for elderly people living alone in Chai Wan.

Awards

In recognition of CBI's commitment to caring for the community and its
efforts to establish good corporate citizenship, the Bank was awarded the
“Caring Company Logo” for the seventh consecutive year by the Hong
Kong Council of Social Service in February 2010. The Bank also received a
Gold Certificate from the Social Welfare Department’s Volunteer Movement
in April 2010 for its contribution of over 1,000 volunteer service hours in
2000.

Look into the Future

CBI believes that the Bank’s business operations and its corporate
responsibility are inseparable; while meeting society’s needs creates
bountiful opportunities to grow its business. Overcoming the
repercussions of the economic crisis is one thing, but future economic
development must take account of the stress limits that the environment
can bear. As a responsible corporate citizen, the Bank will upkeep the
momentum of its CSR efforts in 2010 and continue to identify and invest in
meaningful causes to benefit underprivileged or needy groups and the
society at large.

—EZNEER
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Biographies of Directors

Mr. Dou Jianzhong

Chairman

Appointed as a Director of CITIC Bank International Limited (the “Bank”)
on 25 November 2002 and was elected Chairman on 17 October 2006.
Mr. Dou is an Executive Director and Vice President of CITIC Group, Vice
Chairman and President of CITIC Holdings Limited, Chairman of CITIC
Prudential Life Insurance Co., Ltd., Non-executive Director of China CITIC
Bank Corporation Limited, Director and Chief Executive Officer of CITIC
International Financial Holdings Limited, Director of CITIC International
Assets Management Limited, Chairman of CIAM Group Limited and
Director of CITIC Capital Holdings Limited. Mr. Dou graduated from the
University of International Business and Economics, Beijing in 1979 and
obtained a Master Degree in Economics from Liao Ning University. He was
granted the prestigious title of “Senior Economist” by CITIC Group. Mr.
Dou was formerly the President of CITIC Industrial Bank (now known as
China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited) and has extensive experience in the
finance industry.

Mrs. Chan Hui Dor Lam Doreen

Chief Executive Officer

Appointed as a Director of the Bank on 17 January 2002 and was further
appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the Bank on 16 April 2002. Mrs.
Chan is a Director of CITIC Group, Non-executive Director of China CITIC
Bank Corporation Limited, Director, Managing Director and Alternate
Chief Executive Officer of CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited,
Chairman of HKCB Finance Limited, CITIC Insurance Brokers Limited
and CITIC Ka Wah Bank (China) Limited. Prior to joining the Bank, she
was in charge of the retail banking business for a major international
bank in Hong Kong. Mrs. Chan is also active in her support for non-
profit organisations. She is currently serving on the board of Haven of
Hope Christian Service and as the Chairman of China Graduate School
of Theology. In addition, Mrs. Chan is also an appointed member of the
Council of Hong Kong Baptist University, the Board of Governors of the
Hong Kong Baptist University Foundation, its Finance Committee and Task
Force on University Branding.
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Mr. Jose Barreiro

Non-executive Director

Appointed as a Director of the Bank on 3 December 2009. Mr. Barreiro
is a Non-executive Director of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited and
CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited, and a Director of Global
Wholesale Banking and Asset Management of Banco Bilbao Vizcaya
Argentaria, S.A. ("BBVA"). He is also a member of the Executive Committee
of BBVA Group and a member of the board of directors of Bolsas y
Mercados Espanoles. Mr. Barreiro holds a Bachelor Degree in Economics
from the Universidad Complutense of Madrid in Spain. He has extensive
business connections and experience in wholesale banking and finance.

Mr. Cao Guogiang

Non-executive Director

Appointed as a Director of the Bank on 23 October 2009. Mr. Cao is a
Vice President of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited, a Non-executive
Director of CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited and a Director
of China Investment and Finance Limited. Mr. Cao has 21 years of
experience in China’s banking industry. Prior to joining China CITIC Bank
Corporation Limited in 2005, he had held various senior positions at China
Merchants Bank, including General Manager of the Planning and Treasury
Department at its headquarters and at its Shenzhen Administrative
Department respectively. He had also worked at the Planning and
Treasury Department of the Shaanxi Branch of The People’s Bank of China
from July 1988 to June 1992. Mr. Cao graduated from Hunan College of
Finance and Economics with a Bachelor's Degree in Money and Banking.
He received his Master's Degree in Money and Banking from Shaanxi
College of Finance and Economics.

Mr. Cao Tong

Non-executive Director

Appointed as a Director of the Bank on 23 October 2009. Mr. Cao is a Vice
President of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited and a Non-executive
Director of CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited. Mr. Cao has 20
years of banking experience in China. Prior to joining China CITIC Bank
Corporation Limited in 2004, he had held various senior positions at China
Merchants Bank and had also worked at the Beijing Branch of The People’s
Bank of China from July 1990 to January 1994. Mr. Cao graduated from
Renmin University of China with a Bachelor's Degree in Economics as well
as a Master's Degree in Finance.
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Biographies of Directors

Mr. Chang Zhenming

Non-executive Director

Appointed as a Director of the Bank on 18 November 2006. Mr. Chang is
the Vice Chairman and President of CITIC Group, Vice Chairman of China
CITIC Bank Corporation Limited and CITIC International Financial Holdings
Limited, Chairman of CITIC International Assets Management Limited, CITIC
Capital Holdings Limited and CITIC Pacific Limited. He holds an MBA from
the Insurance College of New York and has over 20 years’ broad range of
experience in banking, finance and securities business. Mr. Chang was
the Vice Chairman and President of China Construction Bank Corporation
during the period from September 2004 to July 2006.

Dr. Chen Xiaoxian

Non-executive Director

Appointed as a Director of the Bank on 17 January 2005. Dr. Chen is
the Executive Director and Vice President of CITIC Group, Director and
President of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited, and a Non-executive
Director of CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited. Dr. Chenis a
mentor for doctoral student and visiting professor of Dongbei University of
Finance and Economics, as well as visiting professor of Renmin University
of China. Before joining CITIC Group, Dr. Chen was a director and
Executive Vice President of China Merchants Bank. Dr. Chen graduated
from Renmin University of China with a Bachelor Degree in Finance. He
received his Master Degree in Finance from Xinan University of Finance
and Economics and his Ph.D. in Finance from Dongbei University of
Finance and Economics. He is a “Senior Economist” and has 27 years’
extensive experience in banking. From 2005 to 2009 consecutively, Dr.
Chen received the “China’s Top Ten Finance Figures of the Year Award”
from "The Chinese Banker” magazine. He also received the “Top Ten New
Leaders in Finance of the Year Award” from the China International Forum
in 2006 and 2007.

Mr. Manuel Galatas

Non-executive Director

Appointed as a Director of the Bank on 3 December 2009. Mr. Galatas is a
Non-executive Director of CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited
and the General Manager for Asia of BBVA. He has been working within
BBVA Group since 1994. Mr. Galatas holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Business Administration and International Finance from Georgetown
University in the United States. He was formerly the Chairman of BBVA
Switzerland. He has extensive business connections and experience in
private banking, asset management and in banking.
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Biographies of Directors

Mr. Rafael Gil-Tienda

Independent Non-executive Director

Appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director and Chairman of
the Credit & Risk Management Committee of the Bank on 20 October
2003. Mr. Gil-Tienda is an Independent Non-executive Director of CITIC
International Financial Holdings Limited and the Chairman of Marsh &
McLennan Companies Inc. in Asia. Mr. Gil-Tienda obtained a Bachelor
Degree in Philosophy, Politics and Economics from the Oxford University
and an MBA from the University of California, Berkeley. He was formerly
with Standard Chartered Bank and Citibank and has over 25 years of
banking experience.

Mr. Ju Weimin

Non-executive Director

Appointed as a Director of the Bank on 25 November 2002. Mr. Ju is the
Executive Director, Vice President and the Chief Financial Officer of CITIC
Group, Non-executive Director of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited,
CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited and CITIC Pacific Limited,
and the Chairman of CITIC Trust Company Limited. Mr. Ju obtained a
Bachelor Degree in Economics from the Hangzhou Institute of Electronic
Engineering and a Master Degree in Economics from the Renmin
University of China.

Mr. Kong Dan

Non-executive Director

Appointed as a Director of the Bank on 25 November 2002. Mr. Kong is
the Chairman of CITIC Group, China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited, CITIC
International Financial Holdings Limited and CITIC Resources Holdings
Limited. He holds a Master Degree in Economics from the China Academy
of Social Sciences. Mr. Kong was formerly the Chairman of the Bank during
the period from November 2002 to October 2006. He was also the Vice
Chairman and President of China Everbright Group Limited, Vice Chairman
of China Everbright Limited and Chairman of China Everbright Technology
Limited. He has extensive business connections and experience in
investment and finance.
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Biographies of Directors

Mr. Lam Kwong Siu

Independent Non-executive Director

Appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank on 17
January 2002. Mr. Lam is the Vice Chairman of BOC International Holdings
Limited and the Independent Non-executive Director of CITIC International
Financial Holdings Limited, China Overseas Land & Investment Limited,
Fujian Holdings Limited, Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited and Yuzhou
Properties Co., Ltd. He was formerly the Deputy Chief Executive of Bank
of China Hongkong-Macau Regional Office, Chairman of Po Sang Bank
Limited, Vice Chairman of Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited and a
Director of Bank of China, BOC China Fund Limited and Henderson China
Holdings Limited. He has over 40 years of continuous banking experience.

Mr. Gregoire de Lestapis

Non-executive Director

Appointed as a Director of the Bank on 3 December 2009. Mr. de Lestapis
is a Non-executive Director of CITIC International Financial Holdings
Limited and the Managing Director of the Global Markets Asia of BBVA. He
has been working with BBVA Group since 2002. Mr. de Lestapis holds a
Bachelor Degree in Finance and a Master Degree in International Capital
Markets respectively from the University Paris IX Dauphine.

Mr. Tsang Yiu Keung Paul

Independent Non-executive Director

Appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director and Chairman
of the Audit Committee of the Bank on 1 September 2004. Mr. Tsang is
also an Independent Non-executive Director and Chairman of the Audit
Committee of CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited. He is a
professional accountant and a Fellow Member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, The Chartered Association of Certified
Accountants and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.
Mr. Tsang was with KPMG for more than 27 years, where he was a senior
banking partner until he retired from the firm on 31 March 2003.

Mr. Zhao Shengbiao

Executive Vice President and Country Head, U.S.A.

Appointed as a Director of the Bank on 25 November 2002. He is now also
the Executive Vice President and Country Head, US.A. of the Bank and in
charge of the overall business operations in U.S.A. Further, Mr. Zhao is also
an Executive Director of CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited. He
graduated from the University of International Business and Economics,
Beijing and obtained a Master Degree in Finance from the College of
Insurance, New York. He has over 30 years of experience in international
banking and worked in Beijing, London, Paris, Hong Kong and New York.
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Biographies of Senior Executives

Ms. Anna Li

Senior Vice President and Head of Audit Group

Joined the Bank in June 2005 as Senior Vice President and Head of
Audit Group. Ms. Li holds a MBA Degree from the University of South
Australia and is a Fellow Member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an Associate Member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. She has over 26 years of experience
in auditing. Before joining the Bank, Ms. Li was the Assistant General
Manager and Head of Business Planning & Development in Belgian Bank.

Mr. Archie Tsim

Alternate Chief Executive Officer and Director of Finance & Corporate Planning
Joined the Bank in April 2010 as Director of Finance & Corporate Planning.
Mr. Tsim is now an Alternate Chief Executive Officer and Director of
Finance & Corporate Planning of the Bank. Mr. Tsim has over 26 years
of experience in the banking and finance industry. He started his
career in accounting and gained comprehensive exposure in financial
management, corporate finance and advisory, and business operations,
primarily from The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited. Prior to joining the Bank,
he was the Chief Financial Officer and Head of Finance & Administration of
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited.

Mr.CY Ling

Alternate Chief Executive Officer and Head of Corporate Services Group

Joined the Bank in April 2003 as Senior Vice President and Chief Operating
Officer and was promoted to Executive Vice President in November of the
same year. Mr. Ling was appointed as the Alternate Chief Executive Officer
of the Bank in December 2005. He is now an Alternate Chief Executive
Officer and Head of Corporate Services Group of the Bank. He has over 30
years of experience in information technology and operations. Mr. Ling
obtained a Bachelor Degree in Physics from Williams College and a M.Sc. in
Computers Sciences from the University of Wisconsin. Before joining the
Bank, Mr. Ling was the Head of Operations, Consumer Banking of Standard
Chartered Bank.
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Biographies of Senior Executives

Mr. Edmund Poon

Executive Vice President and Head of Operations & Technology Group

Joined the Bank in October 2004 as Head of Operations and was
appointed as Head of Information Technology since June 2007. Mr. Poon
was promoted to Executive Vice President and Head of Operations &
Technology Group in January 2009. He has over 27 years of experience
in technology management, 20 years of which was in financial or related
industries. Before joining the Bank, he had held various senior local and
regional positions with Standard Chartered Bank and IBM Canada Limited.
Mr. Poon holds a Bachelor and Master Degree in Mathematics (Computer
Science) from the University of Waterloo in Canada.

Mr. Jaime Azcoiti Leyva

Director of Risks

Joined the Bank in January 2009 as Director of Risks. Mr. Azcoiti
is responsible for managing risks of the Bank and developing the
tripartite strategic alignment. He has over 20 years of experience in
Risk Management. Mr. Azcoiti holds a Bachelor Degree in Business
Administration from Universidad Pontificia de Comillas and a Bachelor
Degree in Law from Universidad Nacional de Educacion a Distancia in
Spain. Before joining the Bank, Mr. Azcoiti was Director of Risk for Global
Clients & Structured Finance in Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A.

Mr. John Lee

Executive Vice President and Head of Human Resources Group

Joined the Bank in July 2006 as Senior Vice President. Mr. Lee is now an
Executive Vice President and Head of Human Resources Group of the
Bank. He also serves as the Head of Group Human Resources in CITIC
International Financial Holdings Limited. Mr. Lee holds a Bachelor Degree
in Economics and a Master Degree in Business Administration. He started
his banking career with Standard Chartered Bank in the information
technology function and served for 20 years in various management
positions in several business and support functions, including consumer
banking, human resources, and post-merger integration in Asia Pacific.
Before joining the Bank, Mr. Lee headed the people development function
in Mass Transit Railway Corporation.
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Biographies of Senior Executives

Ms. Margaret Man

Executive General Manager and Head of China Banking Group

Joined the Bank in October 1998 as Senior Vice President. Ms. Man is now
an Executive General Manager and Head of China Banking Group of the
Bank, and Vice Chairman of CITIC Ka Wah Bank (China) Limited. She has
over 20 years of experience in china banking. Ms. Man graduated from
Shanxi Financial and Economics University obtaining a Bachelor Degree
in Economics and further studied in the Graduate School of the People’s
Bank of China obtaining a Master Degree in Banking and Finance. Ms.
Man had been a Division Chief in the People’s Bank of China (“PBOC") and
worked for PBOC for 7 years in 1980's. Before joining the Bank, Ms. Man
was a Deputy Managing Director of China Venturetechno International Co.
Ltd.

Mr. Nick Huang

Alternate Chief Executive Officer, Executive General Manager and Head of
Wholesale Banking Group

Joined the Bank in November 2009 as Executive General Manager and
Head of Wholesale Banking Group. Mr. Huang is now an Alternate Chief
Executive Officer, Executive General Manager and Head of Wholesale
Banking Group of the Bank. Mr. Huang is a career banker with over 20
years of experience in the industry. He started as a management associate
at Citibank, and received comprehensive exposure including various roles
in corporate and investment covering full range of banking services from
commercial bank to investment bank and asset management. Mr. Huang
also has extensive experience in the Taiwan and PRC markets, and before
joining the Bank, he was Greater China Financial Institutions and China
Public Sector Head and Senior Credit Officer based in China for Citigroup.
Mr. Huang holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in Civil Engineering and
Master of Business Administration Degree from National Taiwan University.

Ms. Phoebe Wong

Executive General Manager and Head of Retail Banking Group

Joined the Bank in November 2004 as Senior Vice President and Head of
Wealth Management & Strategic Planning. Ms. Wong is now an Executive
General Manager and Head of Retail Banking Group of the Bank. She has
over 20 years of experience in retail banking with exposure to the various
retail customer segments, different product disciplines as well as customer
sales and service management. Ms. Wong holds a Master Degree in
Business Administration from the University of Brunel and a Bachelor
Degree in Arts from the University of Hong Kong. Before joining the Bank,
Ms. Wong was the Head of Strategic Partnership Development of Standard
Chartered Bank.
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Biographies of Senior Executives

Mr. Roy Huang

Alternate Chief Executive Officer, General Counsel and Head of International
Banking Group

Joined the Bank in November 2004 as Senior Vice President, General
Counsel and Head of Compliance. Mr. Huang is now an Alternate Chief
Executive Officer, General Counsel and Head of International Banking
Group of the Bank. He is also the Group General Counsel of CITIC
International Financial Holdings Limited. Mr. Huang has over 25 years of
experience in legal and regulatory affairs in Hong Kong and the United
States. He graduated from the University of California, Berkeley and
Georgetown University Law School. Before joining the Bank, Mr. Huang
was partner in charge of legal affairs Asia-Pacific at Andersen Worldwide.

Mr. Steve Wong

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Joined the Bank in July 2005 as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer. Mr. Wong is now an Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer of the Bank. He is also the Group Chief Financial Officer of CITIC
International Financial Holdings Limited. Mr. Wong graduated from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic and is a Fellow Member of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, and a member of The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries & Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Company
Secretaries. Before joining the Bank, Mr. Wong held senior management
positions in Chase Manhattan Bank, Manhattan Card Company Limited
and DBS Bank.

Mr. Woody Chan

Executive Vice President and Treasurer

Joined the Bank in October 2008 as Executive Vice President and Treasurer.
Mr. Chan is responsible for the Bank's funding and liquidity management as
well as to spearhead the development of its global markets and treasury
business. He is a veteran banker with over 21 years of experience in the
treasury markets operations. Mr. Chan started his career in the money
markets operations of HSBC Hong Kong and later progressed to head
its balance sheet management operations in Asia Pacific with functional
responsibilities over 18 Asian sites. He was General Manager and Treasurer
for Dah Sing Bank in Hong Kong before joining the Bank. Mr. Chan holds
a Bachelor Degree in Social Sciences from the University of Hong Kong,
a Master Degree in Applied Finance from Macquarie University. He also
holds the Chartered Financial Analyst designation.
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Corporate Information

Board of Directors

Chairman

Mr. Dou Jianzhong

Executive Directors

Mrs. Chan Hui Dor Lam Doreen (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhao Shengbiao

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Jose Barreiro

Mr. Cao Guogiang

Mr. Cao Tong

Mr. Chang Zhenming

Dr. Chen Xiaoxian

Mr. Manuel Galatas

Mr. Ju Weimin

Mr. Kong Dan

Mr. Gregoire de Lestapis

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Rafael Gil-Tienda

Mr. Lam Kwong Siu

Mr. Tsang Yiu Keung Paul

Audit Committee

Mr. Tsang Yiu Keung Paul (Chairman)
Mr. Cao Guogiang

Mr. Manuel Galatas

Mr. Rafael Gil-Tienda

Mr. Ju Weimin

Mr. Lam Kwong Siu

Registered Office

232 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.
Tel: (852) 3603 6633

Fax: (852) 3603 4000
www.citicbankintl.com
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EIRRERAR HRAUTHBRERND (F49HFF224H) Financial Section
EREBAEE  BMNEAPEEERTERLATERE -
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Report of the Directors
CITIC Ka Wah Bank Limited has adopted a new name “CITIC Bank

International Limited” in May 2010. As the Financial Section hereafter 52 BN ZHA WSS
(pages 49 to 224) has been prepared and signed preceding the Independent Auditor’s Report

new name adoption, “CITIC Ka Wah Bank Limited” was used
throughout the Financial Section. 54 FeWEER

Consolidated Income Statement

55 e EHENER
Consolidated Statement of

Comprehensive Income

56 ez
Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position

57 gtk

Statement of Financial Position

58 o amEHE
Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity

59 GARSHER

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

61 UismkiisE

Notes to the Financial Statements

202 FEBHBRIEER
Unaudited Supplementary

Financial Information
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Report of the Directors

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together
with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2000.

Principal Place of Business

CITIC Ka Wah Bank Limited (the “Bank”) is a licensed bank incorporated
and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office at 232 Des Voeux
Road Central, Hong Kong. The Bank operates overseas branches in Macau,
Shanghai, Cayman Islands, New York and Los Angeles.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Bank and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
the provision of general banking and related financial services primarily
in Hong Kong. Particulars of the Bank's principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2009 are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009 and the
state of the Bank's and the Group's affairs as at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 54 to 201.

Dividends

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
financial year ended 31 December 2009 (2008: Nil).

Property and Equipment

Movements in property and equipment are set out in note 27 to the
financial statements.

Reserves

Profit attributable to shareholders before dividends of HK$952,899,000
(2008: HKS$128,308,000) has been transferred to reserves. Other
movements in the reserves are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.
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RERITERERA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report of the Directors

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Bank during the
financial year are set out in note 37 to the financial statements. A
total of 1,700,000,000 ordinary shares were issued by the Bank to CITIC
International Financial Holdings Limited during the financial year.

Directors

The Directors during the financial year ended 31 December 2009 and up
to the date of this report are as follows:

Chairman
Mr. Dou Jianzhong

Executive Directors
Mrs. Chan Hui Dor Lam Doreen (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhao Shengbiao (Executive Vice President and Country Head, U.S.A)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Jose Barreiro

(appointed on 3 December 2009)
Mr. Cao Guogiang

(appointed on 23 October 2009)
Mr. Cao Tong

(appointed on 23 October 2009)
Mr. Chang Zhenming
Dr. Chen Xiaoxian
Mr. Manuel Galatas

(appointed on 3 December 2009)
Mr. Ju Weimin
Mr. Kong Dan
Mr. Gregoire de Lestapis

(appointed on 3 December 2009)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Rafael Gil-Tienda

Mr. Lam Kwong Siu

Mr. Tsang Yiu Keung Paul

Mr. Lo Wing Yat Kelvin and Mr. Roger Clark Spyer resigned as directors on
23 October and 31 December 2009 respectively.

In accordance with Article 97 of the Bank’s Articles of Association, all
present Directors shall retire at the next Annual General Meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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Report of the Directors

Directors’ Interests

At no time during the financial year was the Bank, or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors of the Bank to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Bank or any other body
corporate.

No contract of significance to which the Bank, or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
Director of the Bank had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the financial year.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Bank was entered into or
existed during the financial year.

Compliance with Banking (Disclosure) Rules

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009 comply
fully with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Banking (Disclosure)
Rules.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A

resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Bank is to be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Dou Jianzhong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 April 2010
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RERITERERA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Independent Auditor’s Report

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of
CITIC Ka Wah Bank Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CITIC Ka Wah
Bank Limited (“the Bank”) set out on pages 54 to 201, which comprise
the consolidated and the Bank statement of financial position as at
31 December 2009, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting polices used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Bank and of the Group as at 31 December
2009 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

27 April 2010
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Consolidated Income Statement

for the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—EENF —EBEENF
2009 2008
BRE BT T BT T
Note HK$’000 HKS$'000
FEHA Interest income 4 2,963,256 4,019,835
FESH Interest expense (1,026,056) (2,474,170)
HREUWA Net interest income 1,937,200 1,545,665
A REeA Fee and commission income 884,853 760,310
ERMESSH Fee and commission expense (26,603) (16,779)
FEARBSKRA Net fee and commission income 5 858,250 743,531
HEEMERE T BFEERNE Net loss and write-down on structured
investment vehicles - (717,885)
HAFEZHHA Other net trading income 286,850 231,554
FJXZWA(BE) Net trading income/(loss) 6 286,850 (486,331)
EEARBIBmIA R AR Net loss from financial instruments designated at
B4 Eh T B FEE fair value through profit or loss (4,719) (74,422)
SFER(ER), M Net hedging (loss)/gain (3,734) 2933
HEHEEESF FRE Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale securities 9 57,751 46,195
Hingeg A Other operating income 10 62,463 70,220
KA Operating income 3,194,061 1,847,791
FE—F Operating expenses 11 (1,594,713) (1,325,218)
HIBRORE 24 Al 2 I8 &R A Operating profit before impairment 1,599,348 522,573
BER MBI EEE Impairment losses on loans and advances 13 (558,895) (383,185)
A EESREEER & Impairment losses written back on
available-for-sale securities 4 292
BEEE Impairment losses (558,891) (382,893)
KRR Operating profit 1,040,457 139,680
HEME KRB FRE Net gain on disposal of property and equipment 42,948 24,185
S EYEE G K Revaluation gain on investment properties 27(a) 36,116 446
BANER Profit before taxation 1,119,521 164,311
FTiS % Income tax 14 (166,622) (36,003)
AEE R Profit for the year 15 952,899 128,308

61 B P|ZE201 BB AT A — &7

RERITERERA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

The notes on pages 61 to 201 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—EEAE —ZTTNF
2009 2008
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
REE R Profit for the year 952,899 128,308
rFEEHMEZEKE (RBER Other comprehensive income for the year
ENDERER) (after tax and reclassification adjustments)
HEBINGE A RIS IRER S Exchange differences on translation of financial
VE X =% statements of overseas subsidiaries (40,863) 15,148
HEMmEEHFRE Other property revaluation reserve
—KEMMEEFHER — surplus on revaluation of other premises
KEMENEHRALR upon reclassification to investment properties 7,719 -
—AHEREMMEEER - release of deferred tax liabilities upon
KEMEMERARLE disposal of investment properties
WMIEEE transferred from other premises - 277
—EAREREE A - effect on deferred tax balances as at
LLTRIE%%EE’J%‘E 1 January resulting from a change in tax rate - 267
Al &3 Available-for-sale securities
—AREENE ~ change in fair value 155,371 (269,459)
—HeEFEEIZER — transfer to income statement on disposal (59,546) (45,612)
—LiLL@ﬁLIE - transfer to deferred tax (15,811) 51,987
— -TR <AL T - effect on deferred tax balance as at
LTRIE%T%EE’]E“ 1 January resulting from change in tax rate - (1,051)
46,870 (248,443)
AEEEZHRSAEE Total comprehensive income for the year 999,769 (120,135)
BERAITRRMNER Attributable to equity shareholders
of the Bank 999,769 (120,135)

61 B 2201 AWM B AT A — &7

The notes on pages 61 to 201 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position

as at 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—EZAE —EENEFE
2009 2008
BFE BT T BT
Note HK$’000 HKS$'000
BE Assets
B RIERTT ~ PFRIBITR Cash and balances with banks, central banks

Hiho phiiEr & 1F and other financial institutions 18 6,898,339 10,754,122
HEIRTT » PRIETRHMEE Placements with and advances to banks,

BT MR central banks and other financial institutions 19 15,562,509 10,473,951
BE55E Trade bills 20 1,028,616 816,069
RHBBEE Trading assets 21 1,783,875 2,065,746
TEE?%@%@TEJ%T%JEA&H% Securities designated at fair value through

AV FTEE’\JEE 7 profit or loss 22 580,636 521,834

BEFEREBR Loans and advances to customers and

&fﬁ\ﬁﬂﬁﬁlﬁ other accounts 23 73,041,353 75,183,429
A HEFES Available-for-sale securities 24 20,073,727 20,683,453
EYS LT Property and equipment 27

— AW — Investment property 183,192 148,076

— E bW E KR & — Other property and equipment 845,147 887,788
AT UL e IR Tax recoverable 32(a) 24,036 167,267
RIEFIBE B Deferred tax assets 32(b 101,355 108,095
EERE Total assets 120,122,785 21,809,830
EaRkaE Equity and liabilities
RITREM S B AR Deposits and balances of banks and

EREET other financial institutions 28 2,794,355 927,337
BPEXR Deposits from customers 29 94,240,980 95,332,338
RHAEaE Trading liabilities 30 1,108,009 1,385,886
BEITFAE Certificates of deposit issued 3] 3,693,598 4,121,408
BEEITERE Debt securities issued 33 71,800 2,333,727
RNEAFRIE Current taxation 32(a) 11,564 10,128
EERITEAE Deferred tax liabilities 32(b) 1,718 1,350
HivBE Other liabilities 34 2,054,037 4,239,497
BEFER Loan capital 36 3,916,017 3,927,221
EEH8E Total liabilities 107,892,078 112,278,892
i Equity
1% Share capital 37 7,283,341 5,583,341
B Reserves 37 4,947,366 3,947,597
BEBRAITRRN Total equity attributable to equity

R shareholders of the Bank 12,230,707 9,530,938
EERAEERE Total equity and liabilities 120,122,785 121,809,830

EERR =T TAMA ST B DR -

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 April 2010.

gEs BREF 2B il EHER

Dou Jianzhong Chan Hui Dor Lam Doreen Zhao Shengbiao Wong Ho Sing Steve
EER EERITHAEH = B Aa e

Chairman Director and Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer

F61 B EF201 BHM B AR ERE —2B0 o

RERITERERA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

The notes on pages 61 to 201 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position

as at 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—EZAEF —BENEFE
2009 2008
BT 5E BT T BT T
Note HKS$’000 HKS$'000
BE Assets
/e MIERIT » PRIBITR Cash and balances with banks, central banks and

Hih £ piidEnsas1r other financial institutions 18 5,944,423 10,488,291
EIRTT » PRIBPITEEMEF Placements with and advances to banks,

HIEM T R BN central banks and other financial institutions 19 14,206,596 10,239,534
E55E Trade bills 20 1,028,616 816,069
REPTEE Trading assets 21 1,781,727 2,062,967
18T il B e AR R Securities designated at fair value through

NABENES profit or loss 22 580,636 521,834
BFEFEREBR Loans and advances to customers and

N H A BRIE other accounts 23 64,767,117 67,425,537
A EE S Available-for-sale securities 24 20,073,727 20,683,453
FE U B B~ RIZRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 25 6,601,437 5,588,811
B ARIRE Investments in subsidiaries 26 1,270,250 1,270,250
S EYE L] Property and equipment 27

—IREYE ~ Investment property 157,800 125,338

s S EYE T — Other property and equipment 829,274 869,639
AT UL e TR Tax recoverable 32(a) 23,984 163,773
RIEFRTE & B Deferred tax assets 32(b) 93,567 102,584
EESRE Total assets 117,359,154 120,358,080
EaRkEE Equity and liabilities
RITREM S BEER Deposits and balances of banks and

FR a1 other financial institutions 28 2,639,253 815,820
EPER Deposits from customers 29 92,047,445 94,289,144
THABEE Trading liabilities 30 1,107,049 1,381,884
B BITIFRE Certificates of deposit issued 31 3,693,598 4,121,408
B EITERE A Debt securities issued 33 - 2,312,927
ZRHAFR I8 Current taxation 32(a) 3,052 4958
REFIBEEE Deferred tax liabilities 32(b) 8 34
HihBE Other liabilities 34 1,752,380 3,950,939
JERTBN B A BIFRIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 35 2,371,533 2,292,317
BEFER Loan capital 36 1,938,661 1,937,504
=Rt ot Total liabilities 105,552,979 111,106,935
= Equity
&% Share capital 37 7,283,341 5,583,341
A Reserves 37 4,522,834 3,667,804
BERAEITRRSN Total equity attributable to equity

REREEE shareholders of the Bank 11,806,175 9,251,145
EaRkaERH Total equity and liabilities 117,359,154 120,358,080
BEEN_T-ZTFNA - ++BREWFREEM -

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 April 2010.

gET BREF 2B il EERK

Dou Jianzhong Chan Hui Dor Lam Doreen Zhao Shengbiao Wong Ho Sing Steve
EER EEFRITHAEH = B a e

Chairman Director and Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer

F61 828201 BRI TBAN BHRE —aH ° The notes on pages 61 to 201 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of

\\/—_l_\
Changes in Equity
HE_ZTNF+ _RA=1T—HIFEABEREML) for the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
158
The Group
EXER WEER REER ERE EE-R fEaR
fitte it e i AeER R (izE3700)
REX BROEE E45HE —REHE Exchange Property Investment  Share MR Regulatory RERN  Totdl EREE
Share Share  Capital ~ General differences revaluation revaluation ~ option ~ Statutory  general Retained  reserves Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits (note37(c)  equity
BETT BETL BT BMTn BETn BYTn BSTr BYTn BBt Afr BgThn AiTr #ETn
HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
#2009E181H Asat 1 January 2009 5583341 282,930 6589 100000 40848 20932 (350,829) - 3475 47,236 3,796,416 3,947,597 9,530,938
BE009EMERSH:  Changesin equity for 2009:
BIRAEHR Issuance and allotment of shares 1,700,000 - - - - - - - - - - - 1,700,000
REEMEMERNHEE  Release of reserve on disposal of
property - - - - - (7,719) - - - - 7719 - -
REELERE/(XH)  Total comprehensive income/
it (expenses) for the year - - - - (40,863) 7719 80,014 - - 952899 999,769 999,769
EERBEN Transfer from retained profits - - - - - - - - 3,092 9863 (12,955 - -
120095 12A31H Asat 31 December 2009 7283341 282,930 6,589 100,000 (15 20932 (270,815) - 6,567 57,09 4744079 4947366 12,230,707
R008E A1 Asat T January 2008 5583341 282930 6589 100,000 25,700 2066 (86694 25785 - 3678707 4055083 9638424
HEWEMERES:  Changesinequity for 2008
DREERMRAR S Equity-settled share-hased
transactions - - - - - - - 12649 - - - 12649 12649
BHERAETNDNEY  Forfeited options transferred to
kg fetaned proffs - - - - - - -8 - - B - -
REEMEMERNEE  Release of reserve on disposal of
property - - - - - (1678) - - - - 1678 - -
REFRENE /() Total comprehensive income/
= (expenses) for the year - - - - 15148 544 (2647135) - - 18308 (120135 (120,135)
EaREET Transfer from retained profits - - - - - - - - 45 4136 (5071) - -
R008E12A318 As at 31 December 2008 5083341 282930 6589 100,000 40848 20932 (350829 - 3475 47236 379416 3947597 9530938

61 B 2E201 BB AT KA — &7

RERITERERA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

The notes on pages 61 to 201 form part of these financial statements.
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BE_ZTNF T A=+ HALFEUABEREMN)

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—EENE “ZENF
2009 2008
BisE BT T BT
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
K Operating activities
A& A Profit before taxation 1,119,521 164,311
3@%%15 E T Adjustments for non-cash items:
BERNEBTRERRE Impairment losses on loans and advances 558,895 383,185
&éf%%iﬁuﬂlm Revaluation gain on investment properties (36,116) (446)
HEEMRETRFEEBINE Net loss and write-down on structured investment vehicles - 717,885
HEME KT Net gain on disposal of property and equipment (42,948) (24,185)
HeERH Hj'%;ff Sl Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale securities (57,751) (46,195)
A E B SORE 18 [0 Impairment losses written back on available-for-sale securities (4) 292)
VARG #E B A B RS A7 S o Equity-settled share-based payment expenses - 16,129
EIES H# s Amortisation of deferred expenses 55,269 69,483
Y N RETTE Depreciation on property and equipment 75,428 77,713
R EAFRBUA Dividend income from equity securities (4,445) (4,100)
BEEEARF BT Interest expense on loan capital 229,600 275,396
bR Foreign exchange differences (38,357) (25,281)
1,859,092 1,603,603
REEEE Increase in operating assets
JREIER B B @3ME A TEIRTT Placements with and advances to banks, central
R IRIT R EAM S B R banks and other financial institutions with
Tk original maturity beyond three months (6,354,262) (953,409)
JREIE B BE3E AR ES Treasury bills with original maturity beyond three months (20,385) 499,609
REHBHABHMEAN Certificates of deposit held with original maturity
RAEENE beyond three months (1,344,057) 150,033
ROHABEE Trading assets 281,871 695,378
EEABBER R Securities designated at fair value through
NREBENES profit or loss (58,802) 9,191
REER KRBT HpEER Loans and advances to customers, other
g %%‘;F accounts and trade bills 1,320,238 (7,164,186)
A ER Available-for-sale securities 1,621,941 1,675,890
(4,553,456) (5,087,494)
cEBEORD), Em (Decrease)/increase in operating liabilities
RITREME RS Deposits and balances of banks
NFERKRET and other financial institutions 1,867,018 (611,693)
BEER Deposits from customers (1,091,358) 11,314,025
RS5ABEE Trading liabilities (277,877) 506,196
BETF ?X?ﬁ Certificates of deposit issued (430,927) (2,751,653)
BEITERES Debt securities issued 61,178 31,808
Hi B & Other liabilities (2,195,805) 2,669,597
(2,067,771) 11,158,280
(BAR)/REAKSSEEKRNEELE  Cash (used in)/generated from operations (4,762,135) 7,674,389
—EEREEH
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—EThE “ZENF
2009 2008
BisE BT T BT
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
(BAR),/REAKSSEEBRNEELE  Cash (used in)/generated from operations (4,762,135) 7,674,389
EHFEH Income tax paid
BEREBERNEH Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (2,622) (101,237)
BHEIMEIE Overseas tax paid (28,025) (15,620)
(AR),/ REREEBMNEELTE  Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities (4,792,782) 7,557,532
REEK Investing activities
BEWERESFRE Dividends received from equity securities 4,445 4,100
BAENRE Purchase of property and equipment (38,391) (40,601)
HEMENRESIE Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 57,277 35,861
KB (AR)IREEKENIE LTS  Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities 23,331 (640)
MEEK Financing activities
BRI TER0E Proceeds from shares issued 1,700,000 -
AHERE AT Interest paid on loan capital (232,837) (280,526)
BRCBITERES Redemption of debt securities issued (2,325,005) -
ARBEEKNE S FHE Net cash used in financing activities (857,842) (280,526)
RERBEEZEORD),/ Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
BinFEE cash equivalents (5,627,293) 7,276,366
MA1BMNRERESLZEER  Cashand cash equivalents as at 1 January 17,615,649 10,339,283
R12A3MEMNBEERIRELZEER Cashand cash equivalents as at 31 December 39 11,988,356 17,615,649
BEeERELCNELRBEIE . Cashflows from operating activities included:
EHFE Interest received 3,076,165 4,046,642
BRAFIE Interest paid (918,864) (2,181,594)

61 B RZE201 BB AT KA — &b

HERTEBRERAE

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

The notes on pages 61 to 201 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1.

(a)

(b)

Principal Activities

The principal activities of CITIC Ka Wah Bank Limited (“the Bank”) and
its subsidiaries (“the Group”), which materially affect the results or
comprise the assets and liabilities of the Group, are the provision of
banking and related financial services.

Significant Accounting Policies

CITIC Ka Wah Bank Limited is a licensed bank incorporated and
domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office at 232 Des Voeux
Road Central, Hong Kong. The consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2009 comprise the Bank and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the Group).

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"),
which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs"), and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Bank. Note 3 provides information on
the changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application
of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that the following
assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below:

- financial instruments classified as trading, designated at fair value
through profit or loss and available-for-sale (see note 2(e)(ii));

- investment property (see note 2(h)); and
- cash settled share-based payments (see note 2(n)(ii)).

—EENEER
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RERITERERA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (cont’d)

(c)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that
have significant effect on the financial statements and major sources
of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 48.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the income statement as
follows:

(i) Interestincome
Interest income for all interest-bearing financial instruments is
recognised in the income statement on an accruals basis using
the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

(c) Revenue recognition (cont’d)

(i)

(ii)

Interest income (cont’d)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating the interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or,
when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest
rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all contractual
terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call
and similar options) but does not consider future credit losses.
The calculation includes all fees paid or received between parties
to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts. Cash
rebates granted in relation to residential mortgage loans are
capitalised and amortised to the income statement over their
expected life.

For impaired loans, the accrual of interest income based on the
original terms of the loan is discontinued, but any increase in the
present value of impaired loans due to the passage of time is
reported as interest income.

Net income from financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss and net trading income comprises all gains
and losses from changes in fair value (net of accrued coupon) of
such financial assets and financial liabilities, together with interest
income and expense and dividend income attributable to those
financial instruments.

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income is recognised when the
corresponding service is provided, except where the fee is
charged to cover the costs of a continuing service to, or risk borne
for, the customer, or is interest in nature. In these cases, the fee
is recognised as income in the accounting period in which the
costs or risk is incurred and is accounted for as interest income.

Origination or commitment fees received/paid by the Group
which result in the creation or acquisition of a financial assets
are deferred and recognised as an adjustment to the effective
interest rate. When a loan commitment is not expected to
result in the draw-down of a loan, loan commitment fees are
recognised on a straight-line basis over the commitment period.
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RERITERERA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

(c)

(d)

Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Revenue recognition (cont’d)

(iii) Finance income from finance lease and hire purchase contract
Finance income implicit in the finance lease and hire purchase
payments is recognised as interest income over the period of
the leases so as to produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of return, on the outstanding net investment in the leases
for each accounting period. Commission paid to dealers for
acquisition of finance lease loans or hire purchase contracts is
included in the carrying value of the assets and amortised to
the income statement over the expected life of the lease as an
adjustment to interest income.

(iv) Rental income from operating lease

Rental income received under operating leases is recognised
as other operating income in equal installments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in the income statement as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable.

(v) Dividend income
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.
Dividend income from listed investments is recognised when the
share price of the investment is quoted ex-dividend.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when
the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In
assessing control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable
are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

(d) Subsidiaries (cont’d)
In the Bank’s statement of financial position, its investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any (see note

2(1)).

(e) Financial instruments
(i) Initial recognition
The Group classifies its financial instruments into different
categories at inception, depending on the purpose for which
the assets were acquired or the liabilities were incurred. The
categories are: fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, available-for-sale securities and other financial
liabilities.

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, which
normally will be equal to the transaction price plus, in case of a
financial asset or financial liability not held at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets or issue of the financial liability.
Transaction costs on financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are expensed immediately.

The Group recognises assets and financial liabilities on the
date it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. A regular purchase or sale of financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss is recognised
using trade date accounting. Other financial assets and financial
liabilities are recognised using settlement date accounting.
From these dates, any gains and losses arising from changes in
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recorded.

(ii) Categorisation
Fair value through profit or loss
This category comprises financial assets and liabilities held for
trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition, but exclude those investments in equity
instruments that do not have a quoted market price and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured.
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CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

(e) Financial instruments (cont’d)
(ii) Categorisation (cont'd)

Fair value through profit or loss (cont'd)

Trading financial instruments are financial assets or financial
liabilities which are acquired or incurred principally for the
purpose of trading, or are part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking.
Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting (note 2(g))
are accounted for as trading instruments.

The Group has the option to designate its financial instruments at
fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition when:

- the assets or liabilities are managed, evaluated and reported
internally on a fair value basis;

- the designation eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch which would otherwise arise;

- the asset or liability contains an embedded derivatives that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required under the contract; or

— the separation of the embedded derivatives from the
financial instrument is not prohibited.

Financial assets and liabilities under this category are carried at
fair value. Changes in the fair value are included in the income
statement in the period in which they arise. Upon disposal or
repurchase, the difference between the net sale proceeds or the
net payment and the carrying value is included in the income
statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. TESHBERE)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

(e) EWMITR(E)
(ii) 728 (4)

(e) Financial instruments (cont’d)
(ii) Categorisation (cont'd)
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Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market, other than (a) those that the Group intends to
sell immediately or in the near term, which will be classified
as held for trading; (b) those that the Group, upon initial
recognition, designates at fair value through profit or loss or as
available-for-sale; or (c) those where the Group may not recover
substantially all of its initial investment, other than because of
credit deterioration, which will be classified as available-for-sale.
Loans and receivables mainly comprise loans and advances to
customers, and placements with and advances to banks, central
banks and other financial institutions. Loans and receivables are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
impairment losses, if any (see note 2(1)).

Al EE A Available-for-sale securities
AEHEREFEE T AR HHERITE Available-for-sale securities are non-derivative financial assets that
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are designated as available-for-sale or are not classified in any
of the other two categories above. They include financial assets
intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, but which
may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in the
market environment.

Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value. Unrealised
gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity, except for impairment losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses on monetary items such as debt
securities which are recognised in the income statement.

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured, and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such unquoted equity securities are carried at cost
less impairment losses, if any (see note 2(1)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

(e) Financial instruments (cont’d)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Categorisation (cont’d)

Available-for-sale securities (cont'd)

When the available-for-sale securities are sold, gains or losses
on disposal include the difference between the net sale
proceeds and the carrying value, and the accumulated fair
value adjustments which are previously recognised in other
comprehensive income shall be reclassified from equity to the
income statement.

Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, other than trading liabilities and those
designated at fair value through profit or loss, are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value measurement principles

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their quoted
market prices at the end of the reporting period without any
deduction for estimated future selling costs. Financial assets are
priced at current bid prices, while financial liabilities are priced at
current asking prices.

If there is no publicly available latest traded price nor a quoted
market price on a recognised stock exchange or a price from a
broker/dealer for non-exchange-traded financial instruments, or
if the market for it is not active, the fair value of the instrument
is estimated using valuation techniques that provides a reliable
estimate of prices which could be obtained in actual market
transactions.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated
future cash flows are based on management’s best estimates
and the discount rate used is a market rate at the end of the
reporting period applicable for an instrument with similar terms
and conditions. Where other pricing models are used, inputs are
based on market data at the end of the reporting period.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or where
the financial asset together with substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership, have been transferred.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified
in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

(e) Financial instruments (cont’d)
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(v) Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(vi) Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined)
instrument that includes both the derivative and a host contract
with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined
instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative. The
embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract
and accounted for as a derivative when (a) the economic
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not
closely related to the host contract; and (b) the hybrid (combined)
instrument is not measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement.

When the embedded derivative is separated, the host contract
is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies of
financial instruments (see note 2(e)(ii)).

(f) Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions

Securities sold subject to a simultaneous agreement to repurchase
these securities at a certain later date at a fixed price (repurchase
agreements) are retained in the financial statements and measured in
accordance with their original measurement principles. The proceeds
from the sale are reported as liabilities and are carried at amortised
cost.

Securities purchased under agreements to resell (reverse repurchase
agreements) are reported not as purchases of the securities, but as
receivables and are carried in the statement of financial position at
amortised cost.

Interest earned on reverse repurchase agreements and interest
incurred on repurchase agreements are recognised as interest income
or interest expense respectively, over the life of each agreement using
the effective interest rate method.
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CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

(9) Hedging

Hedge accounting recognises the offsetting effects on profit or
loss of changes in the fair values of the hedging instrument and
the hedged item. The Group assesses and documents whether the
financial instruments that are used in hedging transactions are highly
effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged
items attributable to the hedged risks both at hedge inception and
on an ongoing basis. The Group discontinues prospectively hedge
accounting when (a) the hedging instrument expires or is sold,
terminated or exercised; (b) the hedge no longer meets the criteria for
hedge accounting; or (c) the Group revokes the designation.

(i)  Fairvalue hedge
A fair value hedge seeks to offset risks of changes in the fair value
of recognised asset or liability that will give rise to a gain or loss
being recognised in the income statement.

The hedging instrument is measured at fair value, with fair value
changes recognised in the income statement. The carrying
amount of the hedged item is adjusted by the amount of the
changes in fair value of the hedging instrument attributable
to the risk being hedged. This adjustment is recognised in the
income statement to offset the effect of the gain or loss on the
hedging instrument.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or
exercised, the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, or the Group revokes designation of the hedge
relationship, any adjustment up to that point, to a hedged item
for which the effective interest rate method is used, is amortised
to the income statement as part of the recalculated effective
interest rate of the item over its remaining life.
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Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge
of the variability in cash flows of a recognised asset or liability, or
a highly probable forecast transaction, or the foreign currency risk
of a committed future transaction, the effective part of any gain
or loss on remeasurement of the derivative financial instrument
to fair value is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the hedging reserve. The
ineffective portion of any gain or loss is recognised immediately
in the income statement.

If the hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the
associated gain or loss is reclassified from equity to be included in
the initial cost or other carrying amount of the non-financial asset
or liability.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a financial asset or a financial liability, the associated
gain or loss is reclassified from equity to the income statement
in the same period or periods during which the assets acquired
or liability assumed affects the income statement (such as when
interest income or expense is recognised).

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the preceding
two policy statements, the associated gain or loss is reclassified
from equity to the income statement in the same period or
periods during which the hedged forecast transaction affects the
income statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated
or exercised, or the Group revokes designation of the hedge
relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is still expected
to occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that point remains
in equity until the transaction occurs and is recognised in
accordance with the above policy. If the hedged transaction
is no longer expected to take place, the cumulative unrealised
gain or loss is reclassified from equity to the income statement
immediately.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

(g) Hedging (cont’'d)
(iii) Hedge effectiveness testing
In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the Group carries out
prospective effectiveness testing to demonstrate that it expects
the hedge to be highly effective (prospective effectiveness)
at the inception of the hedge and throughout its life. Actual
effectiveness (retrospective effectiveness) also needs to be
demonstrated on an ongoing basis.

The documentation of each hedging relationship sets out how
the effectiveness of the hedge is assessed. The method which
the Group adopts for assessing hedge effectiveness will depend
on its risk management strategy.

For fair value hedge relationships, the Group utilises the
cumulative dollar offset method as effectiveness testing
methodologies. For cash flow hedge relationships, the
Group utilises the cumulative dollar offset method using the
hypothetical derivative approach.

For prospective effectiveness, the hedging instrument must be
expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes
in fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk during
the period for which the hedge is designated. For actual
effectiveness, the changes in fair value or cash flows must offset
each other in the range of 80 per cent to 125 per cent for the
hedge to be deemed effective.

(h) Investment property
Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned
and/or held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(j)) to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation. These include land and
buildings held for a currently undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated in the statement of financial
position at fair value. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair
value or from the retirement or disposal of an investment property is
recognised in the income statement. Rental income from investment
properties is accounted for as described in note 2(c)(iv).
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Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Investment property (cont’d)

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the
interest is classified and accounted for as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis. Any such property interest which
has been classified as an investment property is accounted for as if
it were held under a finance lease (see note 2(j)(ii)), and the same
accounting policies are applied to that interest as are applied to other
investment properties leased under finance leases. Lease payments
are accounted for as described in note 2(c)(iii).

Other property and equipment

In preparing these financial statements, advantage has been taken
of the transitional provisions set out in paragraph 80A of HKAS 16
"Property, plant and equipment”, issued by the HKICPA, with effect that
other premises which are carried at revalued amounts in financial
statements relating to periods ended before 30 September 1995 have
not been revalued to fair value at the end of the reporting period.

The following items of property and equipment are stated in the
statement of financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, if any (see note 2(1)):

— land held under operating leases and buildings thereon, where
the fair value of the leasehold interest in the land and buildings
can be measured separately at the inception of the lease (see
note 2(j)(ii)); and

- otheritems of equipment.

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties held for own use
are generally dealt with in other comprehensive income and are
accumulated separately in equity in the property revaluation reserve.
The only exceptions are as follows:

- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be charged to the
income statement to the extent that it exceeds the amount held
in the reserve in respect of that same asset immediately prior to
the revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be credited to the
income statement to the extent that a deficit on revaluation in
respect of that same asset had previously been charged to the
income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Other property and equipment (cont’d)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of
property and equipment are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and
are recognised in the income statement on the date of retirement
or disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred from the
revaluation reserve to retained profits and is not reclassified to the
income statement.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of items
of property and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if
any, using the straight line method over the estimated useful lives as
follows:

freehold land is not depreciated.

buildings — over 30 years or the unexpired terms of the land
leases, whichever is shorter.

furniture, fixtures and equipment — 3 to 10 years.

Where parts of an item of property and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.

Leases and hire purchase contracts

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of the
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether the
arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i)  Classification of leased assets
Leases which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee are classified as finance leases. Leases
which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee are classified as operating leases.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
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(ii)  Finance leases

Where the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an amount
representing the net investment in the lease is included in
the statement of financial position as loans and advances to
customers. Hire purchase contracts having the characteristics of
finance leases are accounted for in the same manner as finance
leases. Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policy as set out in note 2(1).

(iii) Operating leases

Where the Group leases out assets under operating leases,
the assets are included in the statement of financial position
according to their nature and, where applicable, are depreciated
in accordance with the Group's depreciation policies, as set out
in note 2(i). Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy as set out in note 2(l). Revenue arising
from operating leases is recognised in accordance with the
Group's revenue recognition policies, as set out in note 2(c)(iv).

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to income
statement in equal installments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from
the leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in the
income statement as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made.

(k) Repossessed assets

In the recovery of impaired loans and advances, the Group may take
repossession of assets held as collateral through court proceedings
or voluntary delivery of possession by the borrowers. Where it is
intended to achieve an orderly realisation of the impaired assets
and the Group is no longer seeking repayment from the borrower,
repossessed assets are reported in “Other assets”.

Repossessed assets are recognised at the lower of the carrying
amount of the related loans and advances and fair value of such
amounts less costs to sell at the date of exchange. They are not
depreciated or amortised.

Impairment losses on initial classification and on subsequent
remeasurement are recognised in the income statement.
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Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Impairment of assets

The carrying amount of the Group's assets are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence that financial assets are
impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about one or more of the following loss events which has an
impact on the future cash flows on the assets that can be estimated
reliably:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or borrower;

- abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the borrower;

- disappearance of an active market for financial assets because of
financial difficulties; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, the carrying amount is reduced to the
estimated recoverable amount by means of a charge to the income
statement.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of loans
and receivables, which are measured at amortised cost, whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against loans and receivables directly and
any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that borrower/
investment are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in the income statement.
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Impairment losses on loans and receivables are measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets). Receivables with
a short duration are not discounted if the effect of discounting is
immaterial.

The total allowance for credit losses consists of two components:
individual impairment allowances and collective impairment
allowances.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The individual impairment allowance is based upon
management’s best estimate of the present value of the cash
flows which are expected to be received discounted at the
original effective interest rate. In estimating these cash flows,
management makes judgments about the borrower’s financial
situation and the net realisable value of any underlying collateral
or guarantees in favour of the Group. Each impaired asset is
assessed on its own merits.

In assessing the need for collective impairment allowances,
management uses statistical modelling and considers factors
such as credit quality, portfolio size, concentrations, and
economic factors. In order to estimate the required allowance,
the Group makes assumptions both to define the way the Group
models inherent losses and to determine the required input
parameters, based on historical experience and current economic
conditions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

U]

Impairment of assets (cont’d)

(i)

(ii)

Loans and receivables (cont’d)

The accuracy of the impairment allowances the Group makes
depends on how well the Group can estimate future cash flows
for individually assessed impairment allowances and the model
assumptions and parameters used in determining collective
impairment allowances. While this necessarily involves judgment,
the Group believes that the impairment allowances on loans and
advances to customers are reasonable and supportable.

Any subsequent changes to the amounts and timing of the
expected future cash flows compared to the prior estimates that
can be linked objectively to an event occurring after the write-
down, will result in a change in the impairment allowances on
loans and receivables and be charged or credited to the income
statement. A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the
loans and receivables’ carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

When there is no reasonable prospect of recovery, the loan and
the related interest receivables are written off.

Loans and receivables with renegotiated terms are loans that
have been restructured due to deterioration in the borrower’s
financial position and where the Group has made concessions
that it would not otherwise consider. Renegotiated loans and
receivables are subject to ongoing monitoring to determine
whether they remain impaired or past due.

Available-for-sale securities

When there is objective evidence that an available-for-sale
security is impaired, the cumulative loss that had been recognised
in the fair value reserve is reclassified to the income statement.
The amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised in the
income statement is the difference between the acquisition cost
(net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

U]

Impairment of assets (cont’d)

(ii)

(iii)

Available-for-sale securities (cont’d)

For unquoted available-for-sale equity securities that are carried
at cost, the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the equity securities and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset where the effect of
discounting is material. Such impairment losses are not reversed.

Impairment losses recognised in the income statement in respect
of available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed through the
income statement. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of
such assets is recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt securities
are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised. Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in the income statement.

Other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

- property and equipment (other than properties carried at
revalued amounts); and

- investments in subsidiaries and associates.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated.
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RERITERERA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

)

Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Impairment of assets (cont’d)
(iii) Other assets (cont’d)
- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs to
sell, or value in use, if determinable.

- Reversal of impairment losses
In respect of assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversal of
impairment losses are credited to the income statement in
the year in which the reversals are recognised.

(iv) Interim financial reporting and impairment
The Group prepares an interim financial report in compliance
with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the first six
months of the year. At the end of the interim period, the Group
applies the same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the year (see note 2(1)(i) to (iii)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

(m) Cash equivalents
Cash equivalents are short-terms, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition.

(n) Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

(ii) Share-based payments

Employee share option scheme

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding increase
in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is measured at
grant date using the trinomial lattice model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to those share options, the
total estimated fair value of the share options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability that the
options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to the income statement for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of share options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to capital reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not act achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the shares of CITIC International
Financial Holdings Limited.
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CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

(n) Employee benefits (cont’d)

(o)

(ii)

(iii)

Share-based payments (cont’d)

The equity amount is recognised in share option reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it is transferred to share
premium) or the option expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits).

Employee Equity Linked Deferred Award Scheme (“"ELDA")
Awards were granted to employees of the Group under ELDA.
The fair value of the amount payable to the employee was
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding increase
in liabilities. The fair value was initially measured at grant date
and spread over the period during which the employees become
unconditionally entitled to payment. The fair value estimation
of the award granted was measured based on a trinomial lattice
model and subject to the maximum payment of HK$3.00 per
share. The liability was remeasured at the end of each reporting
period and at settlement date. Any changes in the fair value of
the liability were recognised in the income statement.

ELDA had been fully vested on 28 April 2008 and no ELDA
remained outstanding as at 31 December 2009 and 2008.

Staff retirement scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution provident fund and a
Mandatory Provident Fund scheme. Contributions are charged
to the income statement as and when the contributions fall due.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements

in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements

in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in the income

statement except to the extent that they relate to items recognised

in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case

the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the

year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of

the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of

previous years.
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temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences
are taken into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to
the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available. Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

—EENEER
Annual Report 2009

083



084

BT ImA M

(o)

(p)

TEETEHERE)

FrE® (&)
AERBMELERIBASRMEZ S S
SR - MAARTEE - EXNKEHATHE
BORENIL A AT S IRFRBERT -
REIMESE R IR A E 7 °] 3 Bl K 85 AR B A
EETRIARE -

— AEBBEEEMAE  NEBESHAITE
BRFRAELE  IEBREENR
FBERIE 3

— BEEHBEEMAE  GLEENAE
MR R — TSR BLIA T E AR — TR
WHIFTSTRA R -

— R—ERRER X

— TRMNERVERE - ELERTE
ERMAERBREEHRRERTRE
ESELERIAE E R AR E—
ARIRERE - RFREE TR AR
HEEMBEANRHARE - HH*E
EREENRRBERE -

SN E
AEEANIINERFEZXHANERRE
BB UINEHENEREERBER
RESHMEZTBEQEE - ELRED
TR aE R TR o

MESERAGTERINEIFEREERARE
RS HMINEERBE QB o LA
BEREMA AN A BEIIKNIFEEEE
HEERETAABEE BMINEERR
o

PERITERERAE
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

(o)

(p)

Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Income tax (cont’d)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not offset.
Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if, and only if, the Group or
the Bank has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group or the
Bank intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net
basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated into Hong Kong
dollars using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transactions
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

(p)

(a)

Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Translation of foreign currencies (cont’d)

Exchange differences relating to investments at fair value through
profit or loss and derivative financial instruments are included in gains
less losses from trading securities or financial instruments designated
at fair value through profit or loss. All other exchange differences
relating to monetary items are presented as gains less losses from
dealing in foreign currencies in the income statement. Differences
arising on translation of available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial position
items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified
from equity to the income statement when the profit or loss on
disposal is recognised.

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities

(i) Financial guarantees issued
Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the holder) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee to customers, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the guarantee fees received)
is initially recognised as deferred income within other liabilities.
Where the Bank issues a financial guarantee to its subsidiaries, the
fair value of the guarantee is estimated and capitalised as the cost
of investment in subsidiaries and deferred income within other
liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

(q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (cont’d)

(i)

(ii)

Financial guarantees issued (cont’d)

The deferred income is amortised in the income statement over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees
issued. In addition, provisions are recognised in accordance with
note 2(q)(ii) if and when (a) it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the guarantee,
and (b) the amount of that claim on the Group is expected
to exceed the amount currently carried in other liabilities in
respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amorisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group or the Bank has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(r) Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered

to be related to the Group if:

(i)

(i)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one or
more intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise significant
influence over the Group in making financial and operating policy
decisions, or has joint control over the Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common control;

(iii) the party is an associate of the Group;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(r)

(s)

Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Related parties (cont’d)

(iv) the party is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Group's parent, or a close family member of such
an individual, or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals;

(v) the partyis a close family member of a party referred to in (i) or is
an entity under the control, joint control or significant influence
of such individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for the
benefit of employees of the Group, the Group's parent or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that individual in
their dealings with the entity.

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current assets (or disposal group) is classified as held for sale if it
is highly probable that its carrying amount will be recovered through
a sale transaction rather that through continuing use and the asset (or
disposal group) is available for sale in its present condition. A disposal
group is a group of assets to be disposed of together as a group in a
single transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those assets
that will be transferred in the transaction.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement
of the non-current assets (and all individual assets and liabilities
in a disposal group) is brought up-to-date in accordance with
the accounting policies before the classification. Then, on initial
classification as held for sale and until disposal, the non-current assets
(except for certain assets as explained below), or disposal groups, are
recognised at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this measurement policy so far
as the financial statements of the Group and the Bank are concerned
are deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits financial
assets (other than investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures) and investment properties. These assets, even if held for
sale, would continue to be measured in accordance with the policies
set out elsewhere in note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale, and on
subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are recognised in the
income statement. As long as a non-current assets is classified as held
for sale, or is included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated or amortised.

—EENEER
Annual Report 2009

087



088

BT A M

(t)

TEETEHERE)

DEBEE
R R 20K E DR R & 2 #RR
B2 EREBEEHMREAETAKERST
BEEERRERDE - ULFZAEE
B EETE B0 Ko [ 35 BT A2 10 3% 3R A B 75 B R
a2

BRIED BRLER M - FERNMRB
B EERFHEE  TEPEMER - #
EERMREHRBHGE  REEREN
MERA - BARERNEED ST
BWMEANEE - MEMEA A LEREHE
=dE - WHER ETEKX - BIAJgegwa
it e

ERTBERIERT

EB G A S EMAE BB E BTG
HAEAER]) - WEKEBHERE LR NMEL
TETETRTFUATNZRE  LEEHE
AREBEATHNEM ST M ERER -
To AEPEAREEMBRERBEAORT
BRE
— (EBUBHEERNFETR—[ &L HE6]
— (BB GTEDNFE15E (2007FEET) —
[B sz 2 251

— (BEBMBHREERDF7HR(ETA) —
[©RITA : KE-—NEeRTAMNKE]

— (BB BIEER DR BCE (20085F)

— BE(ERMBEHRERE
131|7k—|—%)5$\a)3€a‘|'§ﬁ

ZEE)RES

RERITERERA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

(t)

Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group's most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have simillar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

Changes in Accounting Policies
The HKICPA has issued a new HKFRS, a number of amendments to
HKFRSs and new interpretations that are first effective for the current

accounting period of the Group and the Bank. Of these, the following
developments are relevant to the Group's financial statements:

—  HKFRS 8, Operating Segments

—  HKAS 1 (revised 2007), Presentation of financial statements

- Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures —
improving disclosures about financial instruments

- Improvements to HKFRSs (2008)

- HK(FRIC) 13, Customer loyalty programmes
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Changes in Accounting Policies (cont’d)

HKFRS 8 requires segment disclosure to be based on the way that
the Group's chief operating decision maker regards and manages
the Group, with the amounts reported for each reportable segment
being the measures reported to the Group's chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of assessing segment performance and
making decisions about operating matters. The adoption of HKFRS 8
has resulted in the presentation of segment information in a manner
that is more consistent with internal reporting provided to the
Group’s most senior executive management, and the four operating
segments including wholesale banking, retail banking, treasury and
markets, and others are being identified and presented (see note
17). Corresponding amounts have also been provided on a basis
consistent with the revised segment information.

As a result of the adoption of HKAS 1 (revised 2007), details of changes
in equity during the period arising from transactions with equity
shareholders in their capacity as such have been presented separately
from all other income and expenses in a revised consolidated
statement of changes in equity. All other items of income and
expenses are presented in the consolidated income statement,
if they are recognised as part of profit or loss for the period, or
otherwise in a new primary statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Corresponding amounts have been restated
to conform to the new presentation. The revised title “Statement of
financial position” has been adopted for the “Balance sheet”. This
change in presentation has no effect on reported profit or loss, total
income and expenses or net assets for any period presented.

As a result of the adoption of the amendments to HKFRS 7, the
financial statements include expanded disclosures in note 43 about
the fair value measurement of the Group’s financial instruments,
categorising these fair value measurements into a three-level fair
value hierarchy according to the extent to which they are based
on observable market data. The Group has taken advantage of the
transitional provisions set out in the amendments to HKFRS 7, under
which comparative information for the newly required disclosures
about the fair value measurements of financial instruments has not
been provided.

The “Improvements to HKFRSs (2008)" comprise a number of minor
and non-urgent amendments to a range of HKFRSs which the HKICPA
has issued as an omnibus batch of amendment. The impact of these
amendments are not considered to be material to the Group.

—EENEER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SEBERIERT (]) 3. Changes in Accounting Policies (cont’d)
EE(ERVBRERELZEG)REE 3 HK(IFRIC) 13 addresses how reporting entities that grant their
Gt SRETRENAEHE TFTEPAEH customers loyalty award credits when buying goods or services
EREIEDAR  LHERBEEFPAER should account for their obligation to provide free or discounted
ERmERGIHE T NMERPHIRESD goods and services, if and when the customers redeem these credits.
RSt e BTN m ARG A HGE o HK(IFRIC) 13 requires reporting entities to allocate some of the
EE(ERVBRERELZER)REE 3 proceeds of the initial sales to the award credits and recognise these
GERREEREEE SO ULEERN proceeds as revenue when they have fulfilled their obligations to
WHIRIE DB E BB D - W E M PITK provide goods or services. The effect of the adoption of HK(IFRIC) 13
IR RS RBE A ERBWA o HEL was not considered to be material for the Group, and therefore, the
REES (BB BHREREEES)2ER prior year figures have not been restated.
BIREAEEWTRBEEATE  BRE
HAFENLERBTIEHER -
AEBWVERBITMEZE M ETHE® R The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is
AR E R AER S 2 (2B EE50) not yet effective for the current accounting period (see note 50).
FIEWA 4. InterestIncome
—EEAE —TEN\F
2009 2008
BETT BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
RS Listed securities 204,430 348,506
FELETES Unlisted securities 416,787 394,010
HAh, Others 2,342,039 3277319
2,963,256 4,019,835

HE_TETZNANFRZZFEZENF+ A
=+ BUFE UEFBRAMEHE -
BERKERATIFBRIZARLEBETA
BEaErNemEENNERARERAE
WFEZH °

HE-_ZZNAF+_A=+—RHILEFE "
HF B RABERESBEEMNETF
BN B 2364000t ( ZEE)N\F : B
2,9850007T) « R EBREEFREEER
IREE LA F B U A E#1,874000L (ZFE
J\EE © #¥2,136,0007T) ©

RERITERERA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

All interest income and interest expenses included in the income
statement refer to those interest income on financial assets or interest
expenses on financial liabilities that are not at fair value through profit
or loss for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008.

Included in the above is interest income accrued on impaired financial
assets of HKS$2,364,000 (2008: HK$2,985,000), which includes interest
income on unwinding of discount on loan impairment losses of
HK$ 1,874,000 (2008: HKS$2,136,000) for the year ended 31 December
20009.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. Net Fee and Commission Income

—BEhRE —TT)N\F
2009 2008
BT T BT T
HKS$’000 HK$'000
ERNMAESIA - Fee and commission income:
B ik Bills commission 67,646 78,241
IR G ON Cards related income 24,020 30,410
—RRERTTIRFS General banking services 74,201 60,306
Rbg Insurance 116,391 107,317
BENREBEREER Investment and structured investment products 86,089 159,410
BER B LmEER Loans, overdrafts and facilities fees 515,678 323,658
Hh Others 828 268
884,853 760,310
BERRAST T Fee and commission expense (26,603) (16,779)
858,250 743,531
He e Of which:
FEANAEWA (TBERETE Net fee and commission income (other than the
BERAE28)  BRWLIEER amounts included in determining the effective
AEETAEBZENSREE interest rate) relating to financial assets and
KafE: liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss:
—BRARASKA — Fee and commission income 539,698 354,068
- BRI — Fee and commission expense (12,511) (6,593)
527,187 347475
6. EXBWA(EHE) 6. Net Trading Income/(Loss)
—EENE —BENEFE
2009 2008
BT T BT
HK$'000 HKS$'000
EBMERE TAEFSERME Net loss and write-down on structured
investment vehicles - (717,885)
HiFRZHHA - Other net trading income:
BB INERE 1B Gains less losses from dealing in foreign currencies 209,751 171,638
BEXHABREFWZRER Gains less losses from trading securities (909) (43,560)
EfE B EBINERE R Gains less losses from other dealing activities 65,791 99,579
RERBAENSWA Interest income on trading assets
— kM — Listed - 36
—JELmm — Unlisted 12,217 3,861
286,850 231,554
286,850 (486,331)
—senEER

Annual Report 2009



BT A M

6. BRBWA(ER) (F)

AEBRGEEERETANRER_ZZ
NF+ZAZ+—BIEFEHAERERAR
BENZIMBEEFEBRMENEE
717,885,0007T °

7. EEABRBREURMAABENE

Notes to the Financial Statements

6. Net Trading Income/(Loss) (cont’d)

The Group recorded a net loss and write-down on structured

investment vehicles of approximately HK$717,885,000 for the year

ended 31 December 2008, which represented the changes in fair

value of the investments.

7. Net Loss from Financial Instruments Designated at Fair

AT BFEE Value through Profit or Loss
—2BRE —TIF
2009 2008
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000
FEE Net losses (19,354) (40,561)

FBUA Interest income
— kW — Listed 5,749 4,964
—JFE LM — Unlisted 12,170 17,680
FEXZH Interest expense (3,284) (56,505)
(4,719) (74,422)
8. FYH(EE) W 8. Net Hedging (Loss)/Gain

—EEREF —“EENEFE
2009 2008
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HKS'000
DR EEEFRZFE(EE), s Net (loss)/gain on fair value hedge (3,734) 2,933

9. HEWHHERSFNE

9. Net Gain on Disposal of Available-for-sale Securities

—EENE —EENEFE

2009 2008

BT T BT T

HK$’000 HKS'000

HREBEENFEHNE Net revaluation gain transferred from reserves 59,546 45,612
FEANEANF(ER), W Net (loss)/gain arising in current year (1,795) 583
57,751 46,195

092 RFRITEIRBRAF
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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11.

Notes to the Financial Statements

10. Hfth&&E WA 10. Other Operating Income
—EEAE —BEN\F
2009 2008
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
A ERREFRERA Dividend income from available-for-sale equity securities
—tm — Listed 85 40
—3E LM — Unlisted 4,360 4,060
REMFEHSWABEE L Rental income from investment properties less direct
7E#322,0007T (ZFTN\F - outgoings of HK$322,000 (2008: HK$240,000)
& #5240,0007T) 4,202 4,132
Hitt Others 53,816 61,988
62,463 70,220
e 11. Operating Expenses
—EBhE —ZT)N\F
2009 2008
BT T BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
(@) BIMEA (a) Staff costs
Frae MEAME TR Salaries and other staff costs 721,253 686,798
RIRES AR (FE38) Retirement costs (note 38) 48,514 46,115
LARRRE BT B9S2 H Share-based payment expenses
— ARRIEE T HIAR 19 X H ~ Equity-settled share-based payment expenses - 16,129
— AR EMRRND S E - Cash-settled share-based payment expenses - 4,997
769,767 754,039
(b) TE (b) Depreciation
2 KR ITE (FIEE27) Depreciation of property and equipment (note 27)
—BELCEHESENEE — Assets held for use under operating leases 13,054 10,678
—HMEE ~ Other assets 62,374 67,035
75,428 77,713
() HbiR&E X H (c) Other operating expenses
S EJSE B Property and equipment expenses
(TBERE) (excluding depreciation)
/I E ik — Rental of properties 88,843 88,167
—HAth - Others 79,462 88,322
=R & Auditor's remuneration 4,924 6,238
BEE Advertising 29,937 41,326
WAE - BRI R UEA R Communication, printing and stationery 61,429 64,188
FENEEER Legal and professional fees 31,247 33,389
HAt (FHEE()) Others (Note (i)) 453,676 71,836
749,518 493,466
BT AR Total operating expenses 1,594,713 1,325,218
—EEhEER
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REER(SER]) BHELAHAESHER
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BEZHZE  AMTERNTEESNEFLOE
HEBATREXIEERRE S LHRMER
BEHFENEBEREEM([ZEETE]) - X
ZETNFNZZZT)N\F - AEBECHZE
BB RES N BRIRES N E RSB
ZEAMEER TR EARHES BB
298,000,0007T ©

Ega T HeRRELEHESTN&
BEEMHESZTE PR AREHESTHHE
#3,646,0007C (Z T )\ F : % 4,834,000
L) REMEBEMES T (BEDERS) B
#84,157,0007C (=TT /\ 4 : 5%83,133,000
TT) °

Notes to the Financial Statements

11. Operating Expenses (cont’d)

Note:

U]

On 22 July 2009, the Bank entered into an agreement with the
Hong Kong Monetary Authority ("HKMA”"), the Securities and Futures
Commission and 15 other distributing banks under which the Bank
would offer to eligible customers to repurchase a structured investment,
known as Lehman Brothers (“LB") Minibonds subscribed or purchased
through the Bank (“the Repurchase Scheme”). The Group has provided
for a total amount of approximately HK$298,000,000 for the years of 2009
and 2008 regarding LB Minibonds compensations which were under
the Repurchase Scheme together with related expenses for funding the
recovery of the collaterals by the trustee.

Included in other operating expenses are minimum lease payment
under operating leases of HK$3,646,000 (2008: HK$4,834,000) for hire of
equipment and HK$84,157,000 (2008: HK$83,133,000) for hire of other
assets (including property rentals).

12. EEf ¢ 12. Directors’ Remuneration

BIEEBCDTUEN)E 161 183 52 1) &= STl Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the

ST Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:
—EEBhE —ZTTN\F
2009 2008
BT T BT
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
EE8% Directors' fees 2,395 2,370
e R REYHA (M) Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind (note (ii)) 14,499 10,577
FISTELT Discretionary bonuses 6,342 2,871
VARSAE B (B EEG)) Share-based payments (note (i) - 2,356
RIRETEIH IR Retirement scheme contributions 490 477
23,726 18,651

FEE - Note:

LM BEE TERRBEARENERR
RE PEERERERAR([FEEE])
MBBERT SER TREN AR EE - 1t
BREFZER _FTN\F+—ARARE
FEE S MBI L P A AT iR H A 15
AL ©

RERITERERA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

0]

The above emoluments include the fair value of share options granted to
certain directors under the Group'’s immediate parent, CITIC International
Financial Holdings Limited ("CIFH") share option scheme. The share
option scheme was cancelled pursuant to the offer terms in the Scheme
of Arrangements of privatisation on 5 November 2008.
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12. EEM< (&) 12. Directors’ Remuneration (cont'd)
MisE : (48) Note: (cont'd)
iy R-EENFER-_ZEZT+F+-_A=1+—H (i) During the year ended 31 December 2008 and 2007, the executive
LEFE - AREBITE S FE BMedium-term directors of the Group were granted deferred payment bonuses in form
Equity Linked Performance Bonus( [ MEPBJ) &t of cash benefit amounted to HK$9,002,000 under the Group’s Medium-
g2 EE_ZEEAFER T RNFEMME term Equity Linked Performance Bonus ("“MEPB”) scheme based on their
AEBEMELHNERMEL TURSFE performance in the years of 2007 and 2006. Under the terms of the
B - AEUE9,002,0007T HYIEEE scheme, HK$4,501,000 was paid in 2009 (2008: HK$1,929,000), and the
B4 - BIBEZETEIGR ERZZTENEF remaining balance would be payable to the executive directors in 2010.
S A EE4,501,000 T RIB(Z ST )\ F - No MEPB was granted during 2009.

B#1,9290007T) + EFBARIBEBBER -Z
—EFER - R-TENF  THRIAEET

MEPB °

(il RZZEZTNE  AEERTEFTER B (i) In the year 2009, a new retention incentive (using a deferred mechanism)
¥ EE PR A2 (0 A AT BRM ) 42 R Medium named as Medium Term Reward (“MTR’) with cash benefit amounting to
Term Reward 1 & 45 T A 38 & F 25 2 =0 2 HK$1,705,000, has been granted to executive directors of the Group in
W ABEEE1,705000TTHIELL - WS E R 2009. The bonus would be payable to the executive directors in 2011
TR —FER -

(v) —IEBFRREASEE S8 D ERZZE (iv) A new long term incentive scheme (“the scheme”) has been approved in
NEERE - BIBEIEE - 8EBALTHE 2009. Under the scheme, eligible persons will be granted a number of
EES— AT ERD » MEBIRDH S phantom shares. Payment for each phantom share is determined by the
BURAE S NFRARTEBBIFARTT appreciation in the Bank's book value over a 3-year period starting from
ﬁ?ﬁ’]ﬁﬁﬁfﬂﬁﬂﬁ o8 A B H I B 2009 and there is no actual transfer of shares. HK$4,000,000 has been
E oM ZETNF  REETEEBRSET accrued in the staff costs including the amount payable to the directors
B 4,000,000 EFHREE TR - I in 2009 based on management best estimation.

BIEME SR A EEE -
13. ERREBFREBE 13. Impairment Losses on Loans and Advances
—EERE —ZETN\F
2009 2008
BETT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000

B EBIZUREEE(B5E230) Impairment losses on loans and advances (note 23(b))

— BRI ER — Individual assessment (467,485) (360,604)
—RA A - Collective assessment (91,410) (22,581)
(558,895) (383,185)

Hrh of which:

— iR — Additions (666,670) (485,141)
— Bl ~ Releases 21,703 43,226
— K EEF — Recoveries 86,072 58,730

(558,895) (383,185)

—ETREFH |05
Annual Report 2009



096

BT A M

14. FREWHERFTRE TGS

(a) HFEWEHRTRAFED

Notes to the Financial Statements

14. Income Tax in the Consolidated Income Statement

(a) Income tax in the consolidated income statement

“EENE —ETNF
2009 2008
BT BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FTHBE-FEFEH Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
FREE(HEE320) Provision for the year (note 32(a)) 159,660 5,856
B F RN Over-provision in respect of prior years - (657)
159,660 5,199
AHIBIIE — B IMBR Current tax - Overseas
FNER Provision for the year 12,849 18473
BEFEHBEBRR Under-provision in respect of prior years 2,812 441
15,661 18,914
BEEHIE Deferred tax
TR EENESE RER (MFF320) Origination and reversal of temporary differences (note 32(b)) (8,699) 8,821
ER &L A1 BRI IEAREN Effect on deferred tax balances as at 1 January resulting from
FE(ME320)) achange in tax rate (note 32(b)) - 3,069
(8,699) 11,890
166,622 36,003
—EFENFEEENEHRBMBRENEEM The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2009 is calculated at 16.5%
FHER TR IR E165%( —2F )\ F ¢ (2008: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year. Taxation
165%)5HE o BN 1T R B A RIRFIE A for overseas branches and subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate

RIRAERROEERITHRERES -

RERITERERA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant countries.
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14.

(b) BiIAX HERSFHEFIRE AR RTEBK

15.

AR AR TSR (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements

14. Income Tax in the Consolidated Income Statement

(cont’d)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at

¥ ERR applicable tax rates
—EENF —EENF
2009 2008
BET T BET T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
At & A Profit before tax 1,119,521 164,311
RIAE BRI E A A S iR Notional tax on profit before tax, calculated at the rates
FTEMRANR T BERIE applicable to profits in the countries concerned 196,838 31911
AR H a2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 22,537 32,553
FEEEFRM AT E Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (49,690) (33,111)
RNERFRAUNERBEENRIETZ Tax effect of previous tax losses utilised in current year (1,071) -
RERORERREEENRIBSE Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised -
BEFEHIBEBHIR (D#) Under/(over)-provision in prior years 2,812 216)
AR RN A1 REERIA Fffect on deferred tax balances at 1 January
PREER & resulting from a change in tax rate - 3,069
Hh Others (4,804) 1,794
ERHIEL T Actual tax expense 166,622 36,003
RITRR R FE(L SR 15. Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the Bank

RITIRREIEEGE R M BB IARITH
R A A& F) B 767,297,000 (ZEF

J\EF : B #64,887,0007T) °

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Bank
includes a profit of HK$767,297,000 (2008: HK$64,887,000) which has

been dealt with in the financial statements of the Bank.

—EENEER
Annual Report 2009
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Notes to the Financial Statements

16. Hfb = E UK E 16. Other Comprehensive Income
BAREMEENSZARTONFHIESE Tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive
income
“EENE —TENE
2009 2008
HE HE
(Xd)/ (%)
HAgE Wi BREAFE  HaEE Wi BHEEE
Beforetax Tax (expense)/  Net-of-tax Beforetax  Tax (expense)/  Net-of-tax
amount benefit amount amount benefit amount
BT  AMTr  B%Tn BBt B¥Tr BBt
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFINIBARIMBKRED  Exchange differences on translation of
ERER financial statements of overseas subsidiaries (40,863) - (40,863) 15,148 - 15,148
BEMNEENSER Surplus on revaluation of other premises upon
RENFNEHEL reclassification to investrment properties
(i3 (note) 7,719 - 7,719 - -
HEMEMNEEZEN Release of deferred tax liabilities upon disposal
RENEMERK of investment properties transferred from
EREHEEE other premises - - - : 277 277
AR EME BIRETHIE et on defered tax balances as at 1 January
RENTE resulting from a change in tax rate - - - - 267 267
HEEES Available-for-sale securities
- ARLEEF A EE - Net movement in available-for-sale
ERE fair value reserve 95,825 (15,811) 80,014 (315,071) 50936 (264,135)
2 mie Other comprehensive income 62,681 (15811) 46,870 (299923) 51,480 (248443)
PR - Note:

REMIMEESH O BARENEMELNERR
HRHORETE SR _TTNFHERENER

'R -

098] SIRITEBRARDE
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The tax impact on other properties revaluation surplus upon reclassification
to investment properties was subsequently released upon sale of the subject

property in 2009.
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17. D ERE R

DHEHNERTATREMMA T ZLE
R A FEE HIZR B R M ERRTAZ DAR TE 10
WORERMAZKEBENTA - - K&
FHERTATHAREEZ2HDHE o

CERTEKTIECREEIRE  REE
REEMERER -

TERTEBIZREFRFARS - £
EVMERE EMBEBEE - ERRRSE
LREME -

HERTHEKBREREINER SR -
Beminis) BEEREIZIFNTAEAS
B o RIMNEBBATRINAESKEE
BOESKRE -

HEBTEBRERDEBRAR L » 4
TTREESH -

MO RHREME - LEBRANDERRE
NEPEEEREFIRRE SN E DD
EBoEE - RANDERBREESEEHD
BOBERARABREESEEEERT
BEBOE - ERRTVEELNTEM
SERRR[EM]ES D BELEKR
AREEB D B BRELE S -

Notes to the Financial Statements

17. Segment Reporting

Segment information is presented in a consistent way with that
reportable segments are regularly reviewed or evaluated internally by
chief operating decision maker to allocate resources to the segments
and to assess their performance. The Group has identified the
following four main reportable segments.

Wholesale banking business mainly comprises trade financing,
syndicated loans and other corporate lendings.

Retail banking business mainly comprises deposit account services,
residential mortgage, other consumer lendings, credit card services
and finance leases.

Treasury and markets covers provision of foreign exchange services,
money market activities, management of investment securities
and central cash management. In addition, it comprises all fund
investments made by the Bank that are managed by external fund
managers.

Others mainly comprises unallocated revenue and expenses, head
office and corporate expenses.

For the purpose of segment reporting, the allocation of operating
income reflects the benefits of funding resources allocated to
the business segments based on internal funds transfer pricing
mechanism. Cost allocation is based on the direct costs incurred by
the respective business segments and apportionment of overheads
on a reasonable basis to the business segments. Rental charges at
market rate for usage of bank premises are reflected as inter-segment
income for the "Others” segment and inter-segment expenses for the
respective business segments.

—EENEER
Annual Report 2009
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17. 2 &R E# ()

(a) ATE2FHDIP

Notes to the Financial Statements

17. Segment Reporting (cont’d)

(a) Reportable segments

ARE
The Group
—ETNE
2009
¥R ZERT HERDS
Wholesale Retail Treasuryand Hit SE
banking banking markets Others  Consolidated
BETT BETT BETRT BETRT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FMEHA Net interest income 863,578 759,479 159,653 154,490 1,937,200
Hith WA Other operating income 554,578 331,844 201,746 110,942 1,199,110
HERHHEES Net gain on disposal of available-for-

Fls sale securities 2,643 - 55,108 - 57,751
HSTON Operating income 1,420,799 1,091,323 416,507 265,432 3,194,061
mEX Operating expenses (163,622) (726,086) (38,375) (666,630)  (1,594,713)
DEREAEEULA (ST H) Inter-segment income/(expenses) (158,740) (233,743) (60,170) 452,653 -
HBRREEEATN Operating profit before

R RF impairment 1,098,437 131,494 317,962 51,455 1,599,348
ERNBIURERE Impairment losses (charged for)/

(%f5),/ ol written back on loans and

advances (502,747) (64,664) - 8,516 (558,895)
AHEEEAFRE Impairment losses written back on

ERm & available-for-sale securities - 4 - - 4

REERCESE) B Impairment losses (charged for)/

written back (502,747) (64,660) - 8,516 (558,891)
FGyv Operating profit 595,690 66,834 317,962 59,971 1,040,457
HEMERREFRZE  Netgain/(oss) on disposal of property

(B18) and equipment (1) (496) (1) 43,446 42,948
WEYES MW Revaluation gain on investment

properties - - - 36,116 36,116

BADES Profit before taxation 595,689 66,338 317,961 139,533 1,119,521
Prigt Income tax - - - (166,622) (166,622)
REERR,/(B8) Profit/(loss) for the year 595,689 66,338 317,961 (27,089) 952,899
HivpEBEE : Other segment items:
e Depreciation 3,091 11,124 498 60,715 75,428
PEEE Segment assets 47,704,404 27,424,420 43,389,211 1,604,750 120,122,785
PEERE Segment liabilities 44,158,875 52,844,792 13,525,054 (2,636,643) 107,892,078
RrEEELEN Capital expenditure incurred

BEARRAR during the year 3,040 17,128 679 17,544 38,391

100| HERTEKRERAE
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17. 2 EBER ()

(a) AI2W/7 & ()

Notes to the Financial Statements

17. Segment Reporting (co

nt'd)

(a) Reportable segments (cont’d)

AEE
The Group
“ZZN\F (ER)

2008 (Restated)

E¥IRTT TERT  WERTS
Wholesale Retail  Treasury and Hith 24
banking banking markets Others  Consolidated
BETT BETT BB AETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
ESTISRON Net interest income 641,457 633,077 56,964 14,167 1,545,665
Efﬁ?&%”ﬁ]\/ S'Zﬁ) Other operating income/(expenses) 365,900 435657 (603,139) 57513 255,931

HETHEEE Net gain on disposal of available-for-

i sale securities 9,645 756 35,794 - 46,195
BEWA/(ZH) Operating income/(loss) 1,017,002 1,069,490 (510,381) 271,680 1,847,791
IR Operating expenses (166,909) (459.221) (32,469) (666,619) (1325,218)
DERHELUA /() Inter-segment income/(expenses) (154,402) (252,772) (46,940) 454114 -
HMRBEERANEE  Operating profit/(loss) before

B (ER) impairment 695,691 357,497 (589,790) 59,175 522,573

BHRERE Impairment losses on loans and
advances (309,616) (50,084) - (23,485) (383,185)
AR EEARE Impairment losses written back on

il available-for-sale securities - 128 - 164 292
REEBE Impairment losses (309,616) (49,956) - (23,321) (382,893)
ERA L (FE) Operating profit/(loss) 386,075 307,541 (589,790) 35,854 139,680
HEME MR Netgain/(loss) on disposal of property

(B18) and equipment (203) (2,764) 7) 27,159 24,185
REMFEG M Revaluation gain on investment

properties - - - 446 446

BAER (F8) Profit/(loss) before taxation 385,872 304,777 (589,797) 63,459 164,311
FT{5%: Income tax - - - (36,003) (36,003)
REERA(BB) Profit/(loss) for the year 385,872 304,777 (589,797) 27456 128,308
HiHHER - Other segment items:

TE Depreciation 3,401 13634 200 60,478 77713
PWEE Segment assets 46,769,198 25,632,612 49,135,423 272597 121,809,830
2HEE Segment liabilities 50,678,137 48,826,264 16,146,354 (3,371,863) 112,278,892
RrEEEEN Capital expenditure incurred
EXHY during the year 1,071 27,197 461 11,872 40,601
—EEAEER

Annual Report 2009
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17. 2 EER ()

(b) BEER
BEHEMOOTEREMNBARNEIEE
BRrEihd  HRABREXREANEE
RBEARNATREDTTE FAKE

Notes to the Financial Statements

17. Segment Reporting (cont’d)

(b) Geographical information
The geographical information analysis is based on the location of the

principal operations of the subsidiaries, or in the case of the Bank itself,

of the location of the branches responsible for reporting the results or

booking the assets and liabilities.

rEE
The Group
=2 %
2009
RERE
RAESE
B ADRF ZEWA  Contingent
Profit before HEE meE Operating liabilities and
taxation  Total assets Total liabilities income commitments
BETT BETT BETT BT BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
&5 Hong Kong 988,178 116,548,618 104,706,152 2,914,913 31,166,997
FE A Mainland China 64,245 7,659,459 6,384,856 168,215 312,906
x USA 6,220 2,280,205 2,236,519 37,391 219,724
Ht Others 19,982 989,333 946,258 32,913 1,533,915
SERfETE B Inter-segment items 40,896 (7,354,830) (6,381,707) 40,629 -
1,119,521 120,122,785 107,892,078 3,194,061 33,233,542
AEHE
The Group
“TTNE
2008
SEEE
R
GaTpegl SN ON Contingent
Profit before BEE BaEg Operating liabilities and
taxation Total assets ~ Total liabilities income  commitments
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
Bh Hong Kong 48109 119499885 110270863 1574368 29,587,668
B A Mainland China 90,505 6,905,392 5,654,967 195,581 844,168
e USA 13,506 1,690,064 1,539,559 51,424 865,611
Hil Others 12,239 1,630,056 1,604,849 26,514 1490116
NEEIER Inter-segment items (48) (7.915,567) (6,791,346) (96) -
164,311 121,809,830 112,278,892 1,847,791 32,787,563

102] RERITEBRBRAT
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1. RERERT dRBITREMESH 18. Cash and Balances with Banks, Central Banks and Other
HEBWNERE Financial Institutions
A 17
The Group The Bank
—EEBANE —TE)\F ZBEHLE —_ZETN\F
2009 2008 2009 2008

BETRT EBTT BWTR AETT
HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000

Re Cash in hand 159,387 167,898 159,075 167,104
e RERITHY AT Balances with central banks 379,370 310,010 48,005 167,335
TEIRITHAETT Balances with banks 2,357,617 635166 1,735,378 512,804
TEHM S MEENEF Balances with other financial institutions 4,001,965 9,641,048 4,001,965 9,641,048

6,898,339 10,754,122 5,944,423 10,488,291

19. 7E8R1T » FRBTREMESREEN 19. Placements with and Advances to Banks, Central Banks

Ve QN ESEN and Other Financial Institutions
REH RIT
The Group The Bank

—EERE —TT)\F —ZBBENE —TTN\HF

2009 2008 2009 2008

BETT BT BT BETT

HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000

TERITHER Placements with banks 8,310,388 5535875 7,408,773 5,363,458

TERITHB Advances to banks 7,252,121 4,705,576 6,797,823 4,643,576

mEMIRITEW A RIIE B ltems in the course of collection from
other banks - 232,500 - 232,500

15,562,509 10,473,951 14,206,596 10,239,534

FIEAA - Maturing:
—1EA R — Within one month 5,597,470 5527041 4,627,709 5,393,373
—1EAAZE1FR — Between one month and one year 7,118,136 1,465,650 6,731,984 1,364,901
— 115 — After one year 2,846,903 3,481,260 2,846,903 3,481,260
15,562,509 10473951 14,206,596 10,239,534
NRZEBEENFR_EENF+_A=+— There were no impaired advances to banks and other financial
H  AEETRITREMS BB institutions as at 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2008, nor were
PR E RN - B S BRI RE there any individually assessed impairment allowances made for them
RIBI B L on these two respective dates.

—ETRFFH 103
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Notes to the Financial Statements

20 EZEHE 20. Trade Bills
AEBRAKT
The Group and the Bank
—EBEEhE TTN\EF
2009 2008
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 ERRRE Gross trade bills 1,035,773 816,746
BB Impairment allowances
—{ERIEE (BI3E23(0)) — Individually assessed (note 23(b)) - (508)
— 43 A FHE (BTRE23(0)) — Collectively assessed (note 23(b)) (7,157) (169)
1,028,616 816,069
Q1. XZAREE 21. Trading Assets
AEE 1T
The Group The Bank
—EEAE 2T\ ZEEAEF —TTN\HF
2009 2008 2009 2008
BT BT BETT ABETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BEEH Debt securities 624,148 619,782 624,148 619,782
HET B Equity securities 2,567 2,340 2,567 2,340
REHS Investment funds 3,606 5,534 3,606 5,534
T EABES Trading securities 630,321 627,656 630,321 627,656
PTHETENTEARBE Positive fair values of derivatives
(Fft5E44(b)) (note 44(b)) 1,153,554 1438090 1,151,406 1,435,311
1,783,875 2065746 1,781,727 2,062,967
LN EBEBMRITHBIOT ¢ Issued by:
RITRE M S S Banks and other financial institutions 624,148 619,782 624,148 619,782
e Corporate entities 6,173 7,874 6,173 7,874
630,321 627,656 630,321 627,656
RETHBE DA Analysed by place of listing:
REBAIMDE T Listed outside Hong Kong 2,567 2,340 2,567 2,340
JEET Unlisted 627,754 625,316 627,754 625316
630,321 627,656 630,321 627,656

104 RERITEBRBRAT
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B R R 5 Notes to the Financial Statements

NRETABBERURMAAREBEN 22. Securities Designated at Fair Value through Profit or
5 Loss
AEBERAKIT
The Group and the Bank
—EEAE —ZTZNF
2009 2008
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEBES Debt securities 580,636 521,834
N EBRBMRITHEBNT Issued by:
R R Sovereigns 34,160 -
R1T M E A moAE Banks and other financial institutions 415,162 257,471
2 Corporate entities 131,314 264,363
580,636 521,834
ELEmithB O Analysed by place of listing:
MREBLAIMEE ETH Listed outside Hong Kong 84,080 82,029
JE b Unlisted 496,556 439,805
580,636 521,834
3. BFERLBS N EAEEE 23. Loans and Advances to Customers and Other Accounts
(a) EFEF NI N HMERIERBEE S (a) Loans and advances to customers and other accounts less
impairment allowances
AEE T
The Group The Bank
—EEANF —TTENF ZBEAFE —TITNF
2009 2008 2009 2008
BT BT BETxn BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
EEER N Gross loans and advances to customers 72,214,811 73414516 63,986,567 65,735,714
BB Impairment allowances
—{ERIFFH (FI7E23(0)) — Individually assessed (note 23(b)) (311,137) (247,227)  (311,137) (247,227)
— &R A FHE (FIFE230)) — Collectively assessed (note 23(b)) (305,933) (237,579)  (305,776) (237,224)
71,597,741 72,929,710 63,369,654 65,251,263
FEETF B R H AL BRI, Accrued interest and other accounts
BB less impairment allowances 1,443,612 2,253,719 1,397,463 2,174,274
73,041,353 75,183,429 64,767,117 67,425,537
HEMEBEREA RO REEREES Other accounts include equity interest of HK$240,000,000 (2008:
O #E 2 (B 1B A 78 5 240,000,000 T ( ZZEE N HK$245,000,000) acquired through recovery of an impaired loan
& B #245000,0007T) ¢ HIEZHEEE which the Group or the Bank plans to dispose of in the near future.
ZEFREEENR AR EBER S (A The equity interest is carried at the lower of its carrying amount and
RIEERE)  AEBERATITEREHA fair value less costs to sale.

&R o

—EThEFH |05
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(b) EFERRBRRHEMKRBEREERBN

Notes to the Financial Statements

23. Loans and Advances to Customers and Other Accounts
(cont’d)

(b) Movement in impairment allowances on loans and advances

SE) to customers and other accounts
N
The Group
ZEENE “EEN\E
2009 2008
HRIFHE  HATM ERIHE AT
Individually  Collectively @E  Individualy  Collectively o
assessed assessed Total assessed assessed Total
BT BT BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
MATR At T January 263,151 237,748 500,899 85617 223,583 309,200
ERREFFZOREER Impairment losses charged to income
(BizE13) statement (note 13) 567,189 99,481 666,670 45392 31,219 485,141
TR RN HERE Impairment losses released to income
(F&x13) statement (note 13) (99,704) (8071)  (107,775) (93318) (8638) (101,95)
ket Amounts written off (478,263) (24139)  (502,402) (231018) (17,054) (248072)
R EEED B Recoveries of loans and advances written off
ETRET in previous years 78,001 8,071 86,072 50,092 8638 58,730
ERREBETAEE Unwind of discount on loan impairment
(Pi3E4) losses (note 4) (1,874) - (1,874) (2,136) - (2,136)
EHREMER Exchange and other adjustments - - - ) - )
®12A318 At 31 December 328,500 313,090 641,590 263,151 237,748 500,899
ke Deducted from
RPEFRZH(ME30) Loans and advances to customers (note 23@) 311,137 305,933 617,070 247207 237579 484806
EthARE Other accounts 17,363 - 17,363 15416 - 15416
E5Z 5 (W0) Trade bills (note 20) - 7,157 7,157 508 169 677
328,500 313,090 641,590 263,151 237,748 500,899
FIERITEEERAQ A

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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. EFERRERKHMIRIE(E) 23. Loans and Advances to Customers and Other Accounts
(cont’'d)
b) EFEXRRBREHEMEEREERN (b) Movement in impairment allowances on loans and advances
BE () to customers and other accounts (cont’d)
KT
The Bank
ZEEhE “EEN\E
2009 2008

BRIHE  BATHE fERE  mATE
Individually  Collectively @E  Individualy  Collectively o
assessed assessed Total assessed assessed Total

ARt E%TR ARTR ARTR BRI BRI
HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

R1A1HE At 1 January 261,552 237,393 498,945 79778 222620 302,398
ERHERSIXORERS Impaimment losses charged to income statement 565,009 99,679 664,688 453,886 31825 485,711
EUEREOORESR Impaiment losses released toincome statement ~~ (99,189) (7,526)  (106,715) (91,088) (7635) (98723)
g Amounts written off (478,262) (24,139) (502,401) (227.801) (17,054) (244,855)
WEAEERE D A Recoveries of loans and advances written off

ERRER in previous years 77,486 7,526 85,012 48912 7635 56,547
EEEEEETERD Unwind of discount on loan impairment losses (1,874) - (1,874) (2,136) - (2,136)
5 R Exchange and other adjustments - - - 1 2 3
R12A318 At 31 December 324,722 312,933 637,655 261552 237393 498945
ke Deducted from

RPEFRZH(ME30) Loans and advances to custorners (note 23@) 311,137 305,776 616,913 247207 237,204 484451

E A Other accounts 13,585 - 13,585 13817 - 13817

g5 (ft20) Trade bills (note 20) - 7,157 7,157 508 169 677

324,722 312,933 637,655 261552 237393 498,945

—EThEFH |07
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23. BEFERK B R EAIRE (&)

() BITRZTNEFERRBR

AT REBETRETONTERESER

FIERAM D BN EREDL o

Notes to the Financial Statements

(cont’d)

sectors

definitions used by the HKMA.

23. Loans and Advances to Customers and Other Accounts

(c) Loans and advances to customers analysed by industry

The following economic sector analysis is based on categories and

b |
The Group
—EThE “EENF
2009 2008
EFERR REEF EFEFR REZRF
BRAE EXRER BRET ERRBT
Gross loans Impaired Gross loans Impaired
and loans and and loans and
advances to advances to advances to advances to
customers customers customers customers
BT T BT BT BT
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
IFER Industrial, commercial and financial
-MERE - Property development 303,000 - 110,000 -
—MERE ~ Property investment 9,226,709 49,610 9,124,397 11,465
—-eRbE ~Financial concerns 4,407,441 - 4,494,391 142
—-RELL - Stockbrokers 21,428 - 11,360 -
~BELTEXE ~Wholesale and retail trade 3,775,792 90,648 3440433 44,491
—BUER - Manufacturing 5,212,804 67,058 6,420,287 53,016
— B LERRE ~Transport and transport equipment 2,878,221 284 2,902,689 362
—IREEE ~ Recreational activities 190,354 - 125,358 -
— &R - Information technology 24,061 - 20,845 -
—Hfth - Others 2,472,175 14,976 3,065,534 35671
A Individuals
-BE [BErLE:HE] - - Loans for the purchase of flats under the
[(RAZRE2REE S Home Ownership Scheme, Private
& [BEEEEE Sector Participation Scheme and Tenants
MEFER Purchase Scheme 28,981 - 32,148 -
-BEHEMEENE - Loans for the purchase of other residential
WER properties 10,673,018 936 10398618 4,448
—ERARBM ~ Credit card advances 310,487 2,530 381,074 1,969
—Hfth - Others 3,626,044 8211 3,174,606 8419
ERBFRANERR Gross loans and advances for
B e use in Hong Kong 43,150,515 234,253 43,701,740 159,983
BHEE Trade finance 3,381,683 103,566 4,495,859 223,740
ERBLUIMERRMER K Gross loans and advances for
BAAH use outside Hong Kong 25,682,613 966,318 25216917 1,000,456
EFERRDIEH Gross loans and advances to customers 72,214,811 1,304,137 73414516 1384179

108| MERITREIRARAE
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23. BEFERK B R EAIRE (&)

() BITRSITNEFERRBR(H)

Notes to the Financial Statements

(cont’d)

sectors (cont’d)

23. Loans and Advances to Customers and Other Accounts

(c) Loans and advances to customers analysed by industry

T
The Bank
—EEAEF ZEFTNF
2009 2008
EFERR BEEF TEFEZRK BERF
BRAE BRRBR BHETE BB
Gross loans Impaired  Gross loans Impaired
and loans and and loans and
advancesto advancesto advancesto advancesto
customers  customers  customers  customers
BT T BT T BT IT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TR <Rt Industrial, commercial and financial
—MEERE — Property development 303,000 - 110,000 -
—MERE — Property investment 8,269,819 49,610 8,363,276 11,465
—SpiihE - Financial concerns 4,407,441 - 4,494,391 142
! — Stockbrokers 21,428 - 11,360 -
— i NEESE — Wholesale and retail trade 3,773,248 90,648 3,435,193 44,491
—BLEE - Manufacturing 5,211,305 67,058 6,419,161 53,016
— B8 MBI RRAE — Transport and transport equipment 2,835,595 284 2,855,996 362
— IR L E B — Recreational activities 190,354 - 125,358 -
— & B - Information technology 24,061 - 20,845 -
— HAh ~ Others 2,469,986 14,976 3,063,252 35,671
EA Individuals
—BEIEEHEBEETEI] - - Loans for the purchase of flats
[FLAERE2E under the Home Ownership
EEFE I R[EE Scheme, Private Sector
BEHEFEIW Participation Scheme and
BFER Tenants Purchase Scheme 28,981 - 32,148 -
—EEHEMEEDE — Loans for the purchase of other
HEX residential properties 8,449,743 - 8,575,348 3,249
—ERARBXK — Credit card advances 310,487 2,530 381,074 1,969
—EAh - Others 2,729,459 8,185 2,417,442 7,607
EEBFANERR Gross loans and advances for
BB RE use in Hong Kong 39,024,907 233,291 40,304,844 157,972
E5rE Trade finance 3,381,683 103,566 4,495,859 223,740
EEBUAIMEREEZ K Gross loans and advances for
B use outside Hong Kong 21,579,977 913,444 20,935,011 947,665
REERRBREEE Gross loans and advances to customers 63,986,567 1,250,301 65,735,714 1,329,377
—BBAEER
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23. BEFERK B R EAIRE (&)

(d) BEFEFERRBR

Notes to the Financial Statements

23. Loans and Advances to Customers and Other Accounts
(cont’d)

(d) Impaired loans and advances to customers

REH RIT
The Group The Bank
—EERE —ZET)\F ZEENF ZTTNHF
2009 2008 2009 2008
BETT B%TT B¥Tx  B%TT
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BERPERNEKMEE  Grossimpaired loans and
advances to customers 1,304,137 1,384,179 1,250,301 1,329,377
BB Impairment allowances
— & 5IEHE — Individually assessed (311,137) (247,227) (311,137) (247,227)
993,000 1,136,952 939,164 1,082,150
REE KBRS Gross impaired loans and
IHEFER RN advances as a % of total loans and
BERNE DX advances to customers 1.81% 1.89% 1.95% 2.02%

BMEEREBRZREENAARENE
B - AMEERIBEREHER -

KERFFEMREEBDAEREBEMN
AT EEERRBRAFEF DA
IR EE - H 5l A B 330365000 T &
7B 276559000 L (ZEENF - B
878,996,000 7T N 78 #5 824,194,000 7T ) ° i L&
KRR EERETEXBEYERIBESM
FEASERRSFHAEK -

RERITERERA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Impaired loans and advances are individually assessed loans which
exhibit objective evidence of impairment on an individual basis.

Individually assessed impairment allowances were made after taking
into account the realisable value of collateral in respect of such
loans and advances of HK$330,365,000 and HK$276,559,000 (2008:
HK$878,996,000 and HK$824,194,000) for the Group and the Bank
respectively. This collateral mainly comprises mortgage interest over
residential or commercial properties and cash with the Group.
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23. BEFERK B R EAIRE (&)

(e)

MERERIHAREONRERE
EFERRBEFERLBETEERAHER
EHERBO BN RANHEEREPH
MERRENREFE - BEAHNNRY
HER-—RAPRE—+4 HEAEE
REREBAGLHEEEE NFERR
BMEHEM D HNRENERENRERE
remikERENT

Notes to the Financial Statements

23. Loans and Advances to Customers and Other Accounts

(e)

(cont’d)

Net investment in finance leases and hire purchase contracts
Loans and advances to customers include net investment in motor
vehicles and equipment leased to customers under finance leases and
hire purchase contracts having the characteristics of finance leases.
These contracts usually run for an initial period of 5 to 20 years, with
an option for acquiring the leased asset at nominal value. The total
minimum lease payments receivable under finance leases and hire
purchase contracts and their present values at the year end are as
follows:

rEE
The Group
—EENF —EENF
2009 2008
RIEHE =IEHEE
TREE REHEE FIRE =IEHEE
Present  {fFUAR%E Present  E42%E
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments  payments payments payments
BET T BT T BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
15K Within 1 year 267,242 328,128 356,439 421,357
19254 After 1 year but within 5 years 440,995 614,120 507,852 676,590
5% After 5 years 1,647,152 2,003,992 1,622,742 1,955,352
2,355,389 2,946,240 2,487,033 3,053,293
BB Impairment allowances:
—{ERIEEE — Individually assessed (9,456) (2,267)
— R AFHE — Collectively assessed (335) (515)
BEME Ko BT Net investment in finance leases and
B HHNRE FEE hire purchase contracts 2,345,598 2,484,251
—EENFER
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23. BEFERK B R EAIRE (&)

Notes to the Financial Statements

23. Loans and Advances to Customers and Other Accounts

(cont'd)
(e) MEHERDPHNRENNREZFE(E) (e) Net investment in finance leases and hire purchase contracts
(cont'd)
1T
The Bank
—EENE —EENF
2009 2008
BREHEE ®EHEE
RRRE BREHE RFERE =/EBE
Present  {SR#A%E Present  FRAE%E
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments  payments payments payments
BT T BT T BT BT T
HKS$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1R Within 1 year 264,360 324,252 352,871 416,691
[GEESEES After 1 year but within 5 years 430,904 600,658 497,461 662,615
5% After 5 years 1,616,858 1,968,705 1,590,008 1,916,836
2,312,122 2,893,615 2,440,340 2,996,142
BB Impairment allowances:
—{@RIEHE — Individually assessed (9,456) (2,267)
—&REFHE - Collectively assessed (334) (514)
BEHEERSBMAR Net investment in finance leases and
BHRIRE TR hire purchase contracts 2,302,332 2,437,559
FIERTEIRERAR

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

24, A HEHSE 24. Available-for-sale Securities
AEBRARLT

The Group and the Bank
—EEAE —TTN\F
2009 2008
BET T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BBENFRE Certificates of deposit held 1,344,057 200,014
BRFESH Debt securities 17,741,780 19,219,141
HEAS(BIERINER S EE) Treasury bills (including Exchange Fund Bills) 888,313 1,173,721
LR TE 7 Equity securities 43,244 34,306
KEHS Investment funds 56,333 56,271
20,073,727 20,683,453

N EBBWRTHEBNT ! Issued by:

BT Sovereigns 972,558 1,173,721
NS Public sector entities 384,285 727,720
R1T M E A RS Banks and other financial institutions 14,123,245 14,434,242
b Corporate entities 4,593,639 4,347,770

20,073,727 20,683,453

BETHbBE DT - Analysed by place of listing:
REE LM Listed in Hong Kong 173,397 500,428
REBLAIMNDE T Listed outside Hong Kong 3,198,066 4,897,115
3,371,463 5,397,543
FELE™ Unlisted 16,702,264 15,285,910
20,073,727 20,683,453
ERREESESFN AR EE Fair value of individually impaired debt securities 1,222 2,203
ERLREREESN DA BE Fair value of individually impaired investment funds 56,333 56,271
57,555 58474
RZEBEZENF+_A=1+—8  KEEHM As at 31 December 2009, certain of the Group’s and the Bank's
RITERD A H EBHBRERBEHF ML available-for-sale securities comprising debt securities and investment
EES  UAABERIAUKZEAKEES funds which were determined to be individually impaired on the
i ERIEBTADHME - zflrb&ézﬁ’]jﬁz basis of a significant and prolonged decline in the fair value below
BRKXBENT20FTE &S 1T cost. Impairment losses on these investments were recognised in the

Wean &k MRS ©

income statement in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 2(1).
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25. FEU I A R 73R 25. Amounts due from Subsidiaries
1T
The Bank
“EENE —EENF
2009 2008
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HKS$'000
ERITREMESREETR Placements with banks and other financial institutions 5,884,626 5,516,579
MEBARERNBAR L EMERIE Loans and advances to subsidiaries and other accounts 716,811 72,232
6,601,437 5,588,811
26. B A EIRE 26. Investments in Subsidiaries
AT
The Bank
—EENF —EENF
2009 2008
BT T BT TT
HK$'000 HK$'000
JEEMRD (RKAARR) Unlisted shares, at cost 1,270,250 1,270,250
R-EZNhE+_B=+—H " ~X¥H The following list contains the particulars of principal subsidiaries
WAREEMNHELE  EENNBEEEATLE as at 31 December 2009 which materially affect the results, assets
HEEMBAREE - BIEREZH & or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless
BIFr AR M RIE 2 B AR o otherwise stated.
VAT 2 2682 B)15 A BT 5E2(d) BT 5 78 B =2 458 ) All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under note 2(d) and
MEBAR WO EAREENBERRANLE have been consolidated into the Group financial statements.
AE o
BAal >+

4| RERITEBRERAT
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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26. B A FIRE ()

Notes to the Financial Statements

26. Investments in Subsidiaries (cont’d)

o BERH BRIR
MR EEHE R BERAE
NGES Place of incorporation/ %of FEEHK Issued and
Name of company operation sharesheld  Principal activities paid up capital
BRERARLA B 100%  MERFE BT
Carford International Limited Hong Kong Property holding HKS2
PERERT(PE)BRAA AR HAE 100% 8847 AR #1,000,000,0007T
(TR ERE(RR) ) (e ) Banking RMB1,000,000,000
CITIC Ka Wah Bank (China) Limited People’s Republic of
("CKWB China")* China ("PRC")
PERERBERAA B 100%  REpELR 7 #£5,000,0007T
CITIC Insurance Brokers Limited Hong Kong Insurance broker HK$5,000,000
CKWB-SN Limited REHE/ &% 100%  BITHEERENRE EZ817T
Cayman Islands/ Issue of structured notes and Y
Hong Kong investments
CKWH-UT2 Limited FERSs,/ BE 100% BITREERE =AW
Cayman Islands/ Issue of subordinated notes USST
Hong Kong
BEREANMBBRAR 5 100% HEREE #200,000,0007T
HKCB Finance Limited Hong Kong Consumer financing HK$200,000,000
REERMEERAR Bt 100%  @EARE 75 #32,500,0007T
Ka Wah International Merchant Hong Kong Financial services HK$32,500,000
Finance Limited
REREERAT Bt 100%  REZR 7 #£5,000,0007T
KWB Investment Limited Hong Kong Investment holding HK$5,000,000
BREARIT(REA)BRAA B30 100%  RIBAMRS 7 #E5,0007T
The Hongkong Chinese Bank Hong Kong Nominees services HK$5,000
(Nominees) Limited
RERT(ER)BRAF B0 100%  {EFEMRTS 75#3,000,0007C
The Ka Wah Bank (Trustee) Limited Hong Kong Trustee services HK$3,000,000
BREBRRAT N 100%  RIBEE BT
Viewcon Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong Mortgage financing HKS2

GREREARARIN  LEMEHMER

AR ATTERRES °

* ZHMBARER_ZZN\FEA+_HHA
S BB ER AR ORI RATTH
ERR EEDTTEEMMK - RREELE—
BREDTTIN - ZIMBAREBARTE
TREOITOMEEENRAE - ZMBRRTY
RITRERA LN BIA SN BE A AR
T AEMRZOME AR o BB

BERAR(RINER-2E

R -

NEAA=H

All of the above subsidiaries are held directly by the Bank except for
KWB Investment Limited.

*  This subsidiary was set up on 12 April 2008 from the former China
International Finance Company Limited (Shenzhen) ("CIFC") and the
Bank's Beijing and Shanghai branches, which had restructured to
takeover all assets and liabilities of the Bank’s PRC branches except those
retained in a booking branch in Shanghai. This subsidiary is the Bank's
wholly-owned subsidiary, which represents a foreign-invested locally-
incorporated bank in the PRC. CIFC was deregistered on 3 September

2008.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

27. MEREE 27. Property and Equipment
(@) &A&EH (@) The Group
& BE
HERFE
REWE  HMEYHE  Furniture,
Investment Other fixtures and 4 EE
properties premises equipment Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
RAS A : Cost or valuation:
720094F1 A 1H At 1 January 2009 148,076 1,021,792 677,585 1,847,453
0 Additions - - 38,391 38,391
EX il Reclassification 10,000 (10,000) - -
e Disposals (11,000) (7,677) (10,686) (29,363)
BHEE% Surplus on revaluation 36,116 7,155 - 43,271
PE i FE R Exchange adjustments - - 27 27
72009 12H31H At 31 December 2009 183,192 1,011,270 705,317 1,899,779
FREENRASREE The analysis of cost or valuation of
DM - the above assets is as follows:
RS Cost - 993,673 705317 1,698,990
(EXIE] Valuation
—1985%F - 1985 - 17,597 - 17,597
—2009%F - 2009 183,192 - - 183,192
183,192 1,011,270 705,317 1,899,779
720081 H1H At 1 January 2008 238,380 935,810 701,296 1,875,486
0 Additions - - 40,601 40,601
E=R N Reclassification (88,900) 88,900 - -
HeE Disposals (1,850) (2,918) (64,224) (68,992)
EHAR Surplus on revaluation 446 - - 446
PE H 3% Exchange adjustments - - (88) (88)
72008812318 At 31 December 2008 148076 1,021,792 677585 1847453
R EENKASHE The analysis of cost or valuation of
oA the above assets is as follows:
AR Cost - 993,673 677,585 1,671,258
(EXIE] Valuation
—19854F - 1985 - 28,119 - 28,119
—20084F —-2008 148,076 - - 148,076
148,076 1,021,792 677,585 1,847,453

16| RERITEBRBRAT
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

27. ERFZME(E) 27. Property and Equipment (cont’d)

(@) KB (&) (@) The Group (cont'd)

& BE
HERRE
REYMHE  H¥E  Furniture,
Investment Other fixtures and HEE
properties premises equipment Total

BT BT BT BETrx

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
ZIHE - Accumulated depreciation:
200941 A18 At 1 January 2009 — 283,980 527,609 811,589
REEHE(MIEE11() Charge for the year (note 11(b)) - 22,665 52,763 75,428
tH 5 T =] 48 Written back on disposals - (4,933) (10,100) (15,033)
BIOR Reclassification - (564) - (564)
PE 5 S8 Exchange adjustments - - 20 20
M2009%12831H At 31 December 2009 - 301,148 570,292 871,440
720081 H1H At 1 January 2008 - 263,527 527,723 791,250
REZHE(FE1D) Charge for the year (note 11(b)) - 21,634 56,079 77,713
HH 5 T =] 48 Written back on disposals - (1,181) (56,135) (57,316)
P& 3, 388 Exchange adjustments - - (58) (58)
7200812 A31H At 31 December 2008 - 283,980 527,609 811,589
BRTENFRE - Net book value:
720094128311 At 31 December 2009 183,192 710,122 135,025 1,028,339
72008128318 At 31 December 2008 148,076 737,812 149,976 1,035,864

—2EAEER |17
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Notes to the Financial Statements

27. MMERFZME(E) 27. Property and Equipment (cont’d)
(b) 1T (b) The Bank
RH - BE
HEREE
REYMHE  H¥E  Furniture,
Investment Other fixtures and HEE
properties premises equipment Total
BET T BT T BT T BET T
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
RAHEE : Cost or valuation:
F2009F1 A1H At 1 January 2009 125,338 1,021,792 641,793 1,788,923
0 Additions - - 31,337 31,337
EX i Reclassification 10,000 (10,000) - -
e Disposals (11,000) (7,677) (10,544) (29,221)
EHAK Surplus on revaluation 33,462 7,155 - 40,617
PE 5 FA 2 Exchange adjustments - - 1 1
72009 12831H At 31 December 2009 157,800 1,011,270 662,597 1,831,667
FREENRAREE The analysis of cost or valuation of
DWWMT : the above assets is as follows:
AR Cost - 993,673 662,597 1,656,270
fH1E Valuation
—19854F - 1985 - 17,597 - 17,597
—2009%F - 2009 157,800 - - 157,800
157,800 1,011,270 662,597 1,831,667
HR2008F1A1H At 1 January 2008 219,907 935,810 690,593 1,846,310
0 Additions - - 30,094 30,094
EX il Reclassification (88,900) 88,900 - -
H e Disposals (1,850) (2,918) (78,806) (83,574)
EhEE Deficit on revaluation (3,819) - - (3,819)
PE H 3% Exchange adjustments - - (88) (88)
72008F12A31H At 31 December 2008 125,338 1,021,792 641,793 1,788,923
R EENKASHE The analysis of cost or valuation of
v in VN the above assets is as follows:
(D% Cost - 993,673 641,793 1,635,466
5B Valuation
— 19854 - 1985 - 28,119 - 28,119
—2008%F -2008 125,338 - - 125,338
125,338 1,021,792 641,793 1,788,923

18| MERTEBRERAE

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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27. MER R (H)

(b) Z497 (%)

Notes to the Financial Statements

27. Property and Equipment (cont’d)

(b) The Bank (cont’d)

& BE
HERFZE
REWE  HMEYHE  Furniture,
Investment Other fixtures and 4 EE
properties premises equipment Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ZIHE - Accumulated depreciation:
F2009%1 A1H At 1 January 2009 - 283,981 509,965 793,946
KEEWE Charge for the year - 22,664 43,474 66,138
(A & i Bl 48 Written back on disposals - (4,933) (10,001) (14,934)
BOR Reclassification - (564) - (564)
PE o, %L Exchange adjustments - - 7 7
2009512 A831H At 31 December 2009 - 301,148 543,445 844,593
720081 H1H At 1 January 2008 - 263,528 521,597 785,125
RELEHE Charge for the year - 21,634 49,508 71,142
H 6 i = 3¢ Written back on disposals - (1,181) (61,083) (62,264)
P& 3 i 88 Exchange adjustments - - (57) (57)
7200851243180 At 31 December 2008 - 283,981 509,965 793,946
BREFE - Net book value:
2009512 A831H At 31 December 2009 157,800 710,122 119,152 987,074
F2008F12A31H At 31 December 2008 125,338 737,811 131,828 994,977
—EENFFER
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27. MER R (H)

(c)

(d)

RZZZNF+ZA=+—8 " BLA
ERITEE I E B A BRI AR A RIR
AHEMSEEAEE  EHAEEKAK
THFBEREME - BEARSERAKTT
REH AR D B BB 361160007 &
75 #533462,0007CE D RIFF AR EE K&
RITHREEF(ZEZENF  AEE
EE15 B R 446,000 M AT TEER S 518
75 ¥53,819,0007CE 2 BIET AR EE KA
TR ERT) o BARHTE EFT L EE R
BRAREMNEE ABEBAEMEBGE

REXEE - ARFHERBEYRLE N
AR AR B o

&ﬁ%%?i%ﬁé%k%%ﬁ%%
4524,00070( ZFEZNF : B14,372,000
JL) °

AKEEAN  HEREMENKZAES
#1,881,0007C( ZZF )\ : B #83,000
JT) °

RZZEZNF+_A=+—HILFE "
HAEMERENRE  —HEREFE
#7758 10,000,000 TC ) ) 8B R EY)
¥ UHHERBIASMERTEE
FHEER AR A T A BT
HREEANAAEBE &R - BER
TYEMREEREEN AR EERE
B AEMERL AEE7,7190007T * WE
Y E B FEENRER

RERITERERA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

27. Property and Equipment (cont’d)

(c)

(d)

All investment properties of the Group and the Bank were revalued
at 31 December 2009 by an independent firm of surveyors, Vigers
Appraisal & Consulting Limited, on an open market value basis.
The revaluation surplus of HK$36,116,000 and HK$33,462,000 were
recognised in the Group and the Bank respectively (2008: revaluation
surplus of HK$446,000 and revaluation deficit of HKS$3,819,000 were
recognised in the Group and the Bank respectively), which have been
credited to the income statement. Vigers Appraisal & Consulting
Limited has among their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors with recent experience in the location and category of
property being valued.

The gross rental income arising from investment properties is
HK$4,524,000 (2008: HK$4,372,000).

During the year, gain on disposal of investment properties amounted
to HK$ 1,881,000 (2008: HK$83,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2009, a property with a net
book value of approximately HK$10,000,000 was transferred to
investment properties for the purpose of change in use. Accordingly,
an independent professional valuation had been performed by
Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited in order to assess the property’s
fair value at the date of transfer. As a result, a revaluation gain
of approximately HK$7,719,000 was recognised in the property
revaluation reserve which represented surplus on revaluation of the

property upon reclassification to investment properties.
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27. MER R (H)

(f)

(e) WEMHERAMYENRE I FES TN
T

Notes to the Financial Statements

27. Property and Equipment (cont’d)

(e) The analysis of net book value of investment properties and other

premises is as follows:

AEE KT
The Group The Bank
—EERE —TT)\F —ZBENE —TTN\HF
2009 2008 2009 2008
BT ABEFT BETFx ABETT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HE Leasehold
EE Held in Hong Kong
—REHEE — Long-term leases 82,657 235,650 82,657 235,650
—HHEHE - Medium-term leases 782,765 625,669 782,765 625,669
BN [E Held outside Hong Kong
—HHIRE - Medium-term leases 27,892 24,569 2,500 1,830
893,314 885,388 867,922 863,149

REBRARTHETHMYESRBEFE
EITEMN WREEVMERUKANRER
AHEAR AKREREATRZZEEN
FH+-_A=Zt+—BHMEMYEREFE
fE BB EES5466000L (ZTEENF : B
6,788,0007T) °

BRCEHERAHNMERRE
AEBBRBLEHEN T ABLEREY
X BARMENRNHEEN -—RAME=
F - HRABHEHTREPRABGRK -

(f)

Some of the other premises of the Group and the Bank have been
revalued in previous years. The net book value of other premises
of the Group and the Bank at 31 December 2009 would have been
HK$5,466,000 (2008: HKS6,788,000) had they been carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation.

Property and equipment leased out under operating leases
The Group leases out investment properties under operating leases.
The leases typically run for an initial period of two to three years, with
an option to renew the leases after that date at which time all terms
are renegotiated.

—EENEER
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27. MMERFZME(E) 27. Property and Equipment (cont’d)
() BRKEHERENYERRFREE) (f) Property and equipment leased out under operating leases
(cont’d)
REBRAITED BRI E XD EY The Group's and the Bank’s total future minimum lease payments
R EHERK AR REEESBEN under non-cancellable operating leases for investment and sub-
T letting properties are receivable as follows:
rEE 4T
The Group The Bank
—EEAF —TTNF ZBBEAF —ZTZTNF
2009 2008 2009 2008
BT BT B¥Fr B%Tr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1% Within 1 year 2,373 13,697 2,007 11,951
1FEE54F After 1 year but within 5 years - 2,287 - 1,921
2,373 15,984 2,007 13,872
28. RITRHEMEBMBBNERRER 28. Deposits and Balances of Banks and Other Financial
Institutions
rEE T
The Group The Bank
—EEAF —ZTTNF ZBBEAF —ZTZTN\F
2009 2008 2009 2008
BT BT B¥TFr B%Tr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BITFAREGETF Deposits and balances from banks 2,794,355 927337 2,639,253 815,320
29. BEFFER 29. Deposits from Customers
rEE 97
The Group The Bank
ZEBAF —TT)\F ZBBAF —TT)N\F
2009 2008 2009 2008

BETRT EBTT BWTR AETT
HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000

R R T RERE TR Demand deposits and current deposits 15,328,046 7814934 14,807,687 7,480,754
HEFR Savings deposits 25,451,140 13378528 25,397,977 13,346,387
TEHA - BNEA NS BAs@AITE R Time, call and notice deposits 53,461,794 74138876 51,841,781 73,462,003

94,240,980 95,332,338 92,047,445 94,289,144

122] RERITEBRBRAT
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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30. XZ AREE 30. Trading Liabilities
rEE b
The Group The Bank
“EBAFE —TT)\F ZEBETAE —TT)N\F
2009 2008 2009 2008
BT BT B¥TFr B%Tr
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
PTETEMABRARER Negative fair value of
(Bt EE44(0 ) derivatives (note 44(b)) 1,108,009 1385838 1,107,049 1381884
31. ERITIFNE 31. Certificates of Deposit Issued
AEERAKIT
The Group and the Bank
—EBhE —TT)N\F
2009 2008
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT ABBESURBAAEER Designated at fair value through profit or loss - 497,694
X SRR Non-trading 3,693,598 3,623,714
3,693,598 4,121,408
EERBABRARMRARBEMNDET Certificates of deposit issued are designated at fair value through
FREEETHNERSRENANSITEL profit or loss when they contain embedded derivatives that modify
B BREMETAREERRERER the cash flows that otherwise would be required to be separated.
2 AMEZTEZDRIARK -
5 TE A L BEGRNARBALEENE Z The carrying amount of certificates of deposit issued designated at fair
TEREFNEEER-_ZEENF+A value through profit or loss at 31 December 2008 was HK$2,494,000
—t+—HRIBEHEENENEES B higher than the contractual amount at maturity, which was mainly
2494,0007C * B - TERERBELEFR| KE attributable to changes in benchmark interest rate.
B)imEL o
—ETnEEH
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32. MR RAI R EH 32. Income Tax in the Statement of Financial Position
(@) FRAEFBMRARIIRAOAEKIES (@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial

position represents:

REH KT
The Group The Bank

—EERE —TT)\F —ZBENE —TTN\HF
2009 2008 2009 2008
BT ABEFT BETFx ABETT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

REEBANGEHLERS Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for
(FfaE146@) the year (note 14(a)) 159,660 5856 145,357 -
AEHIEN R @ MBS Tax credit to be claimed (5,567) - (5,567) -
EREHNEH Provisional Profit Tax paid (169,629) (172,862)  (163,774) (163,773)
(15,536) (167,006) (23,984) (163,773)
TGN IR A Provision for overseas taxation 3,064 9,867 3,052 4,958
(12,472) (157,139) (20,932) (158,815)

He Of which:

AUy B I8 Tax recoverable (24,036) (167,267) (23,984) (163,773)
REAFG IR Current taxation 11,564 10,128 3,052 4,958

(12,472) (157,139) (20,932) (158,815)

124] RERITEBBRAT
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32. MR TR R TS (&) 32.Income Tax in the Statement of Financial Position
(Cont’d)
(b) Eﬁﬁéﬁﬂﬁiﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised
REESTBRAKRERNELERIE(E The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised in the
F /ﬁﬁﬂ'ﬂﬂ/\&ﬁifﬁqﬁ’] """"" Eyl(NE consolidated statement of financial position and the movements

during the year are as follows:

A48

The Group

RERBE MtHERS
ERERITE EIRER EftHE

Depreciation BEEE W%  Revaluation
allowancesin  Impairment  Eft3H%  adjustments
excess of  allowances  Revaluation for available-

related forloans  adjustments for-sale HEEge Hit “m
depreciation and advances for properties securities  Tax losses Others Total
BETr  AMTn  B%Tn  BMTx BT B¥Tn A%t
BERERE : Deferred tax arising from: HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1200951815 At 1 January 2009 8,632 (37,770) 8,406 (69,325) (16,688) - (106,745)
FEWERA Charged/(credited) to
s/ (%) consolidated income statement 47 (14,268) 5,757 - 15,274 (15,509) (8,699)
Tk Charged to reserves - - - 15,811 - - 15,811
BN KA Exchange and other adjustments - - - - - 4 (4)
20095128310 At 31 December 2009 8,679 (52,038) 14,163 (53,514) (1,414) (15,513) (99,637)
20081 A1H At 1 January 2008 8411 (39,026) 16,155 (18,389) (34052) (254) (67,155)
FARKNEER Charged/(credited) to
s/ (EE) consolidated income statement 702 (975) (6.578) - 15418 254 8,821
e EE Credited to reserves - - Q77 (51987) - - (52,264)
FREHEE1A1H  Effect on deferred tax balances at
EERER R 1 January resutting from a change in
SAENEEA tax rate (credited)/charged to
(E#) /s consolidated income statement (481) 2231 (627) - 1946 - 3,069
RBREYEH1A1H  Effect on deferred tax balances at
ERRIBHET 1 January resutting from a change in
HER(ER), /M eoae(cedied/chaged oresenve - - (267) 1,051 - - 784
F2008%F12A31H At 31 December 2008 8632 (37,770) 8406 (69,325) (16,688) - (106,745)

—EThEFH |125
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32. MR RS ()

(b) ERZANWELEHEEERERE(H)

Notes to the Financial Statements

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (cont’d)

32.Income Tax in the Statement of Financial Position
(cont’d)

&7
The Bank
nERHE AtHERS
BEREENE ERREX EfRE
Depreciation BEEE %  Revaluation
allowancesin  Impairment  Ef¢3%  adjustments
excess of  allowances  Revaluation for available-
related forloans  adjustments for-sale HIEFRE Hitr axm
depreciation and advances for properties securities  Tax losses Others Total
BETr  A%Tn  B%Tn  BMTn BT B¥Tn A%t
EERERE Deferred tax arising from: HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000
200951810 At 1 January 2009 14,100 (37,745) 7,108 (69,325) (16,688) - (102,550)
Wk A Charged/(credited) to
Mis/ (EE) income statement (72) (14,273) 5,356 - 15,274 (13,104) (6,819)
FEENME Charged to reserves - - - 15,811 - - 15,811
BB R E hERE Exchange and other adjustments - - - - - (1) (1)
20095128310 At 31 December 2009 14,028 (52,018) 12,464 (53,514) (1,414) (13,105) (93,559)
720081 A1H At 1 January 2008 15,372 (38,889) 16,155 (18,389) (34,052) - (59,803)
WEERA Charged/(credited) to
s/ (E) income statement (394) (1079 (7847) - 15418 - 6098
FEmE R Credited to reserves - - (277) (51987) - - (52264)
AHEYEL A8 Effect on deferred tax balances at
ERFIBHEE 1 January resulting from achange in
WiERA tax rate (credited)/charged to
(E) /s income statement (878) 2223 (656) - 1946 - 2,635
RREHESE1A18  Effect on deferred tax balances at
EFBHBIERBEA 1 January resuliing fromachangein
(BI),/#isH taxrate (redited)/charged toreserve - - (267) 1051 - - 784
FA2008F12A31H At 31 December 2008 14,100 (37,745) 7,108 (69,325) (16,688) - (102,550)
FIERTEIRERAR

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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32. MR RS ()

(b) EERBNWELEDREEREE(E)

Notes to the Financial Statements

32.Income Tax in the Statement of Financial Position
(cont’d)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (cont’d)

rEH T
The Group The Bank

—EBEAF —ZTTN\F ZBBEAF —ZTTN\F

2009 2008 2009 2008

BT B¥TT B¥TFr B%T

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EREAR R R IERR Net deferred tax assets recognised on

FIRETIEE E the statement of financial position (101,355) (108,095) (93,567) (102,584)
TERA AR R B AR A Net deferred tax liabilities recognised

FREFRIEEE on the statement of financial position 1,718 1,350 8 34

(99,637) (106,745) (93,559) (102,550)

() RERWELEHIREE

BRARKAGERBEANBBHRBEED

JE SR a8 A LA S 47 B R A 18

ERRFHEBENREERBEEERBE

2974000 (ZEZE N\ F -
70) ° RIFREFFE AL -
HEIEA -

EERIAEERR

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised
The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
cumulative tax losses of HK$2,974,000 (2008: HK$2,997,000) as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which the losses can be
utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The
tax losses do not expire under current tax legislation.

REE AR

75 #£2.997,000

33. BB 1TERKRES 33. Debt Securities Issued
REEH 1T
The Group The Bank
ZEZAE —ET)\F ZBEHAE —TENF
2009 2008 2009 2008
BET T BT BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
X G B BEITESE Non-trading debt securities issued 71,800 2,333,727 - 2,312,927

HERXFUEBES
A+t RUAHEES

BERZ

2,339,600,0007T)
B - BIEHEEBRES -
ZTZAF+—A+EBEH-

BE_ZZENF+=-_A=+—
RSB BITEBEHFI BT

AR _ZETNFET -

ST FE+—
EITE B R E425%ME
% - EE{E A3 $3000000007C (S EBE
o EIRAMAITEST

The non-trading debt securities included the notes issued at
4.25% per annum, with face value of US$300 million (equivalent to
HK$2,339.6 million) issued at a discount on 17 November 2004. The

iR E notes were issued by the Bank and constitute direct, unconditional
EFRERZ and unsecured obligations of the Bank. The notes were matured on
17 November 2009.
H: B As at 31 December 2009, the amount represented non-trading debt
— B A securities issued by a subsidiary of the Bank in 2009.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

34. Hth B & 34, Other Liabilities
AEEH RKIT
The Group The Bank
—FENF ZEEAEFE —TTNF
2008 2009 2008
BT BT T BT
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
EREH M S RIIE A E A ltems in the course of transmission to
JETIE B other financial institutions 2,424,273 16,377 2,424,273
FEET N EAth FE A BRTE Accruals and other payables 1,815,224 1,736,003 1,526,666
4,239,497 1,752,380 3,950,939
35. EFKE A RIFKIE 35. Amounts due to Subsidiaries
RIT
The Bank

—EERFE BT )N\F
2009 2008
BT T BT
HK$’000 HKS'000
HihB & Other liabilities 208,383 136,393

IRITREM S BEEL Deposits and balances from banks and
GFR T other financial institutions 144,194 131,878
BEFER Deposits from customers 2,018,956 2,024,046
2,371,533 2,292,317

FERITEEERAQ R
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Notes to the Financial Statements

36. EHER 36. Loan Capital
AEEH KT
The Group The Bank
—EERE —TT)\F ZBENE —TTN\HF
2009 2008 2009 2008
BETT BT BT BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FBRAE125% @ EE Subordinated notes with
Z£4250,000,0007THY US$250 million 9.125%*
1BIEZE 1,977,356 1,089,717 - -
FBRAEBERITRIZE Subordinated notes with
WEERM.75%  HE US$250 million 1.75%-+LIBOR rate**
Z£4250,000,0007TH]
1BIEEE 1,938,661 1,937,504 1,938,661 1,937,504
3,916,017 3,927221 1,938,661 1,937,504

*  FBEAE125%  EEZEE250,0000007T(F
B11,944,100,00070) A ERBEEN -
ToFRAZT=—HBEATHZENBE AR
CKWH-UT2 Limited#77 + W&/ BIRIIEE =
MBI o ANTT G 2 7T 7] 35 [ Hb 4 45 L
SROMEENSBIELER o CKWH-UT2
Limited AJ R ZE——FRAERFEX A
9.125% K AR BRI ©

w —ETLFE+-F+—H 0 ATREES
2oooooooooﬁm¢ﬁﬂ;‘f&ﬂ§§+% CBITER
EhA=—AAESHEFEANBBUERITRIZN

S.& 1N1.75% - [E{E 3 £ 250,000,0007T (F{E
75 1E1,949,500,0007T ) K F ENFI RIEEEIE -
BUEZEBREHNERZHABRAR LT I
BRZE—+tF+=-A+=H3H-

*%

Subordinated notes with a coupon of 9.125% per annum and with face
value of US$250 million (equivalent to HK$1,944.1 million) were issued
on 23 May 2002 by CKWH-UT2 Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Bank and is qualify as tier 2 capital. The Bank unconditionally and
irrevocably guarantees all amounts payable under the notes. The 9.125%
per annum perpetual subordinated notes will be callable by CKWH-UT2
Limited in 2012.

On 11 December 2007, the Bank, under a US$2 billion Medium Term
Note Programme, issued subordinated float rate notes with a coupon of
1.75% per annum above the LIBOR for three-month US dollar deposits
with face value of US$250 million (equivalent to HK$1,949.5 million). The
notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
and will be matured on 12 December 2017.

—EENEER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

37. EX R & 37. Capital and Reserves
E)ZS (a) Share capital
() EEREZITIRAK (i) Authorised and issued share capital
T
The Bank
—BEAE —TT)\F
2009 2008
BEET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
EERAK Authorised:
BREESE I T 8,000,000,000 ordinary
&3/ 1%8,000,000,000R% shares of HK$1 each 8,000,000 8,000,000
ERITRARRE : Issued and fully paid:
M1A1H : At 1 January:
BREERS1TTH 5,583,341,176 (2008: 5,583,341,176) ordinary
A% 5,583,341,176A% shares of HK$1 each
(2008%F : 5,583,341,1764%) 5,583,341 5,583,341
BT Ml EE Issuance and allotment of shares
FREESEITH 1,700,000,000 (2008: Nil) ordinary
T 3EA%1,700,000,0000% shares of HK$ 1 each (note 37(a)(ii)
(20084 : 4% ) (BI5E37(a)ii)) 1,700,000 -
M12A318 : At 31 December:
EREESE T 7,283,341,176 (2008: 5,583,341,176) ordinary
EmAR7,283,341,1761% shares of HK$ 1 each
(20084 : 5,583,341,176/%) 7,283,341 5,583,341

(ii)

BB A A A WA B R A AR
B TEERATTHEZ LR —F
M RARR - FrA BRI A R FHL
FERKITHRIREE -

RFEZRITHIR 7
RZZEZNFRNA=Z1+H  KITUEE
217 N B 2% 1,700,000,000 % E @A F B
EEARPERREERERER AR °

RERITERERA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as

declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share

at meetings of the Bank. All ordinary shares rank equally with

regard to the Bank’s residual assets.

(ii) Shares issued during the year

The Bank issued and allotted 1,700,000,000 ordinary shares at par
to its immediate parent company, CITIC International Financial

Holdings Limited, on 30 June 2009.
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37.

(b)

()

BEXRR B (&)

AT SRR ONEE

AEBEHGA xS ARBHRENEE
BERERE DU ER 2 NG A %

R o ANTT RO 51 21 40 A AR 40 I H)

EERE

EAREBRIFESIAT

Notes to the Financial Statements

37. Capital and Reserves (cont’d)

(b) Movement in components of equity of the Bank

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes
in the Bank’s individual components of equity between the beginning
and the end of the year are set out below:

A
The Bank
VS k& ot
Eftfi EfRE BRERE (H&E3710)
BE  ROEE E4BE -REE  Poperty Investment  Share  RERF Total R4
Share Share  Capital  General revaluation revaluation option  Retained  reserves Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits  (note 37(c)) equity
BSTn  BETR BMTn AMTn BT BETR AMTn  BMTn BETR BMTR
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
R009EA1E At1 January 2009 5,583,341 282,930 2,903 100,000 20932 (350,829) - 3,611,868 3,667,804 9,251,145
EOROEHR Issuance and llotment of shares 1,700,000 - - - - - - - - 1,700,000
RHENEMEBNGEE  Release of resenve on
disposal of property - - - - (7,719) - - 7719 - -
AERE AN ELE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - 7,119 80,014 - 767,297 855030 855,030
120005128318 At 31 December 2009 7283341 282930 2903 100,000 20932 (270,815) - 4386884 4522834 11,806,175
F008E 1 A1 A1 January 2008 5583341 282930 2903 100,000 22,066 (86,095) 56% 3507004 3853904 9437245
HRERRORAR S Equity-settled share-based
transactions - - - - - - 12603 - 12603 12603
E eyl Forfeited options transferred to
EHENERE retained profis - - - - - - (8299 38299 - -
RHEMEMERGESE  Releaseof reserve on disposal
of property - - - - (1678) - - 1678 - -
FERRENGET Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - 544 (264134) - 64887 (198703)  (198,703)
008128318 At 31 December 2008 583,341 282930 2903 100,000 20932 (350829 - 3611868 3067804 925145
FEMERERN (c) Nature and purpose of components of reserves
() BRaE (i) Share premium
1D m BRI IE A X B B(RTHERI)E The application of the share premium account is governed by

48BIRFTE ¥

(i) BAXFE

BAREET RS

(iii) —ARGEE

DR TR o

—RRFBREREE N H — BP0 KR

3 WHASD

DK TR ©

section 48B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

(ii) Capital reserve
The capital reserve is not available for distribution to shareholders.

(iii) General reserve
General reserve was set up from the transfer of retained earnings,
and it is available for distribution to shareholders.
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37. XK @&t (&)

(o) REMEERBN(E)

(iv) BB EF#E
(R ERREEBREMERBRERINER
MR MELNEN =5 - WRE
B RE2(0) FTE O B FT BRI

() WFEEMEE
MESHHEEERERT20MENS
AR EE - YETA DR FRR -
BIRBEEBCRBUED)FE79BQ IR E
& GLRETBREERGA -

i) REE 1A
RESEGLREEENEEBRFANAIMH
HEBFNRFDFAABERS  YE
RIBHEE2() i FrE A & 5T BURBRIE

(vii) FEIR BETi# 1
R RO 5 0 B2 TR AR IR BIY R 2n) i) B A BX
RENMRAN S BERERR TATT
BERMRITEBREERNGETEEN
AV

RZZEZNFRZZFETENF+ A
=+—H8  NTEAEEMRRITEER
- AAPEEEER T N\F+—
RER B TEEEERSHMERL
AL SR AR Y& X RE 151 25 166 16 LA 175 5%
TPz HAFLBIL - BIBRERER S
THREBRE(BREETRITMEE
EHREARIE) IRBE 2 5EH o

(viii) ;% ERER N FE
BEFBEUEAETE - PEREFEF
BREGFOFREGEANPEREH 2+
TERTBED IR TIREAEEEBANE
BEREATRABARBERLATERAZED
ZHTHIKF o

RERITERERA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

37. Capital and Reserves (cont'd)

(c) Nature and purpose of components of reserves (cont’d)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Exchange differences reserve

The exchange differences reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial statement
of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in notes 2(p).

Property revaluation reserve
The property revaluation reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting polices set in note 2(i) and is not available
for distribution to shareholders because it does not constitute
realised profits within the meaning of section 798(2) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative net
change in the fair value of available-for-sale securities held at the
end of the reporting period and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies in note 2(e)(iii).

(vii) Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of the actual
or estimated number of unexercised share options granted
to employees of the Bank recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-based payment in
note 2(n)(ii).

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, no share options remained
outstanding. On 5 November 2008, all share options granted
under the Share Option Scheme (including the share options
granted to all Directors of the Bank) had been cancelled upon
the withdrawal of listing of the shares of CIFH on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and privatisation
by way of a Scheme of Arrangement under Section 166 of the
Companies Ordinance.

(viii) Statutory reserve

Under relevant PRC legislation, CKWB China is required to transfer
10% of its profit after taxation to a non-distributable statutory
reserve until such reserve has reached 50% of its registered share
capital.
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37.

()

(d)

38.

B R ffE ()

REEER BN (&)

(ix) SEE—MR1AME
REFERITER  PEREFEDS
RIDEE — KRR - BRREFENF
BORC - BEREBEN—AREEARE
A IRHEAIRR - RIS ERE
‘EBREETEEE BNAREENED
Z—AtE o RE —RERBRIRITRERN
AERKERD ©

x) 1RE &7
BREBB(RITERINBEBAEREEE
mﬁm KB ERERBETETB

BEREERRERANEE KA EESE
mgm&ﬁ RHREB RS - KK
¢ERE  BENEHEEEERE R

ﬂmﬂm R_ZEENF+_A=1+—
AR & A P IR A I B AR

%%ﬁﬁ%%%i%%ﬁ%%mwmo

(T )\ F: #B¥E6754650007T) °

BARITRIRERNEZAEER -

ﬁﬁ%?ﬁﬁﬁ
ATTETZNF+-_A=+—8  AHHIK
T AN TT % R AN (56 4 4R B 5 78 15 3,898,992,000

(T N\F : B#3,036,403,0007T) ©
EEEKETE
AEEXREBAETHARETE (%

BIKETED) - R $%‘E<IZET’E&$EMEA
BEEXRFHEBED 2 THHK o LRIKET
FR—ERESHRAE  REREEK
AEBHMBELRBES - BEHAFLE
R - MRE BT 2 B AT BE
B AEENEHEEMMENHKAIE
B BB B (B - R S A B A
—EBINENES - ERZBRIRETEIKX
BR@AIE

B T RKETEISN - AEBBE_ZTTTF
T-A—RiE h2E-BRAREEF
2 REAERFENEEREHAIESE -

AEBERIFEBE S 52 H % R 52 55
EVAEF] ©

AEER  AEBGELTEERAHER
WA B 48514000 (ZEENF « B
46,115,0007T) (B EE11()

Notes to the Financial Statements

37.

()

(d)

38.

Capital and Reserves (cont’d)

Nature and purpose of components of reserves (cont’d)

(ix) Regulatory general reserve
Pursuant to the PRC banking regulations, CKWB China is required
to set up a regulatory general reserve, through a transfer directly
from the current year's profit appropriation, as determined based
on the 1% of the total risk assets at the end of the reporting
period to cover its unidentified potential loss exposures. The
regulatory general reserve forms part of the equity of the Bank.

(x) Retained profits
A regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions of
the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision
purposes by earmarking amounts in respect of impairment
losses recognised which the Bank will or may incur on loans and
advances. Movements in the reserve are earmarked directly
through retained profits and in consultation with the HKMA. As
at 31 December 2009, HK$587,892,000 (2008: HK$675,465,000)
was included in the retained profits in this respect which was
distributable to equity holders of the Bank subject to consultation
with the HKMA.

Distributability of reserve

At 31 December 2009, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Bank was HK$3,898,992,000
(2008: HK$3,036,403,000).

Staff Retirement Scheme

The Group has a defined contribution provident fund scheme
("the Retirement Scheme”) under which it contributes 10% of the
employees’ basic salaries. The Retirement Scheme is a Mandatory
Provident Fund ("MPF") exempted scheme and covers all permanent
full-time employees of the Group. No employee contributions are
required. Contributions forfeited by leavers prior to vesting fully may
not be used by the Group to reduce the existing level of contribution
but are transferred to a separate welfare fund which shall be applied
for the welfare of the Retirement Scheme'’s members.

Besides the Retirement Scheme, the Group also participated in an
approved MPF scheme effective on 1 December 2000 to provide
scheme choice to both existing and new employees. Mandatory
benefits are being provided under the MPF Scheme.

During the year, the Group contributed approximately HK$48,514,000
(2008: HKS$46,115,000) (note 11(a)) to these schemes.
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0. 0RERFESLEEER 39. Cash and Cash Equivalents
AEW
The Group
—EEhE —TTN\EFE
2009 2008
BT T BT
HK$'000 HKS$'000
(i) HEEESRERANEER (i) Components of cash and cash equivalents in
HeEEEB the consolidated cash flow statement
IR NIRRT RRBITR Cash and balances with banks, central banks
HEMem#EngT and other financial institutions 6,898,339 10,754,122
EIRTT ~ PRIBITREAM Placements with and advances to banks, central
S RMEIBEN TR R banks and other financial institutions with
(FRR31E A NEIER) original maturity within three months 4,222,088 5,487,792
Bl 5 R 5B 17 58 Treasury bills and certificates of deposit held
(RR3EA Wi‘]ﬁﬁ) : with original maturity within three months:
— I EEHE - Available-for-sale securities 867,929 1,373,735
11,988,356 17,615,649
(i) ERE&RE MR KWL R (i) Reconciliation with the consolidated
statement of financial position
R RIERTT » PRIBITR Cash and balances with banks, central banks
Hih & REENGET and other financial institutions 6,898,339 10,754,122
FEIRTT ~ PRIBITREA Placements with and advances to banks, central
SRS ENTER B banks and other financial institutions 15,562,509 10,473,951
BlEH R BT RE Treasury bills and certificates of deposit held:
— At E RS — Available-for-sale securities 2,232,370 1,373,735
RE ISR RPT A 58 Amounts shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position 24,693,218 22,601,808
B REIE R A3 E A H B Less : Amounts with an original maturity of
over three months (12,704,862) (4,986,159)
FeBHeRERANEER Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated
BeEHEER cash flow statement 11,988,356 17,615,649

R_ZEENF+_A=+—HZRE KR
CEEBEANDBEIIINEEE REER
FHPRBITREMCREENRSET
A& 307,197,000 (ZEZENEF « B
202,588,0007T) ©

RERITERERA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

The balances of cash and cash equivalents included cash balances

with central banks and other financial institutions that are subject

to exchange control and regulatory restrictions, amounting to
HK$307,197,000 at 31 December 2009 (2008: HK$202,588,000).
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40. A{EIRIFNEE 40. Assets Pledged as Security
KEBRAELT
The Group and the Bank
—BEAE  —FE\F
2009 2008
BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
WEREHRT - PRIETE Cash and balances with banks, central banks and
Hih & piiEma&F other financial institutions 395 6,435
Al ERES Available-for-sale securities 62,010 74,395
BN TTE R EE (FIEE)) Assets pledged for overseas branches (Note (i) 62,405 80,830
AIERELBRASOERFNEE Assets pledged for credit default swap
(B EEGin) (Note (i) 1,215,737 -
1,278,142 80,830
FEE Note:
() FAEEFNEERENGEERKRTERSE (i) The assets pledged represented statutory deposits pledged by the
MBS B B ETEAT AN © overseas branches of the Bank to the Office of the Comptroller of
Currency in the USA at the end of each reporting period.
(i) EBEME  AEFEDLHEIAEBRZHRE (i) The Bank had entered into two credit default swaps with a senior loan

provider in the past two years as a partial credit protection against the
non-performance of a term loan provided by the senior loan provider,
both available-for-sale securities amounting to approximately of
HK$1,215,737,000 (2008: Nil) and a margin deposit of US$144,974,000
(2008: US$243,400,000) equivalent to HKS1,124,217,000 (2008:
HK$1,886,600,000) have been placed with the senior loan provider for
such credit protection.

RAINMMDERENEREY AR E
iR EFTIRERZ RIBEOEBHERER
D IEERE o BELHBE1,215737,000(=
ZENF - E)NAHEEESE-EES
14497400070 ( ZZFZF )\ F : E2 243,400,000
TC) HEAB 124,217,000 ( ZZEE )\ F -
7B 151,886,600,0007T ) KR & £ 17 5K E T A
BREHREEMEAEERE -

NEBEREHAIRS 41. Material Related Party Transactions
BEAMEREXEMIEOBENT S NG In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
N REBEBITTUTEREB LS - in these financial statements, the Group entered into the following

material related party transactions.

(a) EHEBATANXS (a) Transactions with group companies
KREEBRN AEBAEERERITERLE During the year, the Group entered into a number of transactions
ERRARE T T 2R S c EHRERIE with related parties, in the normal course of its banking business
EEE - ESREHE%EGD  RHEEH including, inter alia, lending, the acceptance and placement of

B ARBRITRZBIINER S - ELR
FNAKNTEEBRRBEBETIZKNE
FAMSHERME - WREHREASEEM
R REPMIGHER - EFERE
BELR 5 RIR T B R IRFETT ©

inter-bank deposits, participation in loan syndicates, correspondent
banking transactions and foreign exchange transactions. The
transactions were priced based on relevant market rates at the time of
each transaction, and were under the same terms as those available
to other counterparties and customers of the Group. In the opinion
of the directors, these transactions were conducted on normal
commercial terms.

—EENEER
Annual Report 2009
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N ERBEBAIRZ () 41. Material Related Party Transactions (cont'd)
(a) EREARNRS (&) (a) Transactions with group companies (cont’d)
REEAN - BB IR ZNBBERNEER The amount of related party transactions during the year and
AR outstanding balances at the end of the year are set out below:
BREER R PEIGED) B0 A (W) R i)
KEERAT Ultimate EZEREAT Fellow subsidiaries BE 0 A (W i) Related companies
The Group and the Bank controlling party Immediate parent (note (i)) Associates (note (ii) (note (i) & iii))

ZERNE CTT\E CERAE CTI\F CREAE CTT)\G CEEAF CTT\F CEEAE ST

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
BETR RETT BBTR AETT BRTR  SMTT BRTR AETR BBTR ARTT
HK$'000 HKS000  HK$'000 HKS000  HK$'000 HKS000  HK$'000 HKS000  HK$'000 HKS000

ELON Interest income 193 - - - 902 B 1,085 4158 25676 -
flEst Interest expense (64950) (7640 (3369 (12865 (60,252  (179316)  (10307) (5476 (33232 (33014)
-0 ON Other operating income - - 39 3% - - K961 37510 - -
T Operating expenses - - (10465  (03)  (@453)  (1488) (557) (665 (2198) -
&E Assets

AfHNEES AFS Securiies - - - - 3558 07 - - 1,165,007 -
MELRHTA Derivative financial instruments 4,650 M - - 28 622 - - 21,866 -
HftEWER Other receivables - - - - 6727 - 1380 20517 -
B Liabilities

FESRIA Derivative financial instruments 19,427 59 - - 786 11,146 - - 20495 2448
Hf MR Other payables 984 415 00 12347 18081 249 27 1603 15911 1378
EBER Loan capitl - - - - 798728 118579 - - 1008104 620001
EXED Lending activities:

128318 At 31 Decernber - - - - 581155 13718 - 200000 458,845 -
REET95R Average for the year - - - - T33566 977301 142500 155250 363,887 -
BRER. Acceptance of deposits:

128318 At 31 Decernber 5154298 11428751 427321 SB2%5 3301728 5360639 2235971 2657949 75502 2018
FEETHLE Average for the year 6991621 3400509 440627 424315 3513868 4367171 2875098 2497180 90,254 6755

BRRINER Off-statement of financial

position items

BRREAE Guarantees and letter of credit

-Ah%E - contract amounts - - - - - 624 3,000 - 624 -
frEsRIA Derivative financial instruments

~£ELE - notional amounts 2299517 1300000 - -9 2818 - - 1056421 545798
4 5L _E BB 5 B 3R N T SR R B No impairment allowances were made in respect of the above loans
1 o to and placements with related parties.

136 RERITEBRBRAT
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(a) REEATNRS ()
CER

() RZZBEZNF+-_A=+—AHLFE &%
EEZETARMNEEREAFLIZR QA
REFA—EFAQ Tﬂj%ﬁfrﬁ¢vﬁ$§lmﬂx
Do HEE - BEESARIMATIKE B S
N iﬁﬁ%ﬁ?%@ﬂ CMBEAREERDH
BREIERARNTRAGIABRMBRATINE
BREEE T o BULIA FE KRB X 5 Rk
SRIERMFVEH SR MIELER -

(i) ZK¢I&$%?E’JH§V£’AT a?ﬁ%??%@%ﬂﬁ
R R EEER R RMEE AT

(i) BBARREHEREREARBEZYE
B — L BB R RRBCR o

Notes to the Financial Statements

41. Material Related Party Transactions (cont’d)

(@) Transactions with group companies (cont’d)
Note:

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2009, the major shareholder of the
Group's immediate parent has disposed all of its shareholding of the
Group to a subsidiary of the ultimate controlling party. Subsequent to
the disposal, the former major shareholder of the immediate parent has
been designated from a related company to a fellow subsidiary, and the
subsidiary of the ultimate controlling party has also been designated
from a fellow subsidiary to a related company. As such, certain account
opening balances for the above related party transactions have been
restated accordingly.

(i) Associates of the Group and the Bank included the associates of the
ultimate controlling party and immediate parent respectively.

(i) Related companies referred to shareholders of the immediate parent,
which exercise significant influence on the immediate parent.

Fff B8 2 7]

Subsidiaries
—EEhEF ZEENF
2009 2008
BT T BT
)T The Bank HK$’000 HK$'000
F B WA Interest income 88,425 -
FEZH Interest expense (177,008) (343,404)
Hipag e A Other operating income 2,280 -
e Operating expenses (45) -

(b) EXEEEABNRS

(b) Transactions with key management personnel

KREFBNRATIEEEABME SFIEMN T Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group and the
RAFEEEN FARITESZHRIE  F50 Bank, including amounts paid to the Bank’s directors as disclosed in
T note 12 is as follows:
AEBRAKIT
The Group and the Bank
—EEAE —BETN\F
2009 2008
BETT BT
HKS$’000 HK$'000
EEEE R Short-term employee benefits 68,002 46,167
BB I2ET Post-employment benefits 2,208 2,124
LARRE(E LS Share-based payments - 4296
70,210 52,587

e @RBEE A AIBEIRAI(MEE11@) °

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (note 11(a)).

—EENEER
Annual Report 2009
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(b) HEEEEAENRS (&)
ARERR - RITAAITRE R EZERA A
HE R EIE A B AN PR AR Ko e P92
Bl ZMMEAZENARREEER
B FERMERERBRBBEPREH
IE@E{T\*EM/\:t&‘(ZZDLﬁH)Eﬁ%ﬁfM 8
HEITAI LB BRI ZAER ©

Notes to the Financial Statements

41. Material Related Party Transactions (cont’d)

(b) Transactions with key management personnel (cont’d)

During the year, the Bank provided credit facilities to key management
personnel of the Bank and its holding companies and their close
family members and companies controlled or significantly influenced
by them. The credit facilities were provided in the ordinary course
of business and on substantially the same terms as for comparable
transactions with persons of a similar standing or, where applicable,
with other employees.

KEBRAKIT

The Group and the Bank
—REAE —TI)\F
2009 2008
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
A1 ATV BEREE R At 1 January 8,739 13,505
12831 BRIEEER At 31 December 14,655 8,739
FAm=LS Maximum amount during the year 17,050 14,829
REELSERTEETEAERFANEG No impairment losses have been recorded against balances
HERTMRERE  wEEREEEE outstanding during the year with key management personnel, and

A Bt (P9 8O ST R0 2R A 45 R RRER 3¢ M
BIF 4 RO E 2 o

(0 ITRABER

no individually assessed impairment allowance has been made on
balances with key management personnel and their immediate
relatives at the year end.

(c) Loans to officers

RITRIBEBEBCREHEGI ) E 161BIEHEFRT Loans to officers of the Bank disclosed pursuant to section 1618 of the
HABHERNAT : Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:
—EEhRE CZETINF
2009 2008
BETT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
R12 A3 BARTTIRER Aggregate amount of relevant loans made by
BB RE R BT the Bank outstanding at 31 December 30,498 31,187
REFEARTIRENEBHER Maximum aggregate amount of relevant loans made
= i R HEFR by the Bank outstanding during the year 32,450 33,335
i ggﬂi —EENF+ZRA=1— There was no provision made against these loans as at 31 December
B REBERE RELE IR AR - 2009 and 2008.
FIERTEIRERAR

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42. Financial Risk Management

This section presents information about the Group's exposure to, and
its management and control of risks, in particular the primary risks
associated with its use of financial instruments as follows:

-~ Credit risk: the risk of financial loss due to failure of a customer or
counterparty to fulfill its contractual obligations.

- Market risk: the risk that movements in market risk factors,
including foreign exchange rates, commodity prices, interest
rates, credit spreads and equity prices, will reduce the Group's
income, the value of its portfolios and its reserve value.

- Liquidity risk: the risk of inability to meet financial obligations as
they fall due. This may be caused by a funding liquidity problem
such as the inability to liquidate assets or obtain funding to meet
obligations or may be attributable to a market liquidity problem
resulting in market disruptions, thus hindering the Group's ability
to unwind or offset specific exposures without lowering market
prices significantly.

-~ Operational risk: the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people and systems or from external events.

The Group has established policies and procedures to identify and
analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and
to monitor these risks and limits continually by means of reliable
and up-to-date management and information systems. The Group
continually modifies and enhances its risk management frameworks
and infrastructure in keeping with the market, product offering and
international best practice. The Group's internal auditor also performs
regular independent audits to ensure due compliance with internal
policies and regulatory requirements.

In addition to the Group's exposure to and management of the
aforesaid risks, this note also includes information about the Group's
capital management.

—EENEER
Annual Report 2009
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(a) Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss due to failure of a customer or
counterparty to fulfill its contractual obligations. Credit exposures
arise principally in loans and advances, debt securities, treasury bills,
trading derivatives as well as credit risk in off-financial statement of
position financial arrangements such as loan commitments. The
Group has developed standards, policies and procedures to measure,
monitor and mitigate the risk of its lending business. The policies
and procedures are reviewed as required to respond quickly to the
changing market environment to better reflect the risk factors for our
credit considerations.

Credit risk management and control is centralised in the Risk
Management Group ("RMG") under the oversight of Credit Committee
and reported to the Credit & Risk Management Committee ("CRMC")
at the board level on a quarterly basis. These committees provide
appropriate oversight on the Group's risk management practices by
defining the Group's policies and risk appetite and providing RMG
with the means to implement measures to mitigate credit risks arising
from the Group's adopted strategy.

Credit risk imbedded in products is identified and measured in
product programmes. Credit risk pertaining to individual customers is
identified and measured by credit officers utilising internal risk rating
models. Credit applications are approved by credit officers under
delegated authorities or by credit committee, as the case may be.

The Group mitigates credit risk by means of taking collateral and
entering into offsetting or netting agreements with borrowers
and counterparties, as the case may be, should such clauses and
agreements be legally established and enforceable.

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in geographic,
economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of counterparties
whose aggregate credit exposure is material in relation to the Group’s
total exposures. The Group's portfolio of financial instruments is
diversified along geographic, industry and product sectors. Credit risk
concentration of the Group's respective financial assets is disclosed in
notes 20 to 24.
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42. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(a) FERBRERE(H)

(@) Credit risk management (cont’d)

MERGEERBHEEHR - BAKE
ERMCEEERRO AR - WRES
EHBEITANRRTR - LT @R R EE
B - REBEW :fﬁﬂzﬁﬁmﬂxém#&ﬁ
M Baa3I Ik LM EHE S

AEBHIBEEFARMBERLREN
RN eRmTAARNEERE  REE
REHRER - FHARBELORERR &
R ZERBTEBRABRARE=E1
B IRE E R G RERTRIE -

(i) FEEZE
REBE —EHRIINBIRKBEEE
AR B 9144 9 B R B BT AR R At (FL AR
ZNHRABERER  REVUWRATRE
3'7) ERGEAEEEREBENES
BERERE IR I B AN - fEmiEA A
%.E@Wﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁi R\t TAH
RBRIAEPITR(HEX BH5% -
MEBRRMREF)ERE - BRAE
e REUEFNEEREN& IR
EREEHERNEPXRZEHFNEE
[z/qmIg

B EFHRR RIS ETHRE
WiZH ZE KRB - tEE/&@JE’Jm
BERATH_ZZ N \FNSHEE - &
EENBZECAETHERRSEME
E(RRB TR ASE10R) UBE AL
EERHEENER -

Credit risk of treasury transactions is managed in the same way as the
Group manages its corporate lending risk. Risk grading is applied to
the debt issuers with individual credit limits set. It is the Group’s credit
policy not to invest in unlisted debt securities that are below the
rating of Baa3.

The Group applies the same credit policy in respect of contingent
liabilities as in respect of financial instruments recorded on the
statement of financial position, based on loan approval procedures,
use of limits to reduce risk and monitoring. Credit risk is also mitigated
by obtaining collateral in the form of pledged assets and guarantees
from borrowers and third parties.

(i) Credit quality

The Group has a 14-grade internal risk rating system (Grade
1-11 for performing loans and Grade 12-14 for non-performing
loans) that maps to external agencies Master Scales, providing
calibrated internal ratings. The integration of this framework into
the Group's reporting structure has enabled a more accurate
risk reporting, thus enhancing the internal management. The
risk rating tools are calibrated according to differing customer
segment (manufacturing, trading, property development/
investment, etc) which enables the ranking of the credit quality
of each customer and govern the credit exposure to individual
customer or counterparty.

Risk ratings of customers are reviewed regularly and amendments,
where necessary, are implemented promptly, particularly in times
of fluctuating market conditions such as the financial tsunami in
2008. The Group also maintains a committee to oversee weaker
credits (which are of lower risk rating of 8-10) on regular basis to
preserve our quality portfolio.

—EENEER
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(a) EERKREE(E)
(i) 1EEEEEIE
REEHASZHNEERR EBRCRET &

Notes to the Financial Statements

42. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(@) Credit risk management (cont’d)
(ii) Exposure of credit risk
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of each reporting

EARENERMIEBERENT) B
PEARK P BIRE S B EER IR
MEEFHERNOEESHE - FERR LR

period without taking into consideration of any collateral held
or other credit enhancements is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial assets in the statement of financial

Bhaian T - position after deducting any impairment allowance. A summary
of the maximum exposure is as follows:
FEE 47
The Group The Bank
“BENE —TT)N\F ZBENMEF —TIT)N\F
2009 2008 2009 2008
BET T AT T BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
WERERTT - PRIBITR Cash and balances with banks, central
Hih & B a1 banks and other financial institutions 6,898,339 10,754,122 5,944,423 10,488,291
TEIRAT  PRIBITR Placements with and advances to banks,
Hith & BIER central banks and
FERREH other financial institutions 15,562,509 10473951 14,206,596 10,239,534
BH5RE Trade bills 1,028,616 816,069 1,028,616 816,069
RHREEE Trading assets 1,777,702 2,057,872 1,775,554 2,055,093
BEABBERRE Securities designated at fair value
RAEBENES through profit or loss 580,636 521,834 580,636 521,834
BEEERNBTR Loans and advances to customers and
HAERIE other accounts 72,935,885 75,101,152 64,664,644 67,347,688
A& S Available-for-sale securities 19,974,150 20592876 19,974,150 20592876
BISERNEMEEE Financial guarantees and other credit
EBNSEEE related contingent liabilities 6,494,973 6165664 6,354,315 6,076,684
STAEEREMEEE Loans commitments and other credit
BRERY AR related commitments 26,738,569 26621899 26,651,467 26,219,552
151,991,379 153,105,439 141,180,401 144,357,621

RERITERERA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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42. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(a) FERBRERE(H)
(i) 1= B 2 B2 49 )60 4% — 18 #.ig R A 15

(@) Credit risk management (cont’d)
(iii) Mitigation of credit risk — Collateral and other credit

w#H
REBHNRNERA TR R EE
SR o —RME  AEBAEIRR K
HEEERREANBEREZERERAONE
@ o NEBASEERTREEERRE
KFE, FRIE—ZTN\FoRERT
AEBIDARDRFEEER

AR B R EE R e Bk 75 B HY .
TEEERE  ReER  REBREH
KB AR F R LA - UL ARK
fEE  BRERILREEAEER A H
BEES - E—LBERT - AEREHR
FEPOMRMEBFNEEERER
R EAERRNERTE

Y
oA °

AEEE —ERFERERAF S TR
BIEY IR G S (B R R AR S E R H
HE2H - ZHEZ2BEARTLEE
EMRE - AEEHEBIEESF LT
(B 75 B SR 75 ) Ve TE HiAR & DAREAR B 1
BN E@mERER - &5 EfmiE
BAEEERR LT ER - ARERRK
NFHEEAR P 58 FHEREE
AL FEE ARSI -

enhancements

The Group places great effort and resources to mitigate credit
risk and this takes many forms. In general, risk on the Group'’s
ultimate credit exposure is mitigated by recognised collateral
and credit risk enhancement. The Group continuously seeks to
enhance its level of credit risk mitigation, and particularly during
the financial tsunami in 2008, the Group was successful in this
aspect to safeguard its credit quality.

The principal collateral received to secure loans and advances
include mortgages, cash collaterals, equities listed on a main
index/recognised exchanges, account receivables (“AR")
assignment, standby letter of credits and listed debt securities
acceptable to the Group. In some cases, depending on the
customer’s position and the types of credit products, loans may
be granted on a clean basis backed by corporate or personal
guarantees.

The Group has guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes
of collateral or credit risk enhancements accompanied with
determination of valuation parameters. Such parameters are
expected to be conservative and reviewed regularly. Security
structures and covenants (financial and non-financial) are subject
to regular review to ensure they are complied with the stipulated
conditions. The collateral is important to mitigate credit risk,
but it is the Group's policy to assess the repayment ability of
individual customer or counterparty rather than just to rely solely
on security.

—EENEER
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(a) FERERER(HE)
(iii) 1= B 2 B2 49 )60 4% — 18 #.ig R A 15
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(@) Credit risk management (cont’d)

(iii) Mitigation of credit risk — Collateral and other credit

enhancements (cont’d)

The Group's collateralised credit risk as at 31 December 2009 and

2008, excluding impaired exposures, is broken down as follows:

rEE 4T
The Group The Bank
“EEAE —TIT)\F ZBEAEF —TIT)\F
2009 2008 2009 2008
BT BT BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
ERhBGRemENIEE Lower of gross loans and advances
T’E?ﬁﬁfﬁﬁpﬂﬁéz and fair value of collateral and other
R R A credit enhancements held against
RAMNARBEMRELZ financial assets that are:
RIEER
—RBBHSRIE — neither past due nor impaired 41,390,988 42852977 34,054,817 35955013
—@HELERE ~ past due but not impaired 587,900 1,168,418 433,519 1,017,542
41,978,888 44,021,395 34,488,336 36,972,555

(iv) ERAHAESEEREREVTE
ESAEA B HE-LA B R0 E (B E R
ZIKEIE’\_ TN FERAURER ABARE
EEHERAEAEFMESEEMNAS
—BTEE - AEEFLEBHAEEE
B AEERBRITEEERMOREE
RARBEARE - £ AR SERIF S
ARREBER B RN FRITHREE
Bk (BIEEE) - EEITEERNTR
BE EmMkRSEEERMAERE
[E\ R S T o = ERRHE R RE
RITAREBABIENENBRE - A&
BB EITIWE B A EMIERN R R E
B N EOR R B R Bl o

RERITERERA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(iv) Portfolio management and risk concentration

Portfolio management — Risk Based Pricing Model

As part of the Group’s portfolio management practices, the
Group adopted the Risk Based Pricing Model in 2009 with the aim
of introducing a minimum pricing threshold on different types of
transactions in order to improve the overall return for the Group
(value creation), after taking into account the risks, and thus
capital required to support the loan exposure and other costs.
This tool strikes a balance between price and accepted risks
taking into consideration, the differing customer, product and
transaction. The key components required to estimate the risks,
and thus pricing are Probability of Default and Loss Given Default.
Both measures of risk take into account the mitigation techniques
put in place in the Group in order to encourage its use.
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. cREMREE(E) 42, Financial Risk Management (cont’d)
() FERMEE (&) (a) Credit risk management (cont’d)
(iv) BRHSEBEREGERE (&) (iv) Portfolio management and risk concentration (cont’d)
E#E - Definitions:
— BABIERREP—FRELEENN ~  Probability of Default ("PD") is the likelihood, expressed as a
S RK (LA D ELFER) © percentage, of a default event in a one-year time horizon, for

that customer.

— BYBEAERRERFPELBAEE —  Loss Given Default ("LGD") is an estimate of the severity of
BRI REAZ IBRRBRE AR the loss that the Group is likely to incur in the event that the

customer defaults.

— EAMORXZETFEEIENE - Exposure at Default ("EAD") is the exposure to the
A e counterparty in the event that the default occurs.

&R E Risk concentration

AEBEHTRARETEERBERLL A Risk Concentration Policy is in place and the Group frequently

BRAAERMROUEIRERS - I% reviews its loan exposure to monitor the concentration risk by

TG MEm ERERE - @EeE RS customer, country, market segment and products.

B o

AEBEMESHEENEZERRETH Credit risk concentration of the Group's respective financial assets

DIWTIEMITE20ZE 24 FE - is disclosed in notes 20 to 24.

—ETREFRH |14
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42. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(@) Credit risk management (cont’d)

(v) Credit quality of loans and advances

Ieﬁﬁ

The Group uses every means to manage and monitor its risks
and has prudent Loan Classification Policy and Impairment

Assessment Policy in place to govern this aspect.

At 31 December 2009 and 2008, all loans and advances to Banks

=+—RH  FARTERRBRITLE are not impaired. The credit quality of loans and advances to
BE - BFERRBRNEEEENT customers is analysed as follows:
NN
AEE 17
The Group The Bank
—EThE —TT)\F ZEEhE —TT)\F
2009 2008 2009 2008
BT BETT BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
BEERARBH Gross loans and advances to customers
—,xﬁ;éi,ﬁﬁﬁkmﬁ - neither past due nor impaired 69,944,113 70508980 61,925,140 63,035,856
—-BEHBELERE - past due but not impaired 966,561 1,521,357 811,126 1,370,481
—BRAE ~impaired 1,304,137 1,384,179 1,250,301 1329377
72,214,811 73414516 63,986,567 65,735,714
rEE T
Hep: Of which: The Group The Bank
“EENE BT N\F ZBEEAE —TEN\F
2009 2008 2009 2008
BT T BT T BETT BT T
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
WEBESHENEPER  Gross loans and advances to customers
KB RABER that are neither past due nor impaired
—J—_E%L'@E_p;ﬁ £10 - Pass included Grades 1to 10 69,391,077 69,741,118 61,374,006 62,403,827
—BEBRETRN - Special mention included Grade 11 553,036 767,862 551,134 632,029
69,944,113 70,508,980 61,925,140 63,035,856

146 RERITEBRBRAT
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N crRRAREE(E) 42. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)
(a) CEREKMETE(E) (a) Credit risk management (cont’d)

v) BERBFHELE (& (v) Credit quality of loans and advances (cont'd)
BaEELERENEFERRBARY The ageing analysis of loans and advances to customers that are
REGDATRA S - past due but not impaired is as follows:

rEE 1T
The Group The Bank
“EERE ZTIT)N\F ZEBERE ZTI)N\F
2009 2008 2009 2008
BETT BB BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EaHERBARENTP Gross loans and advances to customers
ERNE T EE that are past due but not impaired
—@EREA AT - Overdue 3 months or less 753,309 1,514,251 597,874 1,363,375
—3%6fEA ~ 6 months or less but
over 3 months - 7,106 - 7,106
—6EAZE15F ~ 1 year or less but over 6 months 77,546 - 77,546 -
—1FE - Over 1 year 135,706 - 135,706 -
966,561 1,521,357 811,126 1,370,481
RZZEENFT+A=1+—8  IRH Loans and advances that would be past due or impaired had the
REFEMER - EBEsRENER terms not been rescheduled amounted to HK$2,252,000 as at 31
KBRS A % 2,252,000 (ZFEN December 2009 (2008: HK$10,692,000).
F : B%10,692,0007T) °
BITERMEE - PO TREERNF Further detail analysis on the impaired loan by industry sectors or

AER D B2 FIAM TE23 (0 R ARG EZ
AT BTERHIEE®)

EXRBIAN EHEENZEEE
MEXZEERBRNEETN - BAK
BERECREERRATT AR - AR
BRESFBETANEBRIE - REER
RBEE - AEENEERRETRE
REFAR KR Baa3) FE EEREFE S » 1
“EENFR BT N\F+_A=1+—
B WRERENZRRZ~HE2EER
EHEHESFELRERE

by geographical locations are provided in note 23 (c) and note (B)
of the unaudited supplementary information respectively.

Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and advances
Credit risk of treasury transactions is managed in the same way
as the Group manages its corporate lending risk. Risk grading is
applied to the debt issuers with individual credit limits set. It is
the Group's credit policy not to invest in unlisted debt securities
that are below the rating of Baa3. As at 31 December 2009
and 2008, there were no objective evidence that should call for
impairment assessment on individual, listed debt securities.

—EENEER
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. cREMREE(E) 42. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)
(@) EERKBER(E)
V) BARBHGIEZEE (B

ERRBHUIN R EENZEEES Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and advances
(&) (cont'd)
TREVNEBFHFEEE BIRBER®IE
BERBIAERBE IR TOEE
BE - BEBIEFNEETRRERESL
BHBEITANGR - WEFAF LB
& RIRAEHEIT ARIRTEAR -

(@) Credit risk management (cont’d)
(v) Credit quality of loans and advances (cont'd)

The following table presents the credit quality of investments
in debt securities analysed by the designated external credit
assessment agency, Moody's Investors Service ratings (or their
equivalent) at the end of the reporting period. Credit ratings for
those debt securities are represented by either the issue or the
issuer ratings, ratings designated for the issuers are reported in
case there are no issue ratings.

REBRAET
The Group and the Bank
= 2%
2009
ETRBEBR
B R
DNAEER
BH
Securities aHHE
RSAE  designated Bk
BE atfairvalue Available-
Trading through for-sale M
assets profit or loss securities Total
BET T BET T BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Aaa Aaa - - 657,554 657,554
Aa3ZEAal Aa3 to Aal 624,148 - 11,520,492 12,144,640
A3IZEAT A3 to Al - 368,594 3,812,915 4,181,509
KARA3 Lower than A3 - 69 2,986,014 2,986,083
624,148 368,663 18,976,975 19,969,786
T Unrated - 211,973 997,175 1,209,148
FEEE] Total 624,148 580,636 19,974,150 21,178,934
FIERTEIRERAR

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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42. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(@) Credit risk management (cont’d)

(v) Credit quality of loans and advances (cont'd)

Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and advances

(&) (contd)
REERATT
The Group and the Bank
—TENF
EERBA
B A Bt
NLEER
Securities A E
RPA%E  designated 5
BE at fair value Available-
Trading through for-sale FE ]
assets  profit or loss securities Total
BT T BB BB BT
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
Aaa Aaa 460,643 - 660,723 1,121,366
Aa3E Aal Aa3 to Aal 159,139 - 14,044,990 14,204,129
A3ZEAI A3 to Al - 286,612 3,324,081 3,610,693
ERA3 Lower than A3 - 52,889 1,240,922 1,293,811
619,782 339,501 19,270,716 20,229,999
KT Unrated - 182,333 1,322,160 1,504,493
k] Total 619,782 521,834 20,592,876 21,734,492
—EThFEFR
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42. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(b) Market risk management

Market risk arises on all market risk sensitive financial instruments,
including securities, foreign exchange contracts, equity and derivative
instruments, as well as from available-for-sale securities or structural
positions. The Group separates exposures to market risk mainly into
trading and available-for-sale (“AFS”) portfolios. Trading portfolios
include positions arising from proprietary position-taking and other
marked-to-market positions designated to the trading book. AFS
portfolios include positions that primarily arise from the Group's
investments in securities, which neither are intended to be held
to maturity nor purchased with trading purposes. The change in
valuation for the trading portfolios from market risks affects the
income statement while that for the AFS portfolios from market risks
affects the investment revaluation reserve. The Group is necessary to
ensure impacts on both the income statement and the reserves from
market risks are under proper and prudent controls. The objectives of
market risk management are to:

- identify, monitor and control market risk exposures through the
measurement of the risks; the establishment of position limits,
sensitivities limits and VAR limits based on the Group's Tier 1
capital base; and communication of risks to senior management;

- support business growth with reference to a risk controlled
framework; and

ensure a proper balance between risk and return.

Market risk framework

The Group has a clear market risk appetite through the establishment
of a limit structure, early warnings alerts and policies for the trading
and AFS portfolios. Limits are categorised into the hierarchy of policy
limits, business limits, and transaction limits. This market risk appetite
has been approved by the Asset and Liability Committee ("ALCO")
and endorsed by the Board through the CRMC. The hierarchy of the
limit structure is set up to control on position size, profit and loss
and sensitivities from the portfolio level to individual trader level. All
business units with market risks are required to be in strict compliance
with the policies and the limits. Treasury is the primary business
unit that involves in market risk exposures. Market risk department
is an independent risk measurement and control unit, which is
overseen by the Head of Market Risk who reports to the Director of
Risks. Market risk department uses a set of quantitative techniques to
identify, measure, and control the market risks, which are reported to
ALCO and to the Board through the CRMC on a regular basis. These
techniques include sensitivity analysis, value at risk (“VAR") and stress
tests, which are measured relative to the Group's capital base.
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R cHEMEE(E) 42. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)
(b) MiEZEEE(E) (b) Market risk management (cont’d)
TS EfE B HEZE (4) Market risk framework (cont'd)
TREHT —EAMMAS(EENTEENS The following table provides an overview of market risk reports:

BhisERRE

RERARES Trading Portfolios A[fEHEH A4S  AFS Portfolios
EEER  Risktype JBL B R = Risk measures [ BRI = Risk measures
SN Foreign exchange  [Elf& VAR TiE Not applicable
F| =& Interest rate (B & S E VAR and sensitivity RSB RSB E VAR and sensitivity
GER Commodity [E R B VAR i Not applicable
e Equity b B VAR BRE Sensitivity
EEB8%Z  Credit spread T EA Not applicable R E N R VAR and sensitivity
HAEEH  Portfolio type RRE - BURREN VAR sensitivityand  JERE - BURE K& VAR, sensitivity and

B 1A stress test JE 7RI stress test
RITHEBEEIELZE@EMM FTE ST G The Bank’s approval process for new products is controlled by the
REZEE] - BEHESFER IR 2R “New Product Evaluation and Approval Policy” approved by its
Fro IRBZIR - #E®PTH KA R % Management Committee. According to the Policy, new products
EREE/NE - BIEMBEIER - EE are subject to risk clearances by various functional units, including
REHEEIEE BMREESLMERRAER Financial Management, operations & Technology Management, Risk
2BooMmLAEE - EEBEENEZFTE Management Group and Legal & Compliance. After obtaining the
B ERVEMNEFRIESTHRRKREIR functional clearances, the sponsoring Business Head shall submit the
BERTRAEER, BETRERRERER Product Evaluation Proposal for the joint approval of Director of Risks
IR R KR F RS and Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ")/Alternate Chief Executive Officer
("ACEO").

—ETREER |15
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42. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(b) TSR EE ()

(b) Market risk management (cont’d)

45 B B i 2 1Y T S 45

GURMED T

SRR R P 0 BE ORI S & TR AR B A e
EOTISRRMOR o Hlan - A AR =M
EERER—AREHNEHMELNRE
tERESRIE &Y -

{8

Rl ER —BEERRNOEM - AL
EREMREMEEKFER - BTSN EM
EBRORBMERERETRNBERK -
ZELNERTHENRANAREE - 21
MERR - SMERR - FEEEZRR K
SR - amERAKIERRER

AREBEFFAMAVAREL - TREREELER
BRNKERBERRERSE - FLEL
PEBAE T 5 F) R I B AR HEET AR 2R AT B8
BAHBERLREZ B TRTHMEL X2
EEVARRANE - MAIRMER - ZEITTE
BT RAR RN R AEZE -

AEBRMERANELEREL BT T
JLE

— BENTSEBHELRLELFENRR
RHMAE FBEMEN A O EEFK
BHANEIE  BRELTSMNEX - &
RANFERRAK S

- HEARZAS RRERNABNZ
N ABELKFE R XA B A5
BiKiE
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Methodology and characteristics of market risk model

Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity measures are used to monitor the market risk positions
for each type of risk exposures. For example, present value of a
basis point movement in interest rates and present value of a basis
point movement in credit spreads for credit spread risk are used for
monitoring purposes.

Value at risk

VAR is a technique that estimates the potential losses that could occur
on risk positions as a result of movements in market rates and prices
over a specified time horizon and to a given level of confidence.
The model is designed to capture the different risk types including
interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, credit spread risk, equity risk,
commaodity risk and volatility risk.

The VAR models used by the Group are based predominantly on
historical simulation and Monte Carlo simulation is also used as a
reference. These models derive plausible future scenarios from
historical market rates and prices, taking into account correlation
amongst different markets and rates such as interest rates and foreign
exchange rates. The models also incorporate the effect of embedded
options of the underlying exposures.

The historical simulation model used by the Group include the
following elements:

- potential market movements are calculated with reference to
data from the prior year for the trading portfolios and from the
last two years for the AFS portfolios, including historical market
rates, prices and the associated volatilities;

- for the trading portfolio, VAR is calculated with a 99 per cent
confidence level and for a 1-day holding period;
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42. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(b) Mar

ket risk management (cont’d)

Methodology and characteristics of market risk model (cont’d)
Value at risk (cont'd)

for the AFS portfolio, VAR is calculated with a 99 per cent
confidence level and for a 250-day holding period; and

HK$ Million
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back testing, started in year 2009, the Group routinely validates
the accuracy of its VAR model for its trading portfolios by
comparing the actual and hypothetical daily profit and loss
results, adjusted for items including fees and commissions,
against the corresponding VAR numbers. Statistically, the
Group would expect to see losses in excess of VAR only one per
cent of the time over a one-year period. The actual number of
excesses over this period can therefore be used to gauge how
well the model is performing. In year 2009, only one exception
occurred under back-testing, which corresponded to the green
zone as specified by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority and the
international Basel principles.

CESAFERBEAAEENER RS RER
Actual Profit and Loss Backtesting Model in 2009
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42,
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Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

Market risk management (cont’d)

Methodology and characteristics of market risk model (cont'd)

Value at risk (cont'd)

While VAR calculated under this approach can serve as a good guide
for market risk under normal market conditions, it has its limitations.
For example, the use of historical data as a proxy may not encompass
all possible potential events and the events beyond the 99 per cent
confidence interval are not considered. In order to mitigate such
limitation, Market risk department provides ALCO with the stress
test results reflecting potential extreme events on the market risk
exposures for the trading and AFS portfolios.

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the average daily mark-
to-market revenue from the Bank’s trading portfolio and fund
investments (excluding structured investment vehicles) was a gain
of HK$84,000 (2008: a loss of HK$43,000). The standard deviation of
the daily revenue was HK$1,241,000 (2008:HK$760,000). The graphs
below show the histograms of the Group’s daily mark-to-market
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 respectively.

o
REBBAFTEHERANE RS HE R-BE/N\EHEGERANERASGE
Daily distribution of daily ket revenue in 2009 Daily distribution of daily mark-to-market revenue in 2008
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42. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(b) Market risk management (cont’d)
Methodology and characteristics of market risk model (cont'd)

ERE(E) Value at risk (cont'd)
TRERTRSEMORRES T - The tables below show the VAR statistics for the trading book.
BERZENTSRAR - —REME%
Market Risk for the Trading Portfolio - One day VAR 99%
ZEEhE “EEN\F
2009 2008
BET=A B2 +2F
=t-A =t-A
5% B ¥4 Asat &R &I 52 Asat
Maximum Minimum Mean 31 December Maximum Minimum Mean 31 December
BETT BT B¥Tr  B%Tx AT BBt BETRx AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
SMER R Foreign exchange risk 5,384 229 1,141 344 1553 28 468 1332
FIERER Interest rate risk 14,028 2,369 5,667 4,224 5916 475 1578 5773
R EERE Total VAR 9,978 2,199 5772 4,176 5999 473 1622 5807
AHEERFASHTERR
—EENFRAZETZA
Market Risk for the AFS Portfolio
September - December 2009
BZz+=A
=+-H
B& &iE ¥13 Asat
Maximum Minimum Mean 31 December
BET T BETT BETT BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
= E R Interest rate risk 821,000 617,000 710,000 624,000
FESEAR Credit spread risk 1,019,000 941,000 972,000 974,000
S0REREEESE Total 250-day VAR 1,205,000 1,070,000 1,135,000 1,137,000

W SHEA R EESAA TS AR T

NENAFEE

Rt

Note: Calculation of market risk VAR for the AFS portfolio started from

September 2009.
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42. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(b) Market risk management (cont’d)

Stress testing

Stress testing is implemented to mitigate the weaknesses in the
VAR model in order to capture the remote but plausible events. The
Group uses the following scenarios for market risk stress testing:

- sensitivity scenarios, which consider the impact of any single risk
factor or a set of factors that are unlikely to be captured by the
VAR model, such as the break of HK dollar and US dollar currency
peg; and

- historical scenarios, which incorporate historical observation of
market moves during previous stress periods which would not
be captured by the VAR model such as the impact on valuation
under the recent credit crisis scenario.

Stress testing results provide ALCO with an assessment of the financial
impact from such events that would have on the Group’s income
statement and reserve. The daily losses for the trading portfolio and
the yearly negative reserve impact for the AFS portfolios experienced
in 2009 were within the stress loss scenarios reported to ALCO.

Credit spread risk

During the financial crisis started in the middle of year 2007, in
addition to interest rate risk and extreme market volatilities, the crisis
was also characterised by significant widening in credit spreads,
which had heavily affected the valuation for the AFS portfolios. In
addition, the extreme market conditions have made the availability
of market prices for some of the securities infrequent and, to a certain
extent, less reliable, which had further increased the challenge and
complexity for the portfolio valuation for some of the securities in the
AFS portfolio.

In order to strengthen the risk control for the AFS portfolios, market
risk department has established in September 2009 a framework that
enables the estimation for the fair values of option adjusted spreads
in order to calculate the fair values for illiquid securities, as well as the
calculation of a 250-day credit spread VAR, credit spread sensitivity
risk statistics, stress testing and the establishment for a limit structure
and early alert indicators. The objective for the choice of the 250-day
credit spread VAR statistics is to measure the potential adverse impact
on the Group's reserve on an annual basis.
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42. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(b) MIZEMEE(H)

(b) Market risk management (cont’d)

INE B iz
AEBERIINERRFREINEEER - 9
R HINEFHEE AEBERBINDTT
MBRARIMEE - AEBMNINEEER
REHAELCHEERABZESZE - B
LA £ JE JINE [ B 10 5 12 B 35 {8 71 & 1 AN
B2iE 2 & B A M RE tGreeks (i RSN
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IERNFE  INEEEMNTHERBERAK
R 1050007 ( ZFE )\ F ¢ B 143,000
T0) M HIZERZE BB 242000t ( ZFF
J\EE : B¥256,0007T) ©

REZERNERINERBRIT

Currency risk

The Group’s foreign exchange risk stems from taking foreign
exchange positions from commercial dealings, investments in foreign
currency securities and operations of the Group and its overseas
branches and subsidiaries. Foreign exchange positions of the Group
are subject to exposure limits approved by ALCO. Methods adopted
to measure foreign currency risk exposure against corresponding
limits include individual currency positions, overall foreign exchange
positions and sensitivities such as Greeks (for foreign exchange
options). For the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group's average
daily trading profit and loss from foreign exchange positions was a
profit of HK$105,000 (2008: HK$43,000) with a standard deviation of
HK$242,000 (2008: HK$256,000).

Significant foreign currency exposures at the end of the reporting
period were as follows:

150
The Group
ZEENE “TEN\F
2009 2008
EY ARE  HpEE | e ARE  EpEE et
RERNBET R Equivalent in HK$'000 usD RMB Others Total UsD RVB Others Total
BEEE Spot assets 45028620 4005549 5,021,632 54055801 42574348 1914543 3304502 47793393
BEEE Spot liabilities (30,864,229)  (3,005965) (8,275,088) (42,145282) (43668983  (1512671) (6202653  (51,384307)
FHEA Forward purchases 45809607 23535611 10,403,994 79749212 21011235 2987077 7554558 31552870
EHEL Forward sales (59,942,753) (23487,681) (7,159,542) (90,580,976) (18906234)  (3069207) (4697912  (26673353)
Hgges Net aptions position - - - - B _ ) .
k/(R)&3% Net long/(short) position 31,245 1,047,514 (9,004) 1,069,755 1010366 319742 (#1505 188603
EERTE Net structural position - 48,542 275,753 - 2739 48515 275,905
V)
The Bank
ZEENE “TEN\F
2009 2008
EY ARE  HpEE 2| e ARE  EpEE et
BERBETR Equivalent in HK$'000 usD RMB Others Total UsD AMB Others Total
BEEE Spot assets 44426348 1843262 4,967,580 51,237,190 42208545 72691 3304497 4685733
BEEE Spot liabilities (30326912)  (795782) (8,222244) (39,344938) (43198938)  (439299) (62030000  (49,841237)
EHEN Fonward purchases 45615730 23305005 10,403,994 79324819 20815045 2863783 7554558 31233386
EHEL Forward sales (59,679,080) (23,296,402) (7,159,542) (90,135,024) (18779423  (875317) (4697912 (26352652
Higges Net aptions position - - i} - h ) )
/(B85 Net long/(short) position 36,086 1,056,173 (10212) 1,082,047 1045229 321,858 @857) 1325230
EERTRE Net structural position - - 48,542 48,542 - 48515 48515

HERFEE RS E RN E R
e

The net options position is calculated using Model User Approach
which has been approved by the HKMA.

—EENEER
Annual Report 2009

157



158

B TSR M

R cHEMEE(E)

(b) TSR EE ()
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(b) Market risk management (cont’d)
Sensitivity analysis on foreign exchange exposures

U]

At 31 December 2009, if HKD had weakened by 10% against other
currencies (other than USD currency) with all other variables held
constant, the profit before tax for the year of the Group and the
Bank would have been higher by HK$103.9 million and HK$104.6
million respectively (2008: higher by HK$27.8 million and HK$28
million respectively for the Group and the Bank), mainly as a
result of foreign exchange gains on translation of non-HKD
denominated financial assets compensated by foreign exchange
losses on translation of non-HKD denominated financial liabilities.

Conversely, if HKD had strengthened by 10% against other
currencies (other than USD currency) with all other variables held
constant, the profit before tax for the year of the Group and the
Bank would have been lower by HK$103.9 million and HK$104.6
million respectively (2008: lower by HK$27.8 million and HK$28
million respectively for the Group and the Bank).

(i) The Group or the Bank is exposed to currency risks primarily

arising from financial instruments that are denominated in USD,
excluding structural foreign exchange positions of RMB200
million and MOP50 million. As the USD is pegged to the HKD, the
Group or the Bank considers the risk of movements in exchange
rates between the HKD and the USD to be insignificant.

Interest rate risk

The Group's ALCO oversees all interest rate risks arising from the

interest rate profile of the Group’s assets and liabilities. The Group

has interest rate risk exposure from both of its banking and trading

books. The interest rate risk in the banking book is caused by maturity

gaps, basis risks among different interest rate benchmarks, yield curve

movements, interest rate re-pricing risks and risks from embedded

options, if any. The Group’s management of the interest rate risk in

the banking book is governed by the Interest Rate Risk Management

Policy for banking book. Treasury and markets department manages

the interest rate risk in the banking book according to the Policy.
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42. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(b) TSR EE ()

(b) Market risk management (cont’d)
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Interest rate risk (cont’d)

To mitigate interest rate risk, the Group has used interest rate
derivatives, mainly interest rate swaps, to hedge both assets and
liabilities such as available-for-sale securities (“AFS”) and non-trading
liabilities (“NTL"). The Group has also adopted hedge accounting
principles, under which the fair value changes of the AFS/NTL and
the corresponding fair value changes of the hedging derivative
instruments offset with each other.

The Group's management of the interest rate risk in the trading book is
guided by the Interest Rate Risk Management Policy for Trading Book.
The Group mainly uses present value of a basis point movement to
measure its interest rate risk exposure in the trading book. For the
year ended 31 December 2009, the Group’s average daily trading
profit and loss from interest rate positions was a gain of HK$78,000
(2008: a gain of HKS$12,000) with a standard deviation of HK$ 1,190,000
(2008: HK$520,000).

Sensitivity analysis on interest rate exposures

The Group measures the interest rate risk of the banking book by
conducting sensitivity analysis on interest rate exposure on a quarterly
basis. In the sensitivity analysis, the potential impacts of movements
ininterest rates on the Group’s earning are assessed assuming
that the interest rates of two major currencies (HKD and USD) will
rise by 200 basis points in the repricing dates (mid-point of the
corresponding time bands) of each assets and liabilities. The impacts
on both on- and off-statement of financial position items are included
in the assessment.

rEE
The Group
—2ThE “E2E)\F
2009 2008
B Ex B W
HERBYE T Equivalent in HK$'000 HKD usD HKD usb
fin F 2= _EFF200 62 24 Impact on earings over the next 12 months
RERNEANBNZE if interest rates rise by 200 basis points 171,498 (136,189) (1,658) (117,067)
fis ¥ 2= _E FH200EEL 2 4 Impact on economic value if interest rates
KEEENTE rise by 200 basis points 46,123 35,762 52,734 77,308

—ETREFH |15
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42. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(b) Market risk management (cont’d)

FIZEfE (4 Interest rate risk (cont'd)
X5 )
The Bank
ZEBEBAF —ETN\F
2009 2008
B Y et e

HEREBBT T Equivalent in HK$'000 HKD usb HKD UsD
HFR _F 200 EH 24 Impact on earnings over the next 12 months

RERNEANAEFIFE if interest rates rise by 200 basis points 123,448 (137,114) (44,201) (113,447)
i F& 200 EE 2% Impact on economic value if interest rates

KEBENYE rise by 200 basis points 68,242 71,617 70,898 76,384
ZHRE D S = is sensitivity analysis, which is based on an interest rate risk profile

ZERESTERRRARERB N - KB Th | hich is based k profil

BEMBEBENONEXRARERIEL - BF

/'\

7 of assets and liabilities, is used for risk management purposes only.
T THARIR LA SR ERHET T The analysis is based on the following assumptions:
() W R ahig &A= LR FT5E (i) thereis a parallel shift in the yield curve and in interest rates;
(i) HEWEEMES) (i) there are no other changes to the portfolio;
(iif) Tﬁx?&/ﬁﬁkig ER AREBHER (i) no loan prepayment is assumed as the majority of loans is on
BRZBEER & floating rate base; and

(iv)

B o

N

A R 8 T BB AR BF N B R A
BB E DT EAERA

]

{E{EE’J B PR
BEB PR o

RERITERERA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

BRREBEEINHENFANZABE

deposits without fixed maturity dates are assumed to be repriced
on the next day.

Actual changes in the Group's net interest income and the economic
value resulting from the increase in interest rates may differ from the
results of this sensitivity analysis.
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42. &R E PR ETE (4) 42. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)
(b) MiEZEEE(E)
FiIZE [z (&
TRETREEANGFEEERABENTE
HTEETEXBH(IEA - UREE

(b) Market risk management (cont’d)
Interest rate risk (cont’d)
The following tables indicate the mismatches of the expected next
repricing dates (or maturity dates whichever are earlier) for the interest

BAE) 28R - bearing assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period.
FE&EH
The Group
“EENE
2009
AR
(B#EaE) AL 1E0E
3 months 2E B5E FitE
orless Over Over SELNE Non-
@%  (including 3months  1yearto Over interest
Total  overdue)  to1year 5 years 5 years bearing
BETT B¥Tr BTz #B%¥Trn B%Tr B¥%Tx
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
&E Assets
BERERT PRFTR Cashand balances with banks, central
Hit e RIlEN LT banks and other financial institutions 6,898,339 6,738,952 - - - 159,387
TEIRTT » PRIBITR Placements with and advances to banks,
HitspiEe central banks and
T kBHk other financial institutions 15,562,509 12,503,746 3,058,763 - - -
EVESE Trade bills 1,028,616 851,257 177,359 - - -
CHEREE Trading assets 1,783,875 - - - - 1,783,875
18 AiRiBERE R Y Securities designated at fair value
AR EENER through profit or loss 580,636 147,658 63711 316,319 11,387 41,561
ZEEETRAT R Loans and advances to customers and
HiviRIE other accounts 73,041,353 68535426 2,644,530 244,410 7,840 1,609,147
AN EES Available-for-sale securities 20,073,727 7,771,320 5510147 6,078,272 - 713,988
FtREE Non-interest bearing assets 1,153,730 - - - - 1,153,730
BEAE Total assets 120,122,785 96,548,359 11,454,510 6,639,001 19,227 5,461,688
fafE Liabilities
FITREMEREREN Deposits and balances of banks and
BRRER other financial institutions 2,794,355 2,453,705 177,358 - - 163,292
LYSYES Deposits from customers 94,240,980 82,540,590 8,591,242 35,645 - 3,073,503
XoHATARE Trading liabilities 1,108,009 - - - - 1,108,009
BRIFAE Certificates of deposit issued 3,693,598 3,122,175 249,931 321,492 - -
BETERES Debt securities issued 71,800 - 71,800 - - -
EBER Loan capital 3916017 1,938,661 - 1,977,356 - -
FitERE Non-interest bearing liabilities 2,067,319 - - - - 2,067,319
aEam Total liabilities 107,892,078 90,055,131 9,090,331 2,334,493 - 6412123
FEHBEZE Interest rate sensitivity gap 6,493,228 2,364,179 4,304,508 19,227
—ETRAEER |16
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42. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(b) Market risk management (cont’d)

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

FIZEfE (4 Interest rate risk (cont’d)
A5E
The Group
“TENE
2008
(AR
(RHEBE) EANUE  1FNMLE
3months ENE:S B5F B
or less Over Over SEPLE Non-
@%  (ncluding 3 months 1yearto Over interest
Total overdue) to 1 year 5 years 5 years bearing
AETT BETr A%t A%Tn AETr A%
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
&E Assets
BeRAEHT  PRIFTR  Cashand balances with banks, central
Hip & Rk n 4T banks and other financial institutions 10,754,122 9,626,267 - - - 1127855
TESRIT « RREBITR Placements with and advances to banks,
Hith & B central banks and
BREBH other financial institutions 10473951 9812254 429199 232,498 - -
EUES Trade bills 816,069 695,822 101,839 - - 18408
RHAGEE Trading assets 2,065,746 - - - - 2065746
EEABBREARY Securities designated at fair value
AREENES through profit or loss 521,834 - 16,903 498,111 - 6,820
EEETRBTR Loans and advances to customers and
HiBRIE other accounts 75183429 67042300 4554478 405,39 9701 3171545
At EES Available-for-sale securities 20683453 8609589 5390947 5270961 681,271 730,685
FIHEBE Non-interest bearing assets 1311226 - - - - 1311226
BEAR Total assets 121809830 95786241 10493366 6406966 690972 8432285
af Liabilities
RITREM S BIEER Deposits and balances of banks and
BRRER other financial institutions 927337 508,680 222499 - - 196,158
BEER Deposits from customers 95332338 88336667 4032448 472,501 - 1,990,722
XHMARaRE Trading liabilities 1,385,886 - - - - 1385886
BRITEHE Certificates of deposit issued 4121408 3080402 961,143 79,863 - -
ERITEBES Debt securities issued 2,333,727 20800 2312927 - - -
BEBEAR Loan capital 3927221 1937504 - 1989717 - -
FitEEE Non-interest bearing liabilities 4,250,975 - - - - 4250975
aRAR Total liabilities 112278892 94384053 7529017 2542081 - 7823741
ARgBEEE Interest rate sensitivity gap 1402,188 2964349 3,864,885 690972
PSR AT R PR A A
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42. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(b) MiEZEEE(E) (b) Market risk management (cont’d)

FlF 7 2 (& Interest rate risk (cont'd)
A7
The Bank
“EEBNE
2009
AR
(B#EaH) EAULE  1ELLE
3 months S B55F 395,
orless Over Over S5ELLE Non-
#@%  (including 3months  1yearto Over interest
Total  overdue)  to1year 5 years 5 years bearing
BETT BT B¥Tr B¥ETr B¥Tr  BE¥Tx
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
&E Assets
e REHT PRIBTR Cashand balances with banks, central
Hit e RIlEN LT banks and other financial institutions 5,944,423 5,785,347 - - - 159,076
TESRAT - PRIBIT R Placements with and advances to banks,
Hith & RgEr central banks and other financial
FRRBH institutions 14,206,596 11,323,873 2,882,723 - - -
EUES S Trade bills 1,028,616 851,257 177,359 - - -
LHRBEE Trading assets 1,781,727 - - - - 1,781,727
1B AiRiBERE R Y Securities designated at fair value
DAEENES through profit or loss 580,636 147,658 63,711 316,319 11,387 41,561
ZEERRBTR Loans and advances to customers and
HAiETR other accounts 64,767,117 60,432,553 2,572,991 244,410 7,840 1,509,323
At HEES Available-for-sale securities 20,073,727 7,771,320 5,510,147 6,078,272 - 713,988
L CRIEUNGIE ¢ Amount due from subsidiaries 6,601,437 3,114,183 2,541,822 - - 945432
FEtRAE Non-interest bearing assets 2,374,875 - - - - 2374875
EEAR Total assets 117,359,154 89,426,191 13,748,753 6,639,001 19,227 7,525,982
af Liabilities
BTN EMSREEN Deposits and balances of banks and
BRRER other financial institutions 2,639,253 2,453,705 22,256 - - 163,292
BFEEH Deposits from customers 92,047,445 80,732,899 8,240,304 739 - 3,073,503
RHBEaE Trading liabilities 1,107,049 - - - - 1,107,049
BEITENE Certificates of deposit issued 3,693,598 3,122,175 249,931 321,492 - -
BETERES Debt securities issued - - - - - -
BEHEAR Loan capital 1,938,661 1,938,661 - - - -
FERSHTE A RIFUR Amount due to subsidiaries 2,371,533 123,653 1,665 1,938,661 - 307,554
FRAR Non-interest bearing liabilities 1,755,440 - - - - 1,755,440
BRAE Total liabilities 105,552,979 88,371,093 8,514,156 2,260,892 - 6,406,838
MRgBEEE Interest rate sensitivity gap 1,055,098 5234597 4,378,109 19,227
—ETRFFH |163
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42. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(b) Market risk management (cont’d)

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

FIEE e (4 Interest rate risk (cont'd)
K17
The Bank
ZETNF
2008
3EAN
(BiEad) 3EANLE 1FNE
3months 5 B5F ETp)
or less Over Over SEPLE Non-
@ (ncluding 3 months 1yearto Over interest
Total overdue) to 1year 5 years 5 years bearing
BETT  AETr A%t B¥%Tr AT A%
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
&E Assets
BERERT PREFTR Cashand balances with banks, central
Hit S RMENER banks and other financial institutions 10488291 9,626,267 - - - 862,024
TEIRTT » PRIBITR Placements with and advances to banks,
Hin& ptEe central banks and other financial
BRRBR institutions 10239534 9678586 328450 232498 - -
EUES Trade bills 816,069 695,822 101,839 - - 18,408
RHORBEE Trading assets 2,062,967 - - - - 2062967
EERBRABRARE Securities designated at fair value
AREENES through profit or loss 521,834 - 16,903 498,111 - 6,820
RPEZRBTR Loans and advances to customers and
HiBRIE other accounts 67425537 60256043 3719453 405,248 9701 3035092
A HEES Available-for-sale securities 20683453 8609589 5390947 5270961 681,271 730,685
L =YNGE Amount due from subsidiaries 5588811 2787803 2,500,101 - - 300907
FHEtBEE Non-interest bearing assets 2,531,584 - - - - 2531584
EEAR Total assets 120358080 91,654110 12057693 6406818 690972 9548487
=1 Liabilities
RITREM S BIEER Deposits and balances of banks and
FRRER other financial institutions 815,820 474,662 145,000 - - 196,158
BPER Deposits from customers 94289,144 88470346  3:817,909 10,167 - 1990722
LHRBERE Trading liabilities 1,381,384 - - - - 1381884
ERETEHRE Certificates of deposit issued 4121408 3080402 961,143 79,863 - -
BRETEBES Debt securities issued 2,312,927 - 2312977 - - -
BEBEAR Loan capital 1937504 1937504 - - - -
FENRBARIE Amount due to subsidiaries 2292317 84,058 1651 1937504 - 269,104
FtEAE Non-interest bearing liabilities 3,955,931 - - - - 3955931
EME Total liabilities 111106935 94046972 7238630 2027534 - 7793799
MRgBEEE Interest rate sensitivity gap (2392862) 4819063  4379,284 690972
PSR AT R PR A A



B TSR M

R cHEMEE(E)

(c)

REBESERERE
RBETRRIIEARNEE TR EAERMIE
E AN B ER Nk BT R B E IS 6
AR AR 2 BRHER o

MBETRARERERBRE

- AKREMRBECRARERE DX
EEARAAZEELRAREERES®
ZENRBE SRR EIERREE

- FELEREEZESEEESRE
AEEEARENRBECRRER
HE 28 FAENE RIZBER - $IE
BRAE - SUE RBRER A Ko AT E ALK
FRREE o

- BENMABZESRGEERAREESR
BEgRE ARRERAITEE K
B - 35S RIRERIRE o WM - MR RH
Bl - FFEREBERBE IR - AHER
EREMBEENERZESZHK - WKE
EE e EHETIER T KB
VTHEERBBEZESEMN - R F
RPEMTELT —EETREAE
YHEENBEZS ST ML
% o

— BAERDELEBRATAFELET
Wiz ZHREREEEESTRK - A
MEZSeEREL R BRABE
TRBREIRNEEFABBIIT ©

RBESEERAKEER - RITEME
BT RH B AR R ETT - BEH B
NEIRBINDITERREERAGELZES
RIMZERNEMEERE 2 ZK - $117
HRPHESEERRK - BEMABZES®
NEe—HEZERBESBER - BRRHE
B2 TBINDITRMBAR » REBETTR
URZEHFRE - BBREFRA - BEF
RITEE BBHAFINSEREY I ER
REFOBER - AEBHESFZEFIROH D
EIRITEBEIRIT R TERENKT - A
BIEEREDES °

Notes to the Financial Statements

42. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(c) Liquidity risk management
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may not be able to fund
an increase in assets or meet obligations as they fall due without
incurring unacceptable losses.

The liquidity risk management framework comprises the followings:

- The management of the Group's liquidity risk is governed by
the Liquidity Management Policy, endorsed by the Financial
Management Division and approved by the CRMC.

- The CRMC is delegated by the Board of Directors to oversee the
Group's liquidity risk management. Its main responsibilities are
to review and approve policies, set strategies, and define risk
appetite and tolerance limits.

- The ALCO, delegated by the CRMC, is the governing body
responsible for formulating and implementing policies, strategies,
guidelines and limit structure. It also identifies, measures and
monitors liquidity profile to ensure current and future funding
requirements are met. Scenario analysis and stress testing will
be worked out by Financial Management Division and reviewed
by ALCO on regular basis. A Contingency Funding Plan, which is
also developed by Central Treasury, is reviewed and approved by
ALCO on regular basis.

- Daily liquidity management is managed by Central Treasury,
within the limit approved, to monitor funding requirement.
Internal Audit Department performs periodic reviews to ensure
liquidity risk management functions are carried out effectively.

Liquidity management is conducted on Group level, bank level,
individual overseas branches and subsidiaries. Financial subsidiaries
and overseas branches are responsible for implementing their own
liquidity management policies under the framework established by
ALCO and local regulatory requirements. Their liquidity situation
would also be monitored as a whole by the ALCO. Counterparty
limits are set for overseas branches and subsidiaries in respect of the
funding support extended to them. The Group expects all business
units to contribute to the success of managing liquidity under normal
and contingency situations by maintaining a rapport with depositors,
customers, interbank counterparties, related companies and the
HKMA.

—EENEER
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(c)

Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

Liquidity risk management (cont’d)

The objective of liquidity management is to meet obligations payable
under normal and emergency circumstances, to fund asset growth
and to comply with statutory liquidity ratio. To achieve this, the
following liquidity management processes are in place:

- Projecting cash flows under normal and various stress scenarios,
using the net mismatch gap between assets and liabilities to
estimate the prospective net funding requirement;

- Monitoring statement of financial position liquidity and advances
to deposit ratios against internal and regulatory requirements;

- Ensuring sound and diversified range of funding sources, through
monitoring the structure, the stability and the core level of the
deposit portfolio;

- Projecting liquidity ratio for short to medium term to permit
early detection of liquidity issues and ensure the ratio is within
statutory requirement and internal trigger;

- Projecting high level funding requirement and funding structure
during annual budget process to ensure sufficient funding and
appropriate funding mix;

- Conducting risk assessment which includes liquidity risk before
launching new business initiatives;

- Maintaining high quality liquid assets comprising cash and
investment grade securities, as cushion against unexpected
funding needs. Standby facilities are also arranged to provide
unexpected and material outflows;

- Maintaining access to interbank money market to activate
facilities;

- Maintaining debt financing plan; and

- Maintaining proper contingency plan, which includes setting
early warning signals (including internal and market indicators)
and describe actions to be taken in the event of stress crisis, so as
to minimise adverse long-term implications for business.
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42. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

() RBESREREE(H)

(c) Liquidity risk management (cont’d)
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The Group funds its operations through a diversified funding source
primarily from our core retail and corporate customer deposits. At
the same time, it also participates in wholesale funding through the
issuances of HKD and USD certificates of deposit ("CDs”") so as to
secure a stable source of term funding. As at 31 December 2009, a
total of HKS 3.38 billion equivalent (2008: HK$3.91 billion) was raised
through several successful CD issuances. Deposit tenor mix and debt
maturities are regularly monitored to ensure an appropriate funding
maturity mix.

An appropriate level of liquidity ratio was always maintained to ensure
that the Group could handle sudden drains in market liquidity due
to adverse or unexpected economic events. In 2009, the Group's
average liquidity ratio was 48.8% (2008: 37.0%). The Group holds
a portfolio of high-grade securities with short maturities which
can generate liquidity if necessary either through the re-purchase
arrangements or out-right selling in the secondary market.

The Group has always maintained sufficient cash and liquid position
as well as a pool of high quality assets as liquidity cushion that can be
liquidated in the event of emergency.

(i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity
The following maturity profile is based on the remaining period at
the end of the reporting period date to the contractual maturity
date.

As the trading portfolios may be sold before maturity or deposits
from customers may mature without being withdrawn, the
contractual maturity dates do not represent expected dates of
future cash flows.
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42. &R E PR ETE (4) 42. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)
() REBELRBREE(E) (c) Liquidity risk management (cont’d)
(i) WRIZEFTRIREHIEER BESH () (i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (cont’d)
F5E
The Group
ZEENF
2009

WBAME 3EAME  1FRE

£3f8A E1f E5F

3 months 1year 5years

MEEE EAR orless o less orless  SEHL

4%  Repayable Within ~ butover  butover  butover Over #E:TERHH
Total ondemand  Tmonth ~ Tmonth  3months 1year Syears  Undated
BRTn BRTr BETr BETT BETT BETz  BETn  E¥Tx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

EE Assets
BERAERT P& Cashand balances with banks,

D EY kA central banks and other financial

WENET institutions 6,898,339 6,898,339 - - - - - -
TR RURITIR  Placements with and advances to

EtneRlEN banks, central banks and other

FHREH financial institutions 15,562,509 - 5507470 2493722 4624414 1,722,686 1,124,217 -
VRS Trade bill 1,028,616 - 278943 573262 176411 - - -
REREEE Trading assets 1,783,875 1,153,554 - - - 624,148 - 6,173
ETEARBBIERL  Securities designated at fair value

REALEBEMES  through profit or loss 580,636 - - - 63,711 475562 - 41,363
REBETRETR Loans and advances to customers

EthiRE and other accounts 73,041,353 1319957 1,947,060 5429507 11,238,492 32,234,900 19,203,257 1,668,180
AN EES Available-for-sale securities 20,073,727 - 1071505 4225478 5707930 7,278,883 1,689,139 100,792
A E B Tax recoverable 24,036 - - - 24,036 - - -
B ASEE Undated assets 1,129,694 - - - - - - 1,129,694
EEEE Total assets 120,122,785 9,371,850 8,894,978 12,721,969 21,834,994 42,336,179 22,016,613 2,946,202
af Liabilities
RITREMSEMELERN Deposits and balances of banks

BRkiER and other financial institutions 2,794,355 163,292 2,453,705 - 177,358 - - -
LS Deposits from custorers 94,240,980 40,779,186 25,172,680 14,237,694 12,985597 1,065,823 - -
REREEE Trading liabilities 1,108,009 1,108,009 - - - - - -
BEIERE Certificates of depositissued 3,693,598 - - 914981 2179676 598,941 - -
BRETEBES Debt securities issued 71,800 - - 71,800 - - - -
BHER Loan capital 3,916,017 - - - - 3916017 - -
RERE Current taxation 11,564 - - - 11,564 - - -
V=L Other liabilities 2,054,037 - 16,377 - - - - 2,037,660
EIRENAE Undated liabilities 1,718 - - - - - - 1,718
BEEE Total liabilities 107,892,078 42,050,487 27,642,762 15224475 15,354,195 5,580,781 - 2,039,378
EE-BEEE Asset - liability gap (32,678,637) (18,747,784) (2,502,506) 6,480,799 36,755,398 22,016,613
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42. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(c) Liquidity risk management (cont’d)
(i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (cont'd)

REERALT
The Group and the Bank
“BENE
2009
WEARL 3MEAME 1EHME
E38R LY E:S B5%
3 months 1year 5years
MEsEE  EAR orless orless orless  SEME
#%  Repayable Within ~ butover  butover  butover Over E:IHHAH
Total ondemand  Tmonth ~ Tmonth 3 months 1year Syears  Undated
BETT BETr BT BT AT AT BTn  B¥Trx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Hep: Of which:
BENGNE Certificates of deposit held
~BEAT# - included in available-for-sale
HEES securties 1,344,057 - - 893310 450747 - - -
ERES Debt securities
~BAARSBREE -included in trading assets 624,148 - - - - 624,148 - -
-BiAETA - included in securities
BBBEURE  designated at fair value through
NABENESE  pofitorloss 580,636 - - - 63711 475562 - 41,363
—BEAT# - included in available-for-sale
LEEH securities 17,741,780 - 263,759 3,251,601 5257183 7,2783883 1,689,139 1,215
18,946,564 - 263,759 3,251,601 5320894 8378593 1,689,139 42,578
EROERE Certificates of deposit issued
—-BitAERZBEE  -included in non-trading debt
BENERESR  securtiesissued 3,693,598 - - 914981 2179676 598,941 - -
—EENFER
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42. &R E PR ETE (4) 42. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)
() REBELSRMEE(E) (c) Liquidity risk management (cont’d)
(i) 1RIZEATEIEH N EER BESHT (&) (i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (cont’d)
T5E
The Group
—TIN\F
2008

WMEAME 3EALE  1EME
=38R RE B

3months 1 year 5years
MsEE  EAR or less orless orless  SEBE
% Repayable Within -~ butover  butover — butover Over EFHAH
Total  ondemand 1 month Imonth  3months 1 year Syears  Undated

A%t AETL  ERTT BT A%t ARTR ARTR  ERTx
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000

BE Assets
BERAERIT P& Cashand balances with banks,

ROREMER central banks and other financial

BENER institutions 10754122 10754122
T84T BRBITR  Placements with and advances to

Hih & Bz banks, central banks and other

FRREH financial institutions 10473951 S S57041 53751 930899 1594654 1,886,606 -
EUES Trade bills 816,069 - 50814 436246 103343 - - 25,666
RGREEE Trading assets 2065746 1438090 - - - 619782 - 7874
ETARBERARE Securities designated at fair value

A EENES through profit or loss 521834 - - - 16,904 504,930 - -
EEERRBHE  Loansand advances to customers

EthERA and other accounts 75183429 2121819 3744429 6501410 12159969 29220568 18468563 2966671
AR ERS Available-for-sale securities 20,683453 - 1774172 5463835 5316979 6036518 1999179 92,770
AEUEE Tax recoverable 167267 - - - 167,067 - - -
BHARNEE Undated assets 1,143959 - - - - - 1143959
EEEH Total assets 121809830 14314031 11296456 12936242 18695361 37976452 22354348 4236940
8 Liabilities
ROIREMEREIER Deposits and balances of banks

FARER andotherfinancial institutions 927337 196,158 234589 240073 256517 - - -
RPEGEH Deposits from custorers 95332338 21193462 48119602 15208771 10027553 692,950 - -
RHARER Trading liabilities 138588 1385886 - - - - - -
BETERE Certificates of deposit issted 4121408 - - - 3309352 812056 - -
BRTEBES Debt securities issted 2333727 - 20800 - 2312927 - - -
BBRER Loan capital 3927221 - - - 39722 - -
KHFIE Current taxation 10,128 - - - 10,128 - - -
BB Other liabilities 4239497 - 44073 - - - - 181524
EARANER Undated liabilities 1350 - - - - - - 1350
SREE Total liabilities 112278802 22775506 50799264 15538844 15916477 5432007 - 1816574
BE-8EE Asset - liability gap (8461475 (39502808)  (2602602) 2778884 32544205 22354348
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42. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(c) REBESREBERE(E) (c) Liquidity risk management (cont’d)
(i) RIZEF TERIEHIEER BEDHT (& (i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (cont'd)
REERAST
The Group and the Bank
—EENE
2008

EAME 3EAME 1L
F3EA kS Z5F

3months Tyear 5 years
MsEE  EAR or less orless orless  SEBLE
@5 Repayable Within ~ butover ~ butover  butover Over ZHARAH
Total  ondemand 1 month Tmonth 3 months 1year Syears  Undated

AT AETT  ERTT BRTr A%t ARTn ARTT BRTx
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS00O

Hep: Of which:
BENGNE Certificates of deposit held
—BE AT - included in available-for-sale
MERH securities 200014 - - 200014 - - - .
EHES Debt securities
~BHARSEHEE - indudedin trading assets 619782 - - - - 619782 . .
—BitAKTEARSE - incudedin securities
BaARBAL designated at fair value
EENES through profit o loss 521,834 - - - 16904 504930 - -
—BE AT - included in available-for-sale
LEEA securities 19,219,141 - 600451 5,263,821 5316979 6,036,518 1,999,180 2192
20,360,757 - 600451 5,263,821 5333883 7,161,230 1,999,180 2192
BROERE Certificates of deposit issued
-BHAERZRE - induded innon-trading debt
BETREES securities issued 3623714 - - - 3309352 314362 - -
-DHAEEA®B - includedin financial iabilities
BRENREAS designated at fair value
BENEREE through profit o loss 497 694 - - - - 497694 - -
4121408 - - - 3309352 812,056 - -

—ETREER |17
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42. £EE PR ETE (M) 42. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)
(c) RBESREMRERE(E) (c) Liquidity risk management (cont’d)
(i) WHRIZEFTHIREHBEER BEST () (i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (cont’d)
&7
The Bank
ZEENF
2009

MERRLE 3EAME  1ENE
23f8A 2E Z5F

3months 1year 5years
EEE  EAR orless o less orless  SEHL
4%  Repayable Within ~ butover  butover  butover Over A
Total ondemand  Tmonth ~ Tmonth  3months 1year S5years  Undated
BETT BETn B¥%Tn B¥Tn B¥Tn  B¥Tn  B¥Tn  A¥Tx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BE Assets
BERAERT P& Cashand balances with banks,
BAREWSEEE  central banks and other financial
igpeYEa institutions 5944423 5,944,423 - - - - - -
R BRBTR  Placements with and advances to
HiSBIEENTZ  banks, central banks and other
R financial institutions 14,206,596 - 4627709 2436935 4295049 1,722,686 1,124,217 -
SRS Trade bill 1,028,616 - 278943 573262 176411 - - -
REREEE Trading assets 1,781,727 1,151,406 - - - 624148 - 6,173
BT ARBIBRIRE Securiies designated at fair value
AnEBERES through profit orloss 580,636 - - - 63711 475562 - 41,363
REETRETR Loans and advances to customers
Gk and other accounts 64,767,117 1319423 1,782,893 5209061 10,174,847 29,524,885 15215313 1,540,695
AEHEES Available-for-sale securities 20,073,727 - 1071505 4225478 5707930 7,278,883 1,689,139 100,792
JEWHBARZIE  Amount due from subsidiaries 6,601,437 - 296,117 1510379 347509 603,033 - 716812
A Tax recoverable 23,984 - - - 23,984 - - -
EARAPEE Undated assets 2,350,891 - - - - - - 2,350,891
EELE Total assets 117,359,154 8415252 8,057,167 13,955,115 23,917,028 40,229,197 18,028,669 4,756,726
=4 Liabilities
RITREMEEMLERN Deposits and balances of banks
FARER and other financial institutions 2,639,253 163,292 2,453,705 - 22,256 - - -
RPEH Deposits from custorners 92,047,445 40,205,664 24,144,668 14,031,537 12,634,659 1,030,917 - -
RSBEEE Trading liabilities 1,107,049 1,107,049 - - - - - -
BEIERE Certificates of deposit issued 3,693,508 - - 914981 2179676 598,941 - -
EBER Loan capital 1,938,661 - - - - 1,938,661 - -
FEMMBARZIE  Amount due to subsidiaries 2371533 131,041 126499 37,083 1665 1,938,660 - 136585
REHE Current taxation 3,052 - - - 3,052 - - -
AEE Other liabilities 1,752,380 - 16377 - - - - 1,736,003
EXFRAMAR Undated liabilities 8 - - - - - - 8
BfEEE Total liabilities 105,552,979 41,607,046 26,741,249 14,983,601 14,841,308 5,507,179 - 1,872,5%
BE-8BEE Asset - liability gap (33,191,794) (18,684,082) (1,028,486) 9,075,720 34,722,018 18,028,669
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42. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(c) Liquidity risk management (cont’d)
(i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (cont'd)

VG
The Bank

“FE\F
2008

WEALE 3MEARMLE  1FEME
=38R RE B

3months 1 year 5years
sEE AW or less orless orless  SEBLE
f5%  Repayable Within -~ butover  butover — butover Over EFHHH
Total  ondemand 1 month Imonth 3 months 1 year Syears  Undated
BETT  ABTr A¥Tr A¥Tr  A%Tr  AETT A% BBt
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BE Assets
BeRHERT PR Cashand balances with banks,
BIRAMSREE  central banksand other
igfeYea financial institutions 10488291 10,488,291 - - - - - -
7 mRRTR  Placements with and advances to
HitSBIEENES  banks central banks and other
PN financial institutions 10,239,534 - 5393373 534,751 830,150 1,594,654 1,886,606 -
EGE Trade bills 816,069 - 250814 436,246 103,343 - - 25,666
RHEgEE Trading assets 2062967 1435311 - - - 619,782 - 7874
HERBBERIARE Securties designated at fair value
R BENES through profit or loss 521,834 - - - 16904 504930 - -
REEZRBZR  Loansand advances to customers
HinlRE and other accounts 67425537 2121042 3,468,175 6,234707 10879555 26895638 14993215 2,833,205
A EEA Available-for-sale securities 20,683453 - 1774172 5463835 5316979 6,036,518 1,999,180 92,769
EUHBARZE Amount due from subsidiaries 55883811 - 161319 1,568,300 2919842 867,118 - 72232
A EWRE Tax recoverable 163773 - - - 163,773 - - -
EBARANEE Undated assets 2367811 - - - - - - 2367811
EEAH Total assets 120358080 14044644 11047853 14237839 20230546 36518640 18879001 5399557
8 Liabilities
RITREMAETMIER Deposits and balances of banks
BRRER andother financial institutions 815820 196,158 234589 240073 145000 - - -
EERER Deposits from customers 94289144 20827141 48010498 15193336 9565219 692,950 - -
RHERARE Trading liabilites 1381884 1381884 - - - - - -
BEIETE Certificates of deposit issued 4,121,408 - - - 3309352 812,056 - -
BRENERES Debt securities issued 2312927 - - - 231297 - - -
BHER Loan capital 1,937,504 - - - - 1937504 - -
JERMBARGE  Amount due to subsidiaries 2092317 132710 81,088 2971 1651 1937504 - 136393
AERE Current taxation 4958 - - - 4958 - - -
B Other liabilities 3950939 - 44073 - - - - 1526666
mIARHARE Undated liabilities 3 - - . . . . 3
lerit Total liabilities 11106935 22537893 50750448 15436380 15,339,107 5380014 - 1,663,093
EE-8EEE Asset - liability gap (8493249) (39702595)  (1,198541) 4891439 31138626 18879001
—EENEER
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42. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(c) Liquidity risk management (cont’d)
(ii) Analysis of the residual contractual maturities of financial

AT BRI ERERIR 0 4 R AN SR (B S AR 7T
MERBENRFAENSOZAZ
S THRESENRTRASRE -

liabilities

The following maturity profile shows the undiscounted cash

flows on the Group’s or the Bank’s financial liabilities on the basis

of their earliest possible contractual maturity.

E3
The Group
=L
2009
MEAMLE 3@EAML 1H5E
2388 EyE:2 B5%
ReRE 3 months 1year 5 years
By REE  1EAR or less or less orless  5ELE
Gross  Repayable Within but over but over but over Over
cash flows on demand 1 month Tmonth 3 months 1year 5years
B¥Tr BETr BETr #A%Tr #E%Tx BE¥Tz B¥Tx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BITREMER  Deposits and balances of
KENER banks and other financial
ki institutions 2,794,898 185548 2,431,652 - 177,698 - -
RPFER Deposits from customers 94,381,815 40,779,186 25,200,602 14,275,286 13,060,762 1,065,979 -
BETHENE Certificates of depositissued 3,763,026 - 1483 925038 2197459 639,046 -
BRITERES Debt securities issued 71,828 - 4 8 71,816 - -
BIFER Loan capital 4,524,597 - - 9,714 206,045 4,308,838 -
TEEBTIA Derivative financial instruments 1,571,345 - 42,987 75,383 587,935 865,040 -
107,107,509 40,964,734 27,676,728 15,285,429 16,301,715 6,878,903 -
HRERITEIRARA A

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED



BT ImA M

42.
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LEERREE(E) 42, Financial Risk Management (cont’d)
RBESREMEE(E) (c) Liquidity risk management (cont’d)
(i) TEEEFEERT (B (i) Analysis of the residual contractual maturities of financial
liabilities (cont’d)
A&E
The Group
“ETNE
2008
VEAME  3EANUE 155+
23MEA ZIF E5F
Beng 3months 1 year 5 years
eE FEEE 1EAR o less o less orless  SEME
Gross  Repayable Within but over but over but over Over
cashflows  ondemand 1 month Tmonth 3 months 1 year 5 years
ABETT  B¥Tr A%Tr B¥Tr AT B%Tr  A¥Tx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BITREMER  Deposits and balances of
BENTER banks and other financial
k&E institutions 934,092 196,158 234,704 241,549 261,681 - -
BERER Deposits from customers 95875227 21193462 48283716 15384058 10,320,289 693,702 -
BT Certificates of depositissued 4,201,357 - 13,686 13699 3,357,933 816,039 -
BERTERES Debt securities issued 2444628 - 20811 - 2423817 - -
ERER Loan capital 4880474 - - 18,642 232,724 4,629,108 -
TESBTA Derivative financial instruments 1,234,918 - 22,446 53,560 381,067 777,845 -
10957069 21389620 48575363 15711508 16977511 6,916,694 -
—ZETAFFR
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42. &R E PR ETE (4) 42. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)
(0 RBESEREE(E) (c) Liquidity risk management (cont'd)
(i) LHEETFIERERSH (&) (i) Analysis of the residual contractual maturities of financial
liabilities (cont'd)
X7
The Bank
“EERF
2009
WEARLE 3EANLE 1FHUE
£3f@8A E B5E
RenE 3 months 1year 5 years
wE  HREE 1EAR or less or less orless  SELE
Gross  Repayable Within but over but over but over Over
cash flows ondemand 1 month Tmonth 3 months 1year 5years

BT B®TR ERTR BERTR ERTR ERTn  ENTx
HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

BITREMSE  Deposits and balances of

BEMTFR banks and other financial

Lt institutions 2,639,781 185,548 2,431,652 - 22,581 - -
BFEHEX Deposits from customers 92,179,150 40,205,664 24,169,273 14,065,889 12,707,406 1,030,918 -
BETEAE Certificates of depositissued 3,763,026 - 1,483 925,038 2,197,459 639,046 -
EHER Loan capital 2,055,228 - - 9,714 29,142 2,016,372 -
THEERTIA Derivative financial instruments 1,571,345 - 42,987 75,383 587,935 865,040 -

FERBTBARIZIE  Amountduetosubsidiaries 2,765,698 131,041 126,514 37,086 178,591 2,292,466 -
104,974,228 40,522,253 26,771,909 15,113,110 15,723,114 6,843,842 -

K77
The Bank
—TENE
2008

MEAME 3EAME B3
23(EA E Z5E

Reng 3 months 1 year 5 years
wE  AREE  1fEAR or less orless orless  SELAE
Gross  Repayable Within but over but over but over Over
cashflows  ondemand 1 month Tmonth 3 months 1year 5 years

ARTT  BETT ARTT BT ARTT ARt ARTR
HKS000 ~ HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000

BITREMSRE  Deposits and balances of

BENTR banks and other financial

R#EF institutions 821762 196,158 234,704 241549 149,351 - -
BPER Deposits from customers 94645450 2082741 48173409 15278503 9,672,695 693,702 -
BETENE Certificates of deposit issued 4,201,357 - 13,686 13,699 3,357,933 816,039 -
BRTEEES  Debt securities issued 2423817 - - - 2423817 - -
EBRER Loan capital 2,235,782 - - 18,642 55927 2161213 -
TTESRTE Derivative financial instruments 1,234,918 - 22446 53,560 381,067 777 845 -
FERTHBARIZIE  Amount due to subsidiaries 2,756,065 132,710 81,089 2,974 1660 2537632 -

108319151 21,156009 48525334 15608927 16,042,450 6,986,431 -

176| RERITEBRBRAT
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42. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(d) ¥BRERBEE

(d) Operational risk management
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Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people and systems or from external events. It
is present in virtually all the Group's transactions and activities. The
objective of operational risk management is to ensure that operational
risk arising therefrom is consistently and comprehensively identified,
assessed, mitigated, controlled, monitored and reported.

At the Group, the authority for operational risk oversight is delegated
by the Board of Directors to the CRMC. The Group's operational risk
management framework is approved and reviewed periodically and
the Group's senior management is responsible for implementing the
framewaork.

The primary responsibility for the day-to-day management of current,
new and emerging operational risks lies with the line management
of the functional units where the risk arises. This is supported by the
independent Operational Risk Unit within the RMG, which designs
and implements the operational risk management methodology
tools.

The Group currently manages its operational risks through a number
of ways:

- The Group's Operational Risk Management Policy, which
includes the operational risk management framework, has been
established and approved.

- Various operational risk tools, such as self-assessment exercises,
key risk indicators and incident reporting, for assisting the

MEBINRE - L/{Tﬁ%ﬂj] EpF9EE - M functional units in identifying, assessing and reporting operational
KERERRIER R risks, have been developed and are being rolled out.
— A —%'5\]@(” R REREEEERN - Material operational risk exposures are managed through a
EERIER R framework of policies, procedures, and processes.

— HEANERBRMAITTER - AFRE
BT IR S8 TETT R INASE -
I BRER B THRA PR M EEMEF -

- Human resources policies and practices are established to define
and encourage proper staff behavior, and to ensure that staff are
qualified and trained for their jobs.
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(d) ¥HRERBEE(H)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(d) Operational risk management (cont’d)

- New products and services are evaluated by various functional
units before they are approved by the Group’s senior
management to ensure that staff, processes, and technology can
adequately support prior to launching.

- Disaster recovery and business continuity plans are set up and
tested annually for major events such as loss of operating site and
major failure of data centre caused by fire or other events. The
Group Run Drill for sudden and massive customer withdrawal
due to market rumours or other reasons is tested bi-annually.

- The examination and evaluation of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Group's internal control system is independently conducted
by the Audit Department on an on-going basis. The audits
cover all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls as well as risk management functions.

The Group is, however, in the process of fine-tuning its operational
risk management framework, with the guidance from its strategic
shareholder Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A. ("BBVA"), by virtue
of a tripartite agreement amongst the Group, CITIC Bank and BBVA.
The new model will assist the Group to further improve its ability in
identifying and quantifying operational risk, monitor how operational
risk is evolving and set up alert signals, record the historical loss data
and sub-divide all the operational risks into the seven risk categories
promoted under Basel Il.

The aforesaid tools are expected to enable the Group to migrate,
on a progressive basis, from the current Basic Indicator Approach to
the Standardised Approach and eventually Advanced Measurement
Approach and benefit from a reduction in regulatory capital in the
future.
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42. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(e) EXEE (e) Capital management
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The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are as follows:

- To comply with the capital requirements set by the banking
regulators in the markets where the entities within the Group
operate;

- To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of
its business; and

- To safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders.

The HKMA sets and monitors capital requirements for the Group
as a whole. An individual banking subsidiary is directly regulated
by its local banking supervisor. In implementing current capital
requirements the HKMA requires the Group to maintain a prescribed
ratio of total capital to total risk-weighted assets. The Group adopts
the standardised approach to calculate market risk in its trading
portfolios, risk weightings for credit risk and basic indicator approach
for operational risk. Banking operations are categorised as either
trading or banking book, and risk-weighted assets are determined
according to specified requirements that seek to reflect the varying
levels of risk attached to assets and off-statement of financial position
exposures.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might otherwise be possible with greater gearing and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

BRITEEBEME  AEBUEXRT R Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
REBFEHZRERE  MREARN - KEBR structure on the basis of the capital adequacy ratio and there have
BERBERRITEENE been no material changes in the Group’s policy on the management

of capital during the year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(e) Capital management (cont’d)

(f)

The capital adequacy ratios as at 31 December 2009 are computed on
the consolidated basis of the Bank and certain subsidiaries as specified
by the HKMA for its regulatory purposes, and are in accordance with
the Banking (Capital) Rules of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

The Group and its individually regulated operations have complied
with all externally imposed capital requirements throughout the year
ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 and is well above the minimum
required ratio set by the HKMA.

Legal risk management

The Group remains abreast of all legal and regulatory requirements
applicable to its governance and operations, and continuously
seeks to develop its people, to enhance its systems and processes
to create awareness and to implement necessary change. Policies
and procedures remain under constant review. Continuous training
of our people in the areas of the Group's policies and procedures as
well as applicable laws, rules and regulations remained key to the
management of the Group’s legal risks in 2009, as in previous years,
and will continue to be vital in 2010.

The Group's Legal and Compliance Department ("LCD") has been a
key partner in the business, providing legal and compliance advice
and support to all parts of the Group. In 2009, LCD was actively
involved in launching new products and new business, strategically
important transactions and commercial agreements, outsourcing
arrangement as well as day-to-day matters arising from the business
that is diverse both geographically and in scope.
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42. Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

() REMRBERRER

(g) Strategic and reputational risks management

RIEERREERREAEEREY - X
Fr R B1TE B RIS R R ER AR ER
ERHNE N - BERREERNRE A
SEBNREE MM R EFEEE RIS
BEBEARITREEN  TRIMBIRANE
HAFBEFIERMNERERE -

AEEMEEMRBREREZE S EHHA
g ERNEEASENREMEREBER
S REBSAEEEBRBEMERELMHE
REEZZHIERBITEBMEERE - I
NEEFEREEHEREET o ILER
2 E R VE A 5 DA AN 52 (B B B TN T b
MEEREERBRPIE - KEBEIR
MEBEMAEBE  ER—Lagsk
Be A S5 AN B SR IS A M Bl 3 75 S Bk pE B
i - AJEIEE T 5 KR TR B AT
RETZNIT - AKBENFEBHERER
SEMNBERIEREREREEERAM
w o WRERERNEEREREPHR
EE CEEBENRE  AARREETNER
M EBEARNBRREMRHNEES @A
R RIKE o

Strategic risk management refers to the Group's efforts to develop,
uphold and implement strategic decisions related to its long-term
growth and development. Reputational risk management refers to
the Group's efforts to protect its brand name and business franchise
from any potential damages arising from negative publicity about its
business practices, conduct or financial condition.

The CRMC of the Group meets regularly to monitor and oversee
the Group's strategic and reputational risks. High priority is placed
by senior management to ensure that the Group's business and
operational strategies are appropriately defined and executed in a
professional and time-relevant manner. Such strategies are reviewed
on a regular basis to enable the Group to make timely responses
to changes in its operating and regulatory environment. Business
priorities are set on a bank-wide basis as well as for individual business
and functional units which are clearly aligned to support the Group's
strategies, and measurable targets are assigned to ensure executional
excellence. Great care is also taken to protect the Group's reputation
and to maximise its brand equity. This involves on-going efforts
to monitor and ensure high standards in customer satisfaction,
operational efficiencies, legal and regulatory compliance, public
communications and issues management, etc.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

43. Fair Value Information

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are made as
of a specific point in time based on the characteristics of the financial
instruments and relevant market information. The Group measures
fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market price in active markets for
identical instruments.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either
directly or indirectly where all significant inputs are observable from
market data. This category includes financial instruments with quoted
prices in active markets for similar instruments; or quoted prices in
markets that are considered less than active for identical or similar
instruments.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs
where the valuation techniques include one or more significant
inputs are unobservable. This category includes financial instruments
that are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments where
significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to
reflect differences between the instruments.



B sR R 5T Notes to the Financial Statements

43. P REEER(E) 43. Fair Value Information (cont’d)

(@) AAREEIIENSRMTA(E) (a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (cont’d)
TREUNAABENENERTAEKRES The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments
BAREBEERDE recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy into which the

fair value treatment is categorised:

pix- | KT
The Group The Bank
“EENE “EENE
2009 2009
218 EpE E38 ag EAE 228 38 o
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

A%Tn EMTn BRI RRTR ENTn B%Tn ERTn E%TR
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

BE Assets
RGPREE Trading assets
—~EBER - Debt securities - 624,148 - 624,148 - 624,148 - 62448
N Fatins - Equity securities 2,567 - - 2,567 2,567 - - 2,567
-REES - Investment funds - - 3,606 3,606 - - 3,606 3,606
—TETEAR — Positive fair values
ERREE of derivative 39,104 1,114,112 338 1,153,554 39104 1,111,964 338 1,151,406
41,671 1,738,260 3944 1,783,875 41,671 1,736,112 3944 1,781,727
BERBRERN Securities designated at fair value
RMALEENES  thoughprofitor loss
~EB#ES - Debt securities 539,074 - 41562 580,636 539,074 - 41562 580,636
RHEES Available-for-sale securities
-BENERE ~ Certficate of deposit held - 1,344,057 - 1,344,057 - 1,344,057 - 1,344,057
—BlE5 (P HEIMNE - Treasury bills (including
H5ER) Exchange Fund Bills 888,313 - - 888313 888313 - - 888313
~EBES - Debt securities 3855426 13271936 614418 17,741,780 3855426 13,271,936 614418 17,741,780
-ERER - Equity securities 20,047 - 23,197 43,244 20,047 - 23,197 43,244
~HEES - Investment funds - - 56,333 56,333 - - 56,333 56,333
4763786 14615993 693,948 20,073,727 4,763,786 14615993 693,948 20,073,727
5344531 16354253 739454 22438238 5344531 16,352,105 739454 22,436,090
8f Liabilities
RHEGEE Trading liabilities
—{TETER - Negative fair value
BRAEE of derivatives 1,700 1,105,971 338 1,108,009 1,700 1,105,011 338 1,107,049
RAER  ARBERRKEIVBNE2HR 2 During the year there were no significant transfers of financial
IS BEAN RN BMNER - instruments between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

—ETHEFH [183
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(a) UAARBEIIKNEMTA(E)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

43, Fair Value Information (cont’d)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (cont’d)

Determination of fair value

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities that are traded
in active markets are based on quoted market prices or dealer price
quotations. For all other financial instruments the Group determines
fair values using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques
include net present value and discounted cash flow models and
other valuation models. Assumptions and inputs used in valuation
techniques include risk-free and benchmark interest rates, credit
spreads and other parameters used in estimating discount rates, bond
price and foreign currency exchange rates.

The most common valuation techniques applied by the Group
to determine fair value of financial instruments are from interest
rates and currency swaps, which are observable market data with
high reliability and do not require a significant involvement of
management judgement and estimation required. Observable prices
and model inputs are usually available in the market for listed debt
and equity securities, exchange traded derivatives and simple over-
the-counter (OTC) derivatives like interest rate swaps. However, the
availability of observable market prices and inputs varies depending
on the products and markets and is prone to changes based on
specific events and general conditions in the financial markets.

Certain financial instruments need to be employed with valuation
techniques where one or more significant market inputs involved
are not observable and example of these financial instruments
include structured investments such as Farmington investment,
OTC structured derivatives and certain securities for which there is
no active market. For valuation models involved with significant
unobservable inputs, a high degree of management judgement
or estimation is required for selection of the appropriate valuation
model, determination of expected future cash flows on the
financial instruments being valued, determination of probability of
counterparty default and prepayments and selection of appropriate
discount rates. In particular, the valuation models for the Farmington
capital note have employed a number of underlying assumptions to
prepare the future expected cash flows in order to best estimate its
fair value.
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(a) UAARBEIIKNEMTA(E)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

43, Fair Value Information (cont’d)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (cont’d)

Determination of fair value in Farmington investment

The valuation of Farmington capital note is based on its discounted
net present value of its projected cashflows in respect of the Bank’s
remaining unamortised principal balance. The major assumptions
are considered to be consistent with a baseline economic forecast
of modest recovery in 2010, some degree of further housing market
weakness, and continued low short-term interest rate throughout the
majority of the year 2010.

The cashflow estimate is based on the cumulative undiscounted
cashflows accrued to the Bank as a capital noteholder, discounted
based on the 200-day moving average ten-year USD swap rate. Key
assumptions on cashflow include:

- the level of projected future collaterals defaults, based upon
a line-by-line review undertaken by the Investment Manager,
updated on a monthly basis, and assumed to be US$51.25 million
distributed as to 50% in the year 2010, and 50% thereafter;

- the rate of collateral prepayments, which is based on recently
observed averages by broad collateral type, and currently
averaging a CPR of 11.88%; and

- the level of future interest rates, which has an impact (broadly
offsetting) on the rate of interest accruing on collateral assets,
and the interest rate on Farmington’s Senior Debt liabilities.

As a consequence of the fact that a number of the above represent
unobservable inputs (i.e. they are assumptions or subjective inputs),
for purpose of valuation the capital notes are classified as Level 3
category.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

43, Fair Value Information (cont’d)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (cont’d)

(i) Valuation of financial instruments with significant unobservable

inputs

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening to
the closing balances for fair value measurements in Level 3 of the

fair value hierarchy:

FRERAST
The Group and the Bank
BRMURBR
DREENES
Securities designated
at fair value
RHRREE through ARHESRER g
Trading assets profit or loss Available-for-sale financial assets Total
fTETARM
EARER
REESE  Positivefar  EHEH BEES ERES REES
Investment value of Debt Debt Equity  Investment
funds  derivatives securities securities securities funds
BETT BETT BETT BETT BRI BETRT BETT
BE Assets HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
120091718 Asat 1 January 2009 5,534 - 6,820 639,992 23,192 56,271 731,809
EA Purchases - - 40,695 - - - 40,695
B Sales (30) - - - i _ (30)
5 Settlements - - (6,102) (14,537) - - (20,639)
RERRBERNAA Changes in fair value recognised
E{EED) in income statement
-BE/MEWEREE ~ Gains less losses dealing in
foreign currencies - - - 140 5 62 207
~BERSEEERNG - Gainslesslosses from
RER trading securities (1,898) - - - - - (1,898)
~EMEETHUGEAEE - Gains less losses fom other
dealing activities - 338 - - - - 338
—ETABBEZURME - Netgain fom financial instruments
DREEZEBIA designated at fair value through
Flg profit or loss - - 149 - - - 149
REMPERERAREZE  Changes in fair value recognised in other
ARBEE comprehensive income - - - (11,177) - - (11,177)
#2009 12A31A As at 31 December 2009 3,606 338 41,562 614,418 23,197 56,333 739,454
REZRGARMEE Total gains or losses for the year included
Yt ER R in available-for-sale fair value reserve of
EBRENNEREE other comprehensive income
at the end of the reporting period - - - (11,177) - - (11,177)
REFRIEENEE Total gains or losses for the year included
RERRBRZNER in income statement for assets held
HEREE atthe end of the reporting period
recorded in:
-BEIMEW R ER ~ Gains less losses from dealing in
foreign currencies - - - 140 5 62 207
-EEXHBAESNE - Gainsless losses from
HER trading securities (1,898) - - - - - (1,898)
-EWET RN -~ Gains less losses from other
HEE dealing activities - 338 - - - - 338
—ETARBESARE - Netqain from financial instruments
ArBEEZEHIA designated at fair value through
e profitor loss - - 149 - - - 149

186| MERITREKAERAE
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(a) UAARBEIIKNEMTA(E)

(i) EHEZMIHTERNHASHIEH

Notes to the Financial Statements

43, Fair Value Information (cont’d)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (cont’d)

(i) Valuation of financial instruments with significant unobservable

T AE(E) inputs (cont'd)
REZRRAE
Trading liabilities
PTET A/
BAREE
Negative fair
value of derivatives
BT T
aE Liabilities HK$'000
720094F1 A1H As at 1 January 2009 -
REZRERN AR EBEE Changes in fair value recognised in income statement
—HihEEEEFHE — Net loss from other dealing activities 338
72009%12A31H As at 31 December 2009 338
REERDFAENAERTER Total gains or losses for the year included in the income
RERXANERNERERE statement for liabilities held at the end of the reporting
period record in :
—HihEEEEFHE — Net loss from other dealing activities 338
“EENFER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

43, Fair Value Information (cont’d)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (cont'd)

(ii) Effects of changes in significant unobservable assumptions to
reasonable possible alternative assumptions
Fair values for Level 3 financial instruments are measured using
valuation models that incorporate assumptions that are not
based on observable market data. The following table shows
the sensitivity of Level 3 fair value measurements due to parallel
movement of plus or minus 10% of change in fair value to
reasonably possible alternative assumptions. For the Farmington
investment, other underlying assumptions have been inputted
into its valuation model in order test its sensitivity and explained

W o below.
—EENEF
2009
RE 2 R R R
N EEL T Effect on other
Effect on income statement comprehensive income
=yl AF Z=p 7
Favourable Unfavourable Favourable Unfavourable
BETT BETT BETT BETT
BE Assets HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ROPABEE Trading assets
—REES - Investment funds 360 (360) - -
EEARBEZURMA Financial assets designated at
AEBENERIA fair value through profit or loss
—EBES — Debt securities 4,156 (4,156) - -
A EES Available-for-sale securities
—ERESF - Debt securities
Farmington®® & (Hf5)  Farmington investment (Note) - - 8,228 (365,484)
Hi Others - - 1,260 (1,260)
—ERES — Equity securities - - 2,320 (2,320)
—REES ~ Investment funds - - 5,633 (5,633)

88| RFRITEIBRABRAT
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

43, Fair Value Information (cont’d)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (cont'd)
(ii) Effects of changes in significant unobservable assumptions to

reasonable possible alternative assumptions (cont'd)
Note:

Although the Bank believes that its estimates of fair value for the above
financial instruments are appropriate, the use of different methodologies
or assumptions could lead to different measurements of fair value. In
particular, the fair value determination for the Farmington capital notes in
the available-for-sale securities portfolio is the most sensitive to changes
in two key subjective inputs, namely the level of collateral defaults and
the rate of collateral prepayments ("CPR"). The level of interest rates is
not considered to have a material effect on fair value, because the Senior
Debt, and the large majority of collateral assets, are both tied to floating-
rate indexes. Accordingly, for fair value measurements in Level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy, two reasonably possible alternative cases have been
run in following manners.

Consistent with a stronger and faster ("V-shaped”) economic recovery,
the projected losses were assumed to be HK$310.0 million, and collateral
prepayments would be assumed to run at a faster CPR of 15.42%. The
discount net present value would increase as HK$609.7 million. Should
it follow with a double-dip recession (“W-shaped” recovery), projected
losses significantly increased to HK$1,030.7 million and collateral
prepayments are assumed to run at a slower CPR of 9.58%. The discount
net present value would reduce to only HK$236.2 million.

(b) Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than
fair value
All financial instruments are stated at fair value or carried at amounts
not materially different from their fair values as at 31 December 2009
and 2008 unless otherwise stated.

(i)  Financial assets

The Group's financial assets mainly include cash, placements
with banks, central banks and other financial institutions, loans
and advances to customers, investments and financial derivative
instruments.

The fair values of placements with banks, central banks and other
financial institutions are mainly priced at market interest rates
and mature within one year. Accordingly, the carrying values
approximate the fair values.

—EENEER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

43, Fair Value Information (cont’d)

(b) Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than
fair value (cont’d)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (cont’d)

The fair values of loans and advances to customers, taking into
account the relevant market interest rates and being mostly
priced at floating rates close to the market interest rate which are
mainly repriced within 3 months, equal their carrying amounts.

Trading assets, securities designated at fair value through profit or
loss and available-for-sale securities are stated at fair value in the
financial statements.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are stated at fair value or carried at amounts
not materially different from their fair values as at 31 December
2009 and 2008 except as follows:

PREVEREEAR
r5H
The Group
—EENF —ETN\F
2009 2008

RESH REHTH
Carrying AREE Carrying “RfEE
amount Fair value amount Fair value
BT T BT T AT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BTG 5F%  Certificate of deposit issued — Non-trading 3,693,598 3,702,030 3,623,714 3,628,646
2T EEES Debt securities issued 71,800 71,801 2,333,727 2,279,666
BBER Loan capital 3,916,017 4,009,398 3,927,221 3,982,034
7,681,415 7,783,229 9,884,062 9,890,346

F17
The Bank
ZEENE —TEN\F
2009 2008

RESHE ARE S
Carrying NRAEE Carrying NREE
amount Fair value amount Fair value
BETR BETT BETT AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETFEIR —ERXF A% Certificate of deposit issued - Non-trading 3,693,598 3,702,030 3,623,714 3,628,646
BEITREES Debit securities issued - - 2312927 2,258,867
BIEERN Loan capital 1,938,661 1,993,210 1,937,504 1,941,164
5,632,259 5,695,240 7,874,145 7,828,677

190] RERITERBRA A
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Notes to the Financial Statements

44, Derivatives

(a)

The use of derivatives for proprietary trading and sales to customers
as risk management products is an integral part of the Group's
business activities. These instruments are also used to manage the
Group's own exposures to market risk as part of its asset and liability
management process. The principal derivatives instruments used by
the Group are interest and foreign exchange rate related contracts,
which are primarily OTC derivatives. The Group also participates
in exchange traded derivatives. Most of the Group's derivatives
positions have been entered into to meet customer demand and to
hedge these and other trading positions. For accounting purposes,
derivatives are classified as either held for trading or held for hedging.

Notional amounts of derivatives

Derivatives refer to financial contracts whose value depends on
the value of one or more underlying assets or indices. The notional
amounts of these investments indicate the volume of outstanding
transactions and do not represent amounts at risk.

The following is a summary of the notional amounts of each
significant type of derivatives entered into by the Group and the Bank:

528
The Group
ZEENE “ZEN\E
2009 2008
HEERRR RETRER
BRARBAR ERNRBAL
EEMEAIA BENZRIE
—fHETER —(HEER
Managed in Managed in
conjunction with Eth(EfE conjunction with (A
financial instruments BFEE) financialinstruments REBE)
BYWEE designatedatfairvalue  Others (including ax BHIMEE designatedatfairvalue  Others (inclucing pt
Held for hedging through profitorloss  held for trading) Total  Heldforhedging  throughprofitorloss — held for trading) Total
eI BETR BETn  BETR BT BETT BETT  BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$000
EXf£TH Currency derivatives
FHT5 Forwards - - 50,623,365 50,623,365 - - 11,091,168 11,091,168
BERS Swaps - 78,000 54795678 54,873,678 - 78000 0250333 29330338
B\ Options purchased - - 852,046 852,046 - - 138,112 138,112
Bl Options written - - 1,007,133 1,007,133 - - 137,770 137,770
RZfAETR Interest rate derivatives -
FHT 5 Forwards - - 155,093 155,093 - - - -
BEERS Swaps 2,957,352 - 49,698,116 52,655,468 3123755 664,950 H4604 45031399
fRgfiETA Equity derivatives
ELg) Swaps - - 143,600 143,600 - - 41600 41600
2,957,352 78,000 157,275,031 160,310,383 313,755 742950 82103677 85970382
—ZEEAFFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

44, Derivatives (cont’d)

(a) Notional amounts of derivatives (cont’d)

if
The Bank
ZEENE —EI)\E
2009 2008
HETARS HETRRR
BRNURMAR EabRBAL
EEMERIA EENZRIR
-fHEfTER it
Managed in Managed in
conjunction with Eth(eE conjunction ith £t (05
financial instruments BEEE) financialinstruments BIFEE)
BYINEE designatedatfairvalue  Others (indluding a5 BHIFEE designatedatfairvale  Others inclucing k]
Held for hedging  through profitorloss  held for trading) Total  Heldforhedging through profitorloss  held for trading) Total
BT BETR BETR L AT BETT BRI BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000
EXfTEIA Currency derivatives
BN Forwards - - 50198972 50,198,972 - - 10771684 10,771,684
B Swaps - 78,000 54,826,697 54,904,697 - 78,000 29252333 29330333
E\HiE Options purchased - - 852,046 852,046 - - 138,112 138,112
Bl Options written - - 1007133 1,007,133 - - 137770 137770
FEfAETR Interest rate derivatives
EALS Fonwards - - 155,093 155,093 - - - -
B85 Siaps 2957352 - K958 5287259 313755 664950 AM6% 453139
REfEIR Equity derivatives
EH5 Swaps - - 143,600 143,600 - - 41600 4160
2,957,352 78,000 157,098,779 160,134,131 3123755 742950 81,784,193 85650898
FIERTEIRERAR

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

44 STHET H(E) 44, Derivatives (cont’d)
(b) STETENAARBEREERMIMNESEE (b) Fair values and credit risk-weighted amounts of derivatives
X5E
The Group
—FENE “EENE
2009 2008

EERE EERRE
AREE AREE g AnBE RRfEE Mg
BE B  Creditrisk- BE =L Credit risk-
Fair value Fair value weighted Fairvalue Fair value weighted
assets liabilities amount assets liabilities amount
BETT BT BETT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
MEFTETA Interest rate derivatives 727,768 807,456 633,920 994,046 1,076,592 707,634
[ERGTHETA Currency derivatives 425,382 300,149 650,228 435,759 301,009 234,980
BETETR Fquity derivatives 404 404 5,478 8,285 8,285 9,665
1,153,554 1,108,009 1,289,626 1,438,090 1,385,886 952,279

(MfiEnote 21)  (HizEnote 30) (ffzEnote 21)  (BffEEnote 30)

&7
The Bank
= Ok “TINE
2009 2008

EERE EERRE
AREE AREE mEHE ARBE RRfEE IESE
BE B  Creditrisk- BE aE Credit risk-
Fair value Fair value weighted Fairvalue Fair value weighted
assets liabilities amount assets liabilities amount
BETT BET T BET T BT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
MEFTETA Interest rate derivatives 727,052 807,456 631,665 994,046 1,076,592 707,634
EX{TETE Currency derivatives 423,950 299,189 645,691 432,980 297,007 231,815
FETET A Equity derivatives 404 404 5478 8,285 8,285 9,665
1,151,406 1,107,049 1,282,834 1435311 1,381,884 949,114

(MiiEnote 21)  (HizEnote 30) (ffzEnote 21)  (FffzEnote 30)

ZEBAFFER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

44, Derivatives (cont’d)

(b) Fair values and credit risk-weighted amounts of derivatives
(cont’d)
The credit risk-weighted amount is the amount which has been
calculated in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules on capital
adequacy and depends on the status of the counterparty and the
maturity characteristics. The risk weights used range from 0% to 150%
(2008: 0% to 150%) for contingent liabilities and commitments, and
from 0% to 150% (2008: 0% to 150%) for exchange rate, interest rate
and other derivatives contracts.

The Group did not enter into any bilateral netting arrangements
during the year and accordingly these amounts are shown on a gross
basis.

(c) Fair value of derivatives designated as hedging instruments
The following is a summary of the fair values of derivatives held for
hedging purposes by product type entered into by the Group and the
Bank:

REBRAET
The Group and the Bank
—EELE —ET)\F
2009 2008
AREE AREE AREE NREE
BE af BE BfE
Fair value Fair value Fair value Fair value
assets liabilities assets liabilities
BETT BT T BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
MEREH Interest rate contracts 35,733 127,324 57,192 196,015

ARBEHPIZEERERESETEE
NEEESRENAABERADSHNXE
B HRE O RI=H] o

PERITERERAE
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Fair value hedges principally consists of interest rate swaps that are
used to protect against changes in the fair value of certain fixed rate
assets or liabilities due to movements in the market interest rates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

44, Derivatives (cont’d)

(d) Remaining life of derivatives
The following tables provide an analysis of the notional amounts of
derivatives of the Group by relevant maturity grouping based on the
remaining periods to settlement at the end of the reporting period.

L)
The Group
= “BINE
2009 2008
RTEHNERER RIFHNRELE
Notional amounts with remaining life of Notional amounts with remaining life of

1L 1E 50 E

1EFEUT 55 1FFAT E5E
@@ 1yearor Overlyear SELE k] Tyearor  Over 1 year SERL
Total less  to5years Over5 years Total less to5years  Over5years
BRI E%Tn  E%TR  EBMTx  AWTr  B%Tr BBt BETx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FIEfTETA Interest rate derivatives 52,810,561 12,855,130 39,955,431 - 45231399 13426714 31,804,685 -
EEXfTETE  Curencydervatives 107,356,222 104,970,265 2,385,957 - 40697383 40434250 263,133 -
BHEFTETE  Equity derivatives 143,600 143,600 - - 41,600 41,600 - -
160,310,383 117,968,995 42,341,388 - 85970382 53902564 32067818 -

AT
The Bank
“EBNF “TTNE
2009 2008
RTEBNERER RIFENRELE
Notional amounts with remaining life of Notional amounts with remaining life of

1L 1E 50 E

1EHUT 55 IFFAT E5E
@%@ 1yearor Overlyear SELE k] Tyearor  Over 1 year SERL
Total less  to5years Over5 years Total less to5years  Over5years
BETR B¥®TR BE®TR BR®TR  EBTx  B%Tx BBt BBTx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FEfTETA Interest rate derivatives 53,027,683 13,072,259 39,955,424 - 45231399 13426714 31,804,685 -
BEITETA Currency derivatives 106,962,848 104,576,891 2,385,957 - 40377899 40,114,766 263,133 -
BHEFTETE  Equity derivatives 143,600 143,600 - - 41,600 41,600 - -
160,134,131 117,792,750 42,341,381 - 85650898 53583080 32067818 -

“ETRFFR |19
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Notes to the Financial Statements

45, Contingent Assets, Liabilities and Commitments

(a) Contingent liabilities and commitments to extend credit

The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each
significant class of contingent liabilities and commitments:

REE T
The Group The Bank
“EENE BT N\F ZBEEAE —TEN\F
2009 2008 2009 2008
BETT BB BETT BT
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
BEEREERER Direct credit substitutes 4,580,235 4818512 4,580,235 4818512
Bz S EERsEIEE Transaction-related contingencies 614,836 357,938 614,836 357,938
HE S EENsEEE Trade-related contingencies 1,299,902 989,214 1,159,244 900,234
HphAdE Other commitments;
— RITAI AR BUE S E — which are unconditionally cancellable
BERARNEER N EER or automatically cancellable due to
EHEUVHE deterioration in the creditworthiness
of the borrower 19,531,304 18,894,280 19,531,304 18,894,280
—REBBEEIFRIAT — with an original maturity of not more
than 1 year 4,066,281 4,258,945 4,014,044 4,189,858
—REBRTEIFIU L — with an original maturity of more
than 1 year 3,140,984 3,468,674 3,106,119 3135414
33,233,542 32,787,563 33,005,782 32,296,236
EEE R NESEE Credit risk-weighted amounts 6,588,920 5,269,794 6,503,159 5,072,364

FRERBEMEAEREEEABNIA 8
EEMER  ERBENRHEENEREK
APE o S RMARER FRATFREHRE
RBMEBSLNEERRER - SN2
EERERHNEBRIRELETFPHERME
AERRH S o MR B E A LD H
RIDARBA - AN SRELIFRARKIR

A= —1
EZnE °

R A E 5 B B A0 i B B9 [ hn#E e
0%Z150%( —FF/\F : 0%Z150%) T5F °

PERITERERAE
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Contingent liabilities and commitments are credit-related instruments
which include forward deposits placed, letters of credit, guarantees
and commitments to extend credit. The risk involved is essentially
the same as the credit risk involved in extending loan facilities to
customers. The contractual amounts represent the amounts at risk
should the contract be fully drawn upon and the client default. As the
facilities may expire without being drawn upon, the contract amounts
do not represent expected future cash flows.

The risk weights used in the computation of credit risk-weighted
amounts range from 0% to 150% (2008: 0% to 150%).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

45, Contingent Assets, Liabilities and Commitments (cont’d)

Capital commitments for purchase of properties and equipment
outstanding at 31 December 2009 not provided for in the financial

AEFERE A FEENT - statements were as follows:
KEE T
The Group The Bank
ZEBNFE —ZTTNF ZEBEAF —TTNF
2009 2008 2009 2008
BT BETT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERERETY Authorised and contracted for 35,286 20,620 33,800 19,356
BIERBERTL Authorised but not contracted for 900 23,138 900 23,138
36,186 43,758 34,700 42494
HERE (c) Lease commitments

RZZFFANFT_A=1+—8  REFT
R EHERNNRRKEES @D

At 31 December 2009, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

—lt .
A%E AT
The Group The Bank

ZEEAFE —TTN\HF ZBEAF C—TTN\HF
2009 2008 2009 2008
BT T AT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

MERERUT R Properties leases expiring:
TER Within 1 year 89,513 78,274 77,163 69,726
1F 256 After 1 year but within 5 years 210,237 192,451 195,639 185,384
5F1& After 5 years - 87,826 - 87,826
299,750 358,551 272,802 342,936

REHERUTHBSR Equipment leases expiring:
1R Within 1 year 2,077 4,658 1,107 3,648
1FE5F After 1 year but within 5 years 1,072 3,494 534 1,681
3,149 8,152 1,641 5,329

AEEERATRBLEHEN T ABES
B MR f% ﬁfﬂ%%& R R AE
EY—RRIEF  AIRNEHRNENEE
FRBIR - A EHEA TS RSB E

contingent rentals.

The Group and the Bank lease a number of properties and items
of equipment under operating leases. The leases typically run for
an initial period of one to nine years, with an option to renew the
lease when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes

“ERhEFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

45.

(d)

46.

47.

48.

Contingent Assets, Liabilities and Commitments (cont’d)

Contingent liability in respect of legal claim
The Group and its subsidiaries are not involved in any legal actions
that would be material to the financial position of the Group.

Trust Activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary capacities
that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of individuals,
trusts, retirement benefit plans and other institutions. These assets
and income arising thereon are excluded from these financial
statements, as they are not assets of the Group.

Immediate Parent and Ultimate Controlling Party

At 31 December 2009, the directors consider the immediate parent of
the Group to be CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited, which
is incorporated in Hong Kong, and the ultimate controlling party of
the Group to be CITIC Group, which is incorporated in the People’s
Republic of China.

Accounting Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of these financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses for the years presented. Changes
in assumptions may have a significant impact on the financial
statements in the periods where the assumptions are changed. The
application of assumptions and estimates means that any selection
of different assumptions would cause the Group's reporting to differ.
The Group believes that the assumptions that have been made are
appropriate and that the financial statements therefore present the
financial position and results fairly, in all material respects.

Management discussed with the Audit Committee the development,
selection and disclosure of the Group's significant accounting policies
and estimates and the application of these policies and estimates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

48. Accounting Estimates and Judgments (cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 27(c) and 43 contain information about the assumptions and
their risk factors relating to valuation of investment property and
fair value of financial instruments. Other key sources of estimation
uncertainty are as follows:

(i) Impairment losses

Loans and advances

Loans portfolios are reviewed periodically to access whether
impairment losses exist. The Group makes judgements as to
whether there is any objective evidence that a loan portfolio
is impaired, i.e. whether there is a decrease in estimated future
cash flows. Objective evidence for impairment is described in
the accounting policy note 2(l). If management has determined,
based on their judgement, that objective evidence of impairment
exists, expected future cash flows are estimated based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to those of the Group. Historical loss experience
is adjusted on the basis of the current observable data.
Management reviews the methodology and assumptions used
in estimating future cash flows regularly to reduce any difference
between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

Available-for-sale securities

The Group determines that available-for-sale equity securities are
impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value below cost. The determination of when a decline
in fair value below cost is not recoverable within a reasonable
time period is judgemental by nature, so profit and loss could be
affected by differences in this judgement.

(ii)  Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are
made as of a specific point in time based on the characteristics
of the financial instruments and relevant market information.
Where available, quoted market prices are used. If quoted price
is not available on a recognised stock exchange or from a broker
or dealer for non-exchange traded financial instruments or from
a readily available latest trading price, the fair value is estimated
using present value or other valuation techniques using current
market parameters. The fair value of structured investment
vehicles is based on their net assets value provided by investment
managers and has taken into consideration of other risk factors.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

48. Accounting Estimates and Judgments (cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont’d)

(i) Fair value of financial instruments (cont'd)
All valuation models are validated before they are used as a basis
for financial reporting. Wherever possible, the Group compares
valuations derived from models with quoted prices of similar
financial instruments, and with actual values when realised, in
order to further validate and calibrate the models.

These techniques involve uncertainties and are materially affected
by the assumptions used and judgements made regarding risk
characteristics of various financial instruments, discount rate,
estimates of future cash flows, future expected loss experience
and other factors. Changes in assumptions could materially affect
these estimates and the resulting fair values. Derived fair value
estimates cannot necessarily be substantiated by comparison to
independent markets and, in many cases, could be realised in an
immediate sale of the instruments.

(iii) Other accounting estimates

Judgement has been exercised in determining the amount which
may be payable to customers in respect of complaints or legal
claims arising from the sale of investment products. A charge
has been recognised in the income statement representing
amounts paid and an estimate of future amounts which could
be payable. The management is of the opinion that the residual
amount, which could be recovered from the Lehman Brothers
Minibonds on collateral recovery and realization, cannot be
reliably estimated and therefore no residual value of the Lehman
Brothers Minibonds has been recognised on the statement of
financial position (see note 11(c)).

49. Comparative Figures

As a result of the application of HKAS 1 (revised 2007), Presentation
of financial statements, and HKFRS 8, Operating segments, certain
comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to current
year's presentation and to provide comparative amounts in respect
of items disclosed for the first time in 2009. Further details of these
developments have been disclosed in note 3.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

50. Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and

Interpretations Issued but not yet Effective for the
Year Ended 31 December 2009

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued the following amendments, new standards and Interpretations,
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2009 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements.

HET R UAREEN
Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after

—(BEMEREEADFEIRUERT) —[BEEH]

— HKFRS 3 (Revised), Business combinations

- BIERIKE R GFHER)E 275 — [ 476 KB Bk

- Amendments to HKAS 27, Consolidated and separate financial statements

- EIERKE B G ERDEN — @M I A : BRNE AR EEHIER |
- Amendments to HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement

- Eligible hedged items

- AR (AR BREENREZES)REF 7

fF—TRmEED IR EE]

— HK(IFRIC) 17, Distributions of non-cash assets to owners

—(BAU B REEADHISE
— Improvements to HKFRSs 2009
(BB BEREENFESS —[2mITA]
— HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

RER B IEFE RV (4 15 L AE AT 8 B R BR AN B
MZEE - ZIBARL  REBMBHRERE
AR —TeMTAIRAEENSRTE
B BN EMERAEENELEEA
B BGRUERR R S - AR B R(E R
B LAER] B R R B A RS KA M M BOKOR
EZTEEERNTEURFTEIEHEM -

MR

APBBERER _FT—FFHA-++H
BEESRELRERM -

51.

20097 H1H
1 July 2009
20097 A 1H
1 July 2009
20097 A 1H
1 July 2009

20097 A 1H

1 July 2009

20097 A1H32010%F1 A1H
1 July 2009 or 1 January 2010
20131 A1H

1 January 2013

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of
them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results
of operations and financial position except for HKFRS 9, Financial
instruments, which may have an impact on the Group’s results and
financial position arising from changes in the Group'’s classification
and measurement of financial instruments.

Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors on 27 April 2010.
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R FIZmM I EER Unaudited Supplementary
Financial Information

(R BIPIBRINABEE R ERL) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(A) EXFTREE=E (A) Capital Adequacy Ratio
(i) EXFZELE (i) Capital adequacy ratio
AEE
The Group
—2EAE —FINF
2009 2008
MR12A31 BB AT R X Capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 16.44% 14.71%
M2 A31BEZ O E AR & Core capital ratio as at 31 December 11.91% 9.61%
RZERNFERZEENF+_A=F— The capital adequacy ratio ("“CAR”) and core capital ratio, as at 31
H:  BAZTELEEREZOLEARALE 2R December 2009 and 31 December 2008, are computed on the
BFeERAEETRENRERGERITE consolidated basis covering the Bank and certain of its subsidiaries
(ﬁzﬁ)%ﬁﬁw BARTREETHERRA as required by the HKMA for its requlatory purposes, and are in
EHEEGTE  c ATRAIBREREIFE accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules. The Bank has adopted
EE R RS R R INESE - M the “standardised approach” for the calculation of the risk-weighted
EBRIERBR A EARERE] - amount for credit risk and market risk and the “basic indicator

approach” for the calculation of operational risk.
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(A) EXRFTRLER(E)

(i) HBRBIEBRERER

(A) Capital Adequacy Ratio (cont’d)

(ii) Capital base after deductions

EEE
The Group
—EZhF —EENF
2009 2008
BT T BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
BB Core capital
BT R Paid up ordinary share capital 7,283,341 5,583,341
BB E Share premium 282,930 282,930
i Reserves 3,082,578 2,782,734
BRER Profit and loss account 950,994 170,834
HIBRB E B 0B R4 8 Total core capital before deductions 11,599,843 8,819,839
S IRIER TR A E Less: Net deferred tax assets (99,637) (106,745)
B RO E AR HRIE B Less: Deductions from core capital (720,880) (473,652)
MR IERZ O E R BT Total core capital after deductions 10,779,326 8,239,442
SR ER Eligible supplementary capital
R AR BEEHFEHIEER Unrealised fair value gains arising from holdings of
RBBRAREA R EENRD equities and debt securities designated at fair value
MEBBELSMELENRERZN through profit or loss
(MEBEALRR) (in supplementary capital) 9,918 6,616
—RRIRTTE R B EE RS Regulatory reserve for general banking risks 587,892 675,465
A FTHEREZERE Collectively assessed impairment allowances 313,096 237,758
KAKEER Perpetual subordinated debt 1,977,356 1,089,718
BHEE(EREIE Term subordinated debt 1,938,661 1,937,504
HIBRRIE AT /B E A48 58 Total supplementary capital before deductions 4,826,923 4,847,061
VB B E AR IR IE B Less: Deductions from supplementary capital items (720,880) (473,652)
HIBRRIE R B E A B 58 Total supplementary capital after deductions 4,106,043 4,373,409
HIBRRIE R B E AR ER Total capital base after deductions 14,885,369 12,612,851
BOEERRFEEIEARD Total deductions from the core capital and
HmIE B 458 supplementary capital 1,441,760 947,304
E B AR Risk-weighted amount
—EERR — credit risk 84,297,234 81,447,518
—mHAER — market risk 2,315,613 959,975
— & iE RS — operational risk 3,935,475 3,323,050
90,548,322 85,730,543

—EThEFH [203
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(A) EXFZELE(E) (A) Capital Adequacy Ratio (cont'd)
(i) MEE S L E (iii) Liquidity ratio
AEE
The Group
—EENE —ETN\F
2009 2008
HZE1NANBLEFEFY Average liquidity ratio for the year ended
MENVE & &~ 31 December* 48.78% 37.00%
* AFENTFERBESEERAEGREAMFES *  The average liquidity ratio for the year is the simple average of each

MBESLEZBEFHY - WIRESER
REEBMNMMRE  BATREETHEBR
BINEHEE - WA TBGERTTERDDH
ROMEREFTE o

calendar month’s average liquidity ratio, which is computed on the
consolidated basis covering the Bank and certain of its subsidiaries as
required by the HKMA for its regulatory purposes, and is in accordance
with the Fourth Schedule to the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

(iv) REER
BRARIZIBASN - RFEEHMBMERNAE Unless otherwise stated, all financial information contained in the
MBERBIU ST S iEe EREE

(iv) Basis of consolidation

financial statements are prepared according to the consolidation basis
for accounting purpose.

AEENEATREH R R RBESLE In preparing the CAR and liquidity ratio of the Group, they are

DIRBEREEMS ARG EREKHR - 74
AfpiegstmsAnEeEmsnEE0 5
ERAEBEAITRAITHRENB AR
MEEMNRBERTRATETHER
A BT

AITHEATRUELEXERBEN _TTLHF
—A—BAAERNGERTE(ER) RADE
8- 2 EREHENTREGRITE(ER)
MAIDFE28Q2) @K - RE—REERBET
JIRTTZMBRAMERTZERTRLL
o PERAIRE —ERETE -

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

prepared according to the basis of consolidation for regulatory
purposes. The main difference between the consolidation basis for
accounting and regulatory purposes is that the former includes the
Bank and all its subsidiaries whereas the latter includes the Bank and
only some of the Group's subsidiaries, which are discussed as follows:

The Bank calculates the CAR in accordance with Banking (Capital)
Rules effective on 1 January 2007. The HKMA has granted approval
under section 28(2)(a) of the Banking (Capital) Rules for the Bank to
calculate its CAR on a solo-consolidated basis instead of solo basis in
respect of the following subsidiaries of the Bank:

MEARERE Name of subsidiaries

CKWH-UT2 Limited CKWH-UT2 Limited

EREEBARATR Viewcon Hong Kong Limited
FIERTEIRERAR
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(A) BEXZZRLER(E) (A) Capital Adequacy Ratio (cont’d)

(iv) e BB (&)

(iv) Basis of consolidation (cont’d)

H—HE ATERECRITEGN)H
98(2)(b) 16k » BLARE ERE B LA THIE A 7]
PRt EHERT R R -

o) NG
BBEAMBEBERAT
PIERBRRSAR AR
RERTUSFE)BRAR

On the other hand, the Bank is required under section 98(2)(b) of the
Banking Ordinance to calculate its CAR on a consolidated basis in
respect of the following subsidiaries:

Name of subsidiaries

HKCB Finance Limited

CITIC Insurance Brokers Limited
The Ka Wah Bank (Trustee) Limited

KWB Management Limited KWB Management Limited
CKWH-UT2 Limited CKWH-UT2 Limited
EEEEBRAR Viewcon Hong Kong Limited

BRBEBRERAR]
PERERT(FR)BRAA
CKWB-SN Limited

Ka Wah International Services Limited
RERERRAT
REBRMBERAR]

RBGRITR(BER)RADE =810 - K17
ZERER G NBIEATHEB AR -

MEARERE
SERT(RE)BRAF
Security Nominees Limited

BBEANRIT(REAN)BRAT]

Carford International Limited

CITIC Ka Wah Bank (China) Limited

CKWB-SN Limited

Ka Wah International Services Limited

KWB Investment Limited

Ka Wah International Merchant Finance Limited

The following subsidiaries are deducted from the Bank's capital base
under Part 3 of the Banking (Capital) Rules:

Name of subsidiaries

The Ka Wah Bank (Nominees) Limited

Security Nominees Limited

The Hongkong Chinese Bank (Nominees) Limited

—EENEER
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RECEZHTIBER Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

B) E—F T MBEFERRBN (B) Further Analysis on Loans and Advances to Customers
EPERRBREZRERR  BHEER Loans and advances to customers analysed by the coverage of
REEENBEEIEL DN  REETE collateral, overdue amount and the impairment allowance is as
EITHOTREAEERMEANSBRLE follows. The economic sector analysis is based on the categories and
BRYE - definitions used by the HKMA.

PS4
The Group
“EENE —TENEF
2009 2008
EEEAH HEHAN
EFERR BFEHK
EFERR BRME RFEHK BB
BRBE BOE BRIETE BOE
Gross loans % of gross loans Gross loans % of gross loans
and advances and advances and advances and advances
to customers to customers to customers to customers
BT covered e covered
HK$'000 by collateral HK$'000 by collateral
THEsR Industrial, commercial and financial
-MEER - Property development 303,000 100 110,000 -
-MERE ~ Property investment 9,226,709 98 9,124,397 %
—-eRbE ~Financial concerns 4,407,441 33 4,494,391 53
—IREEL - Stockbrokers 21,428 100 11360 92
-WERTEE - Wholesale and retail trade 3,775,792 48 3440433 48
—BlE % - Manufacturing 5,212,804 29 6,420,287 29
— B ERRE ~ Transport and transport equipment 2,878,221 76 2,902,689 75
— JRELT B — Recreational activities 190,354 92 125358 100
— iR - Information technology 24,061 75 20,845 88
—Hfth - Others 2,472,175 57 3,065,534 66
TELA Individuals
-REIEEREEHE — Loans for the purchase of flats
[MABRE2E under the Home Ownership
BEEREEE Scheme, Private Sector
HEE INEFER Participation Scheme and
Tenants Purchase Scheme 28,981 100 32,148 100
-BEEMEE - Loans for the purchase of
MENER other residential properties 10,673,018 100 10398618 100
—{EARBHR — Credit card advances 310,487 - 381,074 -
—Efth - Others 3,626,044 93 3,174,606 89
EEAEFANERR Gross loans and advances for use
BREH in Hong Kong 43,150,515 74 43,701,740 74
BHRE Trade finance 3,381,683 34 4,495,859 3
ERBLIMERRMER K Gross loans and advances for use
BRIEE outside Hong Kong 25,682,613 36 25216917 44
RPEHLEFaRA Gross loans and advances to customers 72,214,811 59 73414516 61

206 | RIFRITEIRBMRA S
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(B) E—F o MEFERR BN (E)

EEEERRBRATAR 2 THAL -
TIRERERAE S BN REEFERR

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(B) Further Analysis on Loans and Advances to Customers

(cont’d)

The analysis of impaired loans and advances to customers of the
individual loan usage category, which accounted for 10% or more of

RN - the gross loans and advances to customers, is as follows:
A%M
The Group
= LK
2009
ERERER
(=L )
WREER
Impairment
charged to/
BEEFE a5 ;:v\é AEZF  (written back)
EXRRBH HEEE HEEE EXRBR income
Overdue loans Individual Collective Impaired loans statement
and advances impairment impairment  and advances during
to customers allowances allowances  to customers the year
BT BETR BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MERE ~ Property investment 12,995 3,932 5,278 49,610 2,189
BEHMEEYENET Loans for the purchase
‘ of other residential properties 30 - 209 936 (514)
EEBLIMERBETR  Gross loans and advances for use
RBZ 05 outside Hong Kong 361,281 174,579 65,432 966,318 186,436
374,306 178,511 70,919 1,016,864 188,111
K&HE
The Group
ZTENEF
2008
ERNERER
i
REEE
Impairment
aBEP (@ e RERP charged to
ERRBT REERE B ERRBR income
Overdue loans Individual Collective  Impaired loans statement
and advances impairment impairment  and advances during
to customers allowances allowances  to customers the year
BETL  SBTR  BMTR BT MR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MERE ~ Property investment 8517 3377 4,993 11,465 630
BEHMEEMENEF Loans for the purchase
‘ of other residential properties 2979 - 943 4448 3,705
EEBLIMEREET  Gross loans and advances for use
REBFAE outside Hong Kong 826,354 70,182 69216 1,000,456 141477
837,850 73,559 75152 1,016,369 145812
ZETNEFR
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(B) Further Analysis on Loans and Advances to Customers

(cont’d)
RLEDH By geographical areas
X5E
The Group
“BERF
2009
EFER BREF HEERF 5l )
k8%  EXRER  ERREX HEERE BEERE
Loansand Overdueloans Impaired loans Individual Collective
advances andadvances and advances impairment impairment
tocustomers  tocustomers  to customers allowances allowances
B¥TR BETR BETT BETT BETR
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fa Hong Kong 50,732,390 261,836 383,367 130,818 212,859
FElR, Mainland China 12,433,530 52,244 54,070 1,492 52,628
ES USA 1,739,888 - 38,195 24,053 8,421
Hfty Others 7,309,003 256,587 828,505 154,774 32,025
72,214,811 570,667 1,304,137 311,137 305,933
KEE
The Group
—EENEF
2008

ZPER BEEP RERP (Rl )
RBF% EFRENR BRREX BB BEEE
Loansand  Overdueloans  Impaired loans Individual Collective
advances  andadvances  and advances impairment impairment
to customers to customers to customers allowances allowances
BT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
Fa Hong Kong 52,926,670 268,039 489,615 215435 171,430
FE N Mainland China 12102527 520,855 517,303 107 41,731
e USA 1661738 - 38711 - 1489
Hity Others 6,723,581 233,686 338,550 31,685 22929
73414516 1,022,580 1,384,179 247,227 237,579

i E DM 5 Y F oSl
o YEEBRRER - HEXZEH TR
RARBE RN — T ER RO EERR K
BEERTOBRFEAS ©

208 | RIFRITEIRBMRA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

The above geographical analysis is classified by the location of the
counterparties after taking into account the transfer of risk. For a
claim guaranteed by a party situated in a country different from the
counterparty, risk will be transferred to the country of the guarantor.



RECEZH T BER Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

B) E—F T MEFERRBR(E) (B) Further Analysis on Loans and Advances to Customers
(cont’d)
B E DT (&) By geographical areas (cont’d)
BHEREBAEREAHBAIEANE Overdue loans and advances are loans that have been overdue more
o than three months.
BEERKBREZEZENEELREE Impaired loans and advances are individually assessed loans which
BEEEMH BRI R ER - exhibit objective evidence of impairment on an individual basis.
(C) BHEE (C) Overdue Assets
(i) BHEFERRER (i) Overdue loans and advances to customers
AEE
The Group
“EENE —TEN\F
2009 2008
EEFER EEFPER
RBFEE RBEE
BAX BAX
9% of total loans % of total loans
B¥TT  andadvances AT and advances
HK$'000 to customers HK$'000 to customers
e e Rt The gross amount of loans and
advances has been overdue
for periods of:
—3fAAN LZ=6MEA 6 months or less but over 3 months 23,682 0.03 229,009 031
—6HANLEE1F ~ 1 year or less but over 6 months 121,699 0.17 127815 017
—1ENF - over 1 year 425,286 0.59 665,756 091
570,667 0.79 1,022,580 139
BERABERRBT Secured overdue loans and advances 186,700 722,164
REMDMERRBN Unsecured overdue loans and advances 383,967 300416
570,667 1,022,580
BREREMAMERREE  Marketvalue of collateral held against
REAGEmE the secured overdue loans and advances 969,663 867,174
{ERRELERE Individual impairment allowances made 121,110 99,952
ERBERBZERRER HEHEAEK Loans and advances with a specific repayment date are classified as
FMECEE  WRELEBTAREE - 87 overdue when the principal or interest is overdue and remains unpaid
TEBHARRIE - BIRREA 2 &5 - B2 MfE at the year end, loans repayable on demand are classified as overdue
RNEEEFBA - BEEXRANKRIZETR either when a demand for repayment has been served on the
B R/REREBLERAERNN borrower but repayment has not been made in accordance with the
HEPRREE - MU B R B8 it @ i HR demand notice, and/or when the loans have remained continuously
R - IRFI VR HARR IR - outside the approved limit advised to the borrower for more than the

overdue period in question.
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BEZEELS
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T E E R - &
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[ARERRI 2T EBEAIAREGERMA
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RZEEZNFR_EENF+_A=1+—
B AEBTEAHBBE=EANETR
Hih & BRI -

(i) HaBEE

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(C) Overdue Assets (cont’d)

(i) Overdue loans and advances to customers (cont’d)

Majority of collateral held in respect of the overdue loans and
advances is real estate properties. The eligible collateral should
generally satisfy the following:

(@) The market value of the asset is readily determinable or can be
reasonably established and verified;

(b) The asset is marketable and there exists a readily available
secondary market for disposing of the asset;

(c) The Bank's right to repossess the asset is legally enforceable and
without impediment; and

(d) The Bank is able to secure control over the asset if necessary.

The main type of “Eligible Collateral” is "Eligible Physical Collateral”
which mainly comprises real estate.

There were no advances to banks and other financial institutions
which were overdue for over 3 months as at 31 December 2009 and
31 December 2008.

(ii) Other overdue assets

AEE
The Group
—EENF —TTN\F
2009 2008
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HKS$'000
BoRBHEEDmEE - The gross amount of trade bills which has been overdue for:
—31A A E=6fE A — 6 months or less but over 3 months - 11,650
A EFEASD wEE ¢ Available-for-sale securities which have been overdue for:
— 1 —over 1 year 14,519 15,500
FIERTEIRERAR
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RECEZHTIBER Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(D) BREHER (D) Rescheduled Loans
rEE
The Group
—sEAE By
2009 2008
LHEFEX HEFPEX
BB NENRAERR
DE AOX
% of total % of total
loans and loans and
B¥ETIT  advancesto BT advances to
HK$’000 customers HKS$'000 customers
KEHER Rescheduled loans 136,982 0.19 15,297 0.02
KREAERZEEFIAR RV BN & Rescheduled loans are those advances which have been restructured
BENMEEFRMEE R RBEXNEHEERK or renegotiated because of a deterioration in the financial position
FFEIMB R - ELELEIFTNEREGE R of the borrower, or the inability of the borrower to meet the original
: y g
SEMELIF—MBEERK BFPEAE repayment schedule and for which the revised repayment terms are
REMBREZBABA = @RI 2R non-commercial to the Group. Rescheduled loans to customers are
QMEFRAY B HAZAK - stated net of any advances that have subsequently become overdue

for over 3 months and reported as overdue advances in note (C).

RIBZENFFT+_A=F+—"HEZZZEN There were no advances to banks and other financial institutions
F+-A=+—"H AEEVEBEAHAMN which were rescheduled as at 31 December 2009 and 31 December
RITRE AL S BB 2008,
(E) EREEE (E) Repossessed Assets
AEE
The Group
—EEAEF —ETNF
2009 2008
BT T PEMETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EEtARPER BT Included in loans and advances to customers
HpBRIEH and other accounts 48,498 69,008
HEERR_ZETZNFT_A=1T—0K The amount represents the estimated market value of the repossessed
“EENF+ A=+t —HHKEEERN assets as at 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2008.
fHErTE -

—ETREEH |20
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(F) Cross-border Claims

Cross-border claims are on statement of financial position exposures
of counterparties based on the location of the counterparties after
taking into account the transfer of risk. For a claim guaranteed by a
party situated in a country different from the counterparty, risk will be
transferred to the country of the guarantor. For a claim on the branch
of a bank or other financial institution, the risk will be transferred to
the country where its head office is situated. Claims on individual
countries or areas, after risk transfer, amounting to 10% or more of the

aggregate cross-border claims are shown as follows:

A&
The Group
“EZNE
2009
BITRHEA
SEE
Banks and DNEHE
other financial Public sector Hity ok
institutions entities Others Total
BT BT BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRUINTAR Asia and Pacific excluding Hong Kong 12,258,959 161,789 14,642,430 27,063,178
He R of which Australia 3,641,571 2,392 429,004 4,072,967
Heh E R of which Mainland China 3,445,286 70,670 11,560,682 15,076,638
Fan Western Europe 16,876,515 217,357 3,589,064 20,682,936
HepzB of which France 2,008,770 - 737,922 2,746,692
He2E of which Germany 1,178,037 - 24,060 1,202,097
HhmE of which Netherlands 2,341,431 - 683,923 3,025,354
HA s of which United Kingdom 5,912,778 738 1,484,513 7,398,029
A&E
The Group
“EEN\F
2008
BITREA
SRR
Banks and NEWE
other financial Public sector Hi ek
institutions entities Others Total
BT BT ABETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB EAR Asia and Pacific excluding Hong Kong 9,519,509 33333 14,697,159 24,250,001
Hepmim of which Australia 3,264,931 829 351,026 3,616,786
Hehh B of which Mainland China 2,798,451 30636 11,764,953 14,594,040
FoEL Western Europe 16,189,713 1924 2,861,252 19,052,889
HepER of which France 3691215 - 706,087 4397302
HepfER of which Germany 2,612,756 - 19,498 2,632,254
HhEE of which Netherlands 1421752 - 924,932 2,346,684
HA of which United Kingdom 5,285,005 518 653923 5939446

212 RERITEBAERDE
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(G) Non-bank Mainland China Exposures

Non-bank Mainland China exposures are the Mainland China
exposures to non-bank counterparties. The categories follow the
non-bank Mainland China exposures submitted by the Bank to the
HKMA pursuant to section 63 of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

SET IR
2009
g e PR RN
IR B IR HEREE
On-statement  Off-statement B BIRE EE
of financial of financial Individual
position position k] impairment
exposure exposure Total allowances
BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
elCiapauli YA Mainland China entities 15,236,777 5,392,627 20,629,404 11,406
EEERRNTRENM Y Companies and individuals outside
BRI AT REA Mainland China where the credit
is granted for use in Mainland China 14,702,545 9,587,187 24,289,732 37,949
29,939,322 14,979,814 44,919,136 49,355
“EENF
2008
IBMARA IBAAEIN
MR R MR S
On-statement Off-statement (BRI EERE
of financial of financial Individual
position position k) impairment
exposure exposure Total allowances
BT BT BETT BT
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B A Mainland China entities 16,883 465 5,898,957 22782422 15516
EEERANHEAN Companies and individuals outside
JERE A A T R EA Mainland China where the credit
is granted for use in Mainland China 14,160,597 5,798,051 19,958,648 125,336
31,044,062 11,697,008 42,741,070 140,852
—EThFEFR
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(H) Additional Disclosures on Credit Risk Management

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(i) EXHRE (i) Capital requirement
NEERRFEREZE(EHRAR)TE LT The capital requirements of the Group on each class of exposures
HEE AR EENERNREDNT calculated under the standardised (credit risk) approach at the end of
NN each reporting period can be analysed as follow:
—EBBhEF —EENF
2009 2008
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RS EEER Classes of exposure:
T Sovereign 7,244 3,652
NEHIE Public sector entity 8,535 23,943
#R1T Bank 999,702 697,974
kNG Securities firm 2,751 2,665
1% Corporate 3,719,698 3,759,367
SR ETE Collective investment scheme 289 443
RELIER Cash items 9,766 9,118
BEETE Regulatory retail 375,316 370,418
FERBER Residential mortgage loans 502,483 514,037
Hoh FE 60 HA 3 fax Other exposures which are not past due 425,960 524,012
B Past due 57,751 108,239
A TS AR R N L B A HE Y Total capital requirements for on-statement of
BERETE financial position exposures 6,109,495 6,013,868
BEEEERER Direct credit substitutes 112,341 122,063
WM S EBENEIER Transaction-related contingencies 21,654 13,140
HE 5 BB BIER Trade-related contingencies 28,318 20,761
HophAHE Other commitments 179,030 191,438
EXLREEAH Exchange rate and gold contracts 52,018 18,798
FZEREH Interest rate contracts 50,714 56,611
EmEH Equity contracts 438 773
B RS AR I R IR S A E Y Total capital requirements for off-statement of
HMERRTE financial position exposures 444,513 423,584
FERBBRERRTE Total capital requirements for credit risk 6,554,008 6,437,452
FIERTEIRERAR
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(H) Additional Disclosures on Credit Risk Management
(cont’d)

(ii) Capital charge
The capital charge for operational risk of the Group calculated in
accordance with the basic indicator approach at the end of reporting

date is:
—EENE T N\F
2009 2008
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
EBIRIERBHERE K Capital charge for operational risk 314,838 265,344

(iii) S ERSAE
AEBERBZELR RBEMEERBEFIN
BEEFREETEH TS EERRE
o MAEBIRITIRS M E BT AR M3
TARDERFHERRITE(ER)RAED
ERFTIt—EL o

&

(iii) Credit risk exposure

Credit ratings such as from Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services and
Moody's Investors Service are used for all classes of credit exposures
mentioned below. The Group follows the process prescribed in Part
4 of the Banking (Capital) Rules to map the ratings to the exposures
booked in the Group’s banking book.

—EENEER
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(H) Additional Disclosures on Credit Risk Management
(cont’d)

(i) Credit risk exposure (cont’d)

An analysis of the credit risk of the Group by class of exposures at the

BERRIT : end of reporting date is as follows:
“2ENE
2009
BIEREN
ARENE
TAANEE
ZHARRE
Total exposure
BREAR  coveredby
SEAAEEERRTHE BEZ  recognised
ZERE aER BERE  guaranteesor
Exposures after recognised A inE IEE  Total exposure recognised
credit risk mitigation Risk-weighted amounts Total covered by credit
RESE B RETR B4R RETR  risk-weighted  recognised derivative
Total exposures Rated Unrated Rated Unrated amounts collateral contracts
BETRT BETR BT BETT BETR BYTR BETT BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BBmARA On-statement of financial position
HIT#E Sovereign 5,415,041 6,210,446 - 90,544 - 90,544 - 795,405
NEHE Public sector entity 552,813 533,432 - 106,686 - 106,686 - 127,900
SRERET Multlateral development bank - - - , - - , -
i ch Bank 31,975,950 27,955,543 4,881,146 10,417,758 2,078,530 12,496,288 - 860,739
EHLT Securities fim 5429 - 68,770 - 34,385 34,385 5429 63,340
= Corporate 49,839,885 4,756,969 42,641,091 3,843,346 42,652,892 46,496,238 1,108,864 242,253
EELEHE Collective investment scheme 3,607 - 3,607 - 3,607 3,607 - .
Bt Cash items 162,647 - 1,259,926 - 122,072 122,072 937,033 -
EETE Regulatory retal 6,578,069 - 6,255,261 - 4,691,446 4,691,446 4,503 -
TERBEN Residential mortgage loans 16,764,105 - 16735152 - 628,039 6,281,039 - -
EfFasER Other exposures which are not
past due exposures 5,328,298 2,789,916 2,534,585 2,789,916 2,534,585 5,324,501 23,040 -
nSER Past due exposures 539,630 167 539,463 - 721,883 721,883 115,519 167
BifRESN Offstatement of financial position
EIMTETERFREESE  Offstatement of financial position
TEAKLIMB AR R exposures other than OTC derivative
ShER transactions or credit derivative contracts 31,058,327 393,062 30,665,265 189,721 4,077,061 4,266,782 1,060,014 78,374
SIMTETAR S OTC derivative transactions 152,188,117 99,861,542 52,326,575 442,739 846,887 1,289,626 2,748,710 -
NBAEAEIERRRAE  Exposures deducted from capital base 1,432,605

216 | RERITERBRAF
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(H) Additional Disclosures on Credit Risk Management

(cont’d)

(i) Credit risk exposure (cont’d)

“TINE
2008
BRERAY
HEETE
TAGWEE
JEERE
Total exposure
BREAR  coveredby
ERERREEERRTHA WEZ  recognised
LERE &Rk BEBE  guaranteesor
Exposures after recognised Bl e MESE  Towlexposure  recognised
credit risk mitigation Risk-weighted amounts Total covered by credit
AR R CRE Bk BEFR  dskweighted  recognised derivative
Total exposures Rated Unrated Rated Unrated amounts collateral contracts
AETT BT BETTL BETT BT BETTL BETT BT
HKS'000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HK$'000
BiitRRR On-statement of financial position
BKE Sovereign 11259973 11356817 - 45648 - 45648 - 64720
DERE Public sector entity 1513872 1496445 - 299,289 - 299,289 - 142,743
SEURRT Multilateral development bank 205,898 205,898 - - - - - -
17 Bank 25,001,441 24597863 1830335 7845149 879521 8,724,670 - 1.366,757
EE Securites fir - - 66633 - 3317 3317 - 66633
% Corporate 50,706,178 2851216 44493550 2402524 44,589,561 46,992,085 1399022 -
ERNEAE Collective investment scheme 5533 - 5533 - 5533 5533 - -
e Cash items 172,646 - 2,250,043 - 113969 113969 2077397 -
EETE Regulatory retail 6,374499 - 6,173,626 - 4630219 4630219 14,790 -
FERBER Residential mortgage loans 15791823 - 15759699 - 6425460 6425460 - -
EftFamEmg Other exposures which are not
past due exposures 6,594,258 4257819 2,292,346 4257819 2,292,346 6,550,165 30,950 -
nEkEk Past due exposures 976610 201 976409 - 1352,983 1352983 212703 201
BEMRRN Off-statement of financial position
EMTETERSREENE  Offstatement of financial position
TEGHLIMIBIRR AR exposures other than OTC derivative
ShE R transactions or credit derivative contracts 30,569,341 971,776 29,597,565 362,383 3980138 4342501 1388486 175,199
BIMTETAR S OTC derivative transactions 75118755 51146913 23971842 214354 737925 952079 4329965 -
MRHEREAEREREAE  Exposures deducted from capital base 947,304
—ZEENFFR
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(H) Additional Disclosures on Credit Risk Management
(cont’d)

(iv) Counterparty credit risk exposures
The following tables summarise the Group's main credit exposures

arising from over-the-counter ("OTC") derivative transactions:

(1) Below is an analysis of the counterparty credit risk exposures:

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

—EENE —EENF
2009 2008
BIMTE BIMTHE
TAXRS TARS
OTC derivative  OTC derivative
transactions transactions
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
JEOIBTEER S - Non-repo style transactions:
BIF AR (BEMARE Gross total positive fair value 1,220,044 1,321,035
EEZHE: Credit equivalent amount 2,517,766 1,791,537
EHERBEANER® Recognised collateral held:
— (EFE T A LAY — other than debt securities 15,236 35,957
HB O HERIEFREERZNEE  Credit equivalent amounts or net credit exposures
ZHRELEIFEER M EE net of recognised collateral 2,517,766 1,791,537
[R\ B ANAEE SR EE Risk weighted amounts 1,289,626 952,279
FERITEEERAQ R
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

H) FERBEENEIMEE)

(H) Additional Disclosures on Credit Risk Management
(cont’d)

(iv) RZHFEER AR (H)
2 BRZEFRAMMERRAENES

(iv) Counterparty credit risk exposures (cont’d)

(2) Below is an analysis of the major classes of exposures by

BRSO : counterparty type:
—EEAEF —TENF
2009 2008
BIMTE BIMTHE
TARS TERS
OTC derivative OTC derivative
transactions transactions
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
HED Notional amounts:
—R1T — Banks 114,014,212 52,471,875
—1pE — Corporates 35,425,195 18,295,052
—Hfb - Others 2,748,710 4,351,828
152,188,117 75,118,755
EECHRESRE Credit equivalent amounts:
—R1T — Banks 1,693,552 1,034,261
—1pE — Corporates 813,857 711,815
—Hb - Others 10,357 45461
2,517,766 1,791,537
[B\fg AN EREE Risk-weighted amounts:
—R1T — Banks 485,065 233,755
—1pE — Corporates 804,561 709,024
—Hb - Others - 9,500
1,289,626 952,279
—EBEhEFERK [219
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(H) Additional Disclosures on Credit Risk Management

(v)

(cont’d)

Credit risk mitigation

The Group mitigates credit risk by means of taking collateral and
entering into offsetting or netting agreements with borrowers
and counterparties, as the case may be, should such clauses and
agreements be legally established and enforceable.

Common types of tangible collateral acceptable to the Bank include
land, real estates, equipment & machinery, equity shares, bonds and
other marketable securities. In determining the loan advancing level,
respective haircuts will be applied on the current market value of
the collateral. The Group also accepts intangible collateral such as
government guarantees, bank guarantees, corporate guarantees and
personal guarantees.

(vi) Market risk

The Group uses the standardised approach for calculation of market
risk.

—EBEAEFE —EENF

2009 2008

Capital charge  Capital charge

BT T BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

T == o e A HE (B PR EARE) Interest rate exposures (including options) 98,160 49,908
IS [ e 7 2 (B FE HARE) Equity exposures (including options) 410 374
SNE BB AE(BIEES N ERE) Foreign exchange exposures (including gold and options) 86,679 26,515
185,249 76,797

PERITERERAE
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(H) Additional Disclosures on Credit Risk Management
(cont’d)

(vii) Asset securitisation

The Group uses the standardised (securitisation) approach to calculate

the credit risk for securitisation exposures. It is an investing institution

for all classes of exposures below.

Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services and Moody's Investors Service are

the external credit assessment institutions that the Bank has used in

relation to the securitisation exposures of the "Others”.

=
2009
BRWE
Exposures deducted from its
AEE  ERINEHE EXEXR HEYEX
Outstanding  Risk-weighted Capital BER  Supplementary
amounts amount requirements Core Capital Capital
EHCER BETT BETR BETR BETR BETT
Securitisation exposures HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SEET Instalment loans - - - 190 190
Hit Others 3,538,118 2,393,071 191,446 716,113 716,113
3,538,118 2,393,071 191,446 716,303 716,303
ZTENEF
2008
FRRRA
Exposures deducted from its
AEE  EBIMESE BRER HBER
Outstanding ~ Risk-weighted Capital ZLER  Supplementary
amounts amount requirements Core Capital Capital
Bk BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Securitisation exposures HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SEHEX Instalment loans - - - 377 377
Hit Others 2,691,447 1,000,315 80,025 156,080 156,080
2691447 1,000,315 80,025 156,457 156,457

—ETREER |22
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

() Additional Information on Structured Investments

Collateralised Debt Obligations (“CDO")

As at 31 December 2009, the US$120.0 million (HKS equivalent
930.0 million) capital notes issued by Farmington Finance Limited
("Farmington”) which was restructured from the Victoria Finance
Limited's structure investment vehicles in November 2007, was
the only cash-flow CDO held by the Group. In May 2009, the long-
term funding obtained by Farmington was downgraded to “BBB+"
from “A+" while the US$114.0 million (HKS equivalent 883.5 million)
Farmington senior capital note was downgraded to “CCC-" from “CCC".
The remaining US$6.0 million (HKS equivalent 46.5 million) junior
capital note was not rated.

The capital notes are accounted for as available-for-sale securities
by the Group and their book carrying value as at 31 December 2009
was USS$77.6 million (31 December 2008: US$83.1 million) equivalent
to HK$601.8 million (31 December 2008: HK$644.0 million) based
on their net present value of 66.9% (31 December 2008: 69.2%) as
determined by discounting the projected cash flows of the underlying
investment portfolio assuming the investment vehicle will be held
until all underlying assets mature.

As at 31 December 2009 the underlying investment portfolio of
Farmington continued to meet the cash flows projection yet, the
credit quality of the portfolio showed some deterioration which is
considered to be in line with the general credit markets. However, the
portfolio is well diversified amongst some 400 assets in diverse classes,
with approximately 59% rated A- or above, 26% rated between B-
to A-, and 15% rated CCC+ or below. The portfolio of Farmington
consists of approximately 5% in debt securities of financial institutions,
approximately 9% in monoline guaranteed financial institution
securities, approximately 38% in residential prime mortgage-backed
securities, and the remaining 48% in other structured credit securities.
As at 31 December 2009, the weighted average life of the whole
portfolio was 4.43 years. Reinvestment was resumed in January 2009
and ended in November 2009. The Group considered the portfolio’s
direct exposure to sub-prime related mortgage backed securities is
not to be significant.



AEEZHE AT IEER

U]

)]

FRUERENEIER(E)

ERERES (&)
BRTRZZEZNFFHRAERNEAELD
BHANN R_BETAE-AREEHHR
FarmingtonMm R EBIREERILE M5
REARBREH  BltafhEBREEM
R REWFarmington B I EZEH
BHEERE - BREEMDEAENEH
BHMGH  AEERKEEREFES
BT ZR1% & HEE = E (B3 TT456,000,000
T(ZEENF+_A=+—8: =1
347,300,000 7t ) % {B & ® 3,536,100,000
T(ZEEZNF+_A=+—8: 8K
2,708,300,0007T) ° HREZHE A ILIEHE
WEHEERENRERENRENESR -
SR BRI RFarmingtoniBfi 2 BEEEE
EZ T REHFarmington¥I RE S R E S EIH
ZEBENENBE  AURAFEES
HERENRHRENELRE -

tEAN + Farmington 7R R LS| B H P2
i BEREEECEEEZRRARER
GZHERE - B Lill(ER S| BESEHE
o SREBREREKERELERKE
HeER2ERm -

HE_ZTTNF+-_A=+—HI K&
BB FaliFarmington M EEILFESFKE
SN WESBERIBHMEBRFESRE -

TEER

AEERIRREFESEEERKT  EX
FEANEMBEENSERLONASE
B M O BE B B T PO [ S 3t o 17 o R 44
BOREER B ATERIARE -

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

U)

€)

Additional Information on Structured Investments
(cont’d)

Collateralised Debt Obligations (“CDO”) (cont’d)

In addition to the credit default swap (“CDS") as reported in the
annual report 2008, the Group has entered into a second CDS in
January 2009 with the senior loan provider of Farmington as a
partial credit protection against non-performance of a term loan to
Farmington provided by this senior loan provider. Under the terms
of the two CDSs entered, the Group is now responsible for the first
loss of the portfolio up to a notional value of US$456.0 million (31
December 2008: US$347.3 million) equivalent to HK$3,536.1 million
(31 December 2008: HKS$2,708.3 million). Up to the date of this
report, there was neither any settlement request claimed on the
CDSs nor any indication that the deterioration in the credit quality of
the underlying assets of Farmington threatening its ability to meet
payments under the long-term senior debt as they become due, as
such, no provision is considered necessary in respect of the CDSs for
the year.

As last reported, Farmington is subject to certain trigger events that
take into account the credit quality of the underlying assets and
the cash flows of the portfolio. In the event that any such event is
triggered, the senior debt provider will have the right to realise the
collateral in the portfolio in first priority.

Other than the above Farmington CDO investments, the Group
has not made nor does it hold any other CDO investments as at 31
December 2009.

Corporate Governance

The Group is committed to high standards of corporate governance
and has complied, in all material respects, throughout the year with
the module on "Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated
Authorised Institutions” issued by the HKMA.

—EENEER
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(K) Board Committees

U]

(ii)

The Board of Directors of the Bank has established the following
committees:

Audit Committee

The committee, being an independent body, assists the Board of
Directors in monitoring compliance with the policies, procedures,
and internal and statutory regulations. It also assists the Board of
Directors in providing independent review of the effectiveness of the
Bank's financial reporting process and internal control systems. The
committee comprises six Non-executive Directors of the Bank, three
of which are Independent Non-executive Directors.

Executive Personnel Committee

The committee provides oversight of the appointment and removal,
remuneration, and succession plan of the Bank's senior executives.
It also assists the Board of Directors in selecting and recommending
candidates for vacancy on the Board of Directors. The committee
comprises seven Directors of the Bank, including an Independent
Non-executive Director and three Non-executive Directors.

(iii) Credit & Risk Management Committee

The committee oversees the Bank's risk management strategy, policies
and mechanism. The risks concerned primarily include credit, market,
interest rate, liquidity, operational, reputation, legal and strategic risks.
The committee carries out its oversight function on the Bank’s risk
management through various committees at the Bank’s management
level, including: Credit Committee, Non Performing Loan Committee,
Asset and Liability Committee ("ALCO”") and Operations Committee.
The committee comprises five Directors of the Bank, including
an Independent Non-executive Director and two Non-executive
Directors.

The ALCO is responsible for the implementation and maintenance
of the overall risk management framework relating to statement
of financial position structure, market risks, funding and liquidity
management across the Group's banking business. It approves
policy and guidelines. The committee comprises the Chief Executives
Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the Treasurer, the Director of Risks
and the respective Heads of Wholesale Banking Group, Retail Banking
Group and Market Risk. It meets every alternate week and more often
when conditions require.
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